

Ceylon Government Gazette

Published by Authority.

No. 5,296-FRIDAY, JUNE 29, 1894.

CONTENTS.

MINUTES BY THE GOVERNOR.

IIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR has, with the sanction of the Secretary of State, been pleased to direct that clause 9 of the Pension Minute of 11th December, 1892, be amended as follows:—

A Public Servant is entitled to reckon as service for pension the whole period of absence on vacation leave and half the period of absence on leave with half salary. Absence without salary will not count as service for pension, provided, however, that a period not exceeding one year during which an officer is absent on leave without salary, such leave being granted on grounds of public policy, may be counted as service on full pay.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 24, 1894. E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

PROCLAMATIONS BY THE GOVERNOR.

In the Name of Her Majesty VICTORIA, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland Queen, Defender of the Faith.

PROCLAMATION.

By His Excellency Sir Arthur Elibank Havelock, Knight Commander of the Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael and Saint George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief in and over the Island of Ceylon, with the Dependencies thereof.

A. E. HAVELOCK.

WHEREAS by "The Courts Ordinance, 1889," it is amongst other things enacted that Criminal Sessions of the Supreme Court shall be holden by one of the Judges thereof for each of the Circuits into which the Island is divided for the purposes of the Administration of Justice—

For the Midland Circuit three times at least at Kandy, such Sessions commencing at Kandy on March 10, on August 1, and on December 1 in every year:

And whereas by the said Ordinance it is also provided that it shall be competent for the Governor, for sufficient reasons to him appearing, after previous consultation with the Judges, to alter the dates fixed by the said Ordinance for holding Criminal Sessions of the said Court at any of the places therein mentioned, and to fix any other date for the commencement thereof:

And whereas it appears to Us expedient to alter the date fixed by the said Ordinance for the commencement of the Second Criminal Session of the Supreme Court at Kandy, and to fix another date instead thereof:

Now know Ye that We, the said Governor, for sufficient reasons to Us appearing, and after previous consultation with the Judges of the Supreme Court, do hereby direct and appoint as follows: That the second Criminal Session of the Supreme Court for the Midland Circuit, to be holden this year at Kandy, shall commence on Monday, the Thirtieth day of July instead of Wednesday, the First day of August.

Given at Kandy, in the said Island of Ceylon, this Twenty-eighth day of June, in the year of our Lord One thousand Eight hundred and Ninety-four.

By His Excellency's command,

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN!

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

In the Name of Her Majesty VICTORIA, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland Queen, Defender of the Faith.

PROCLAMATION.

By His Excellency Sir Arthur Elibank Havelock, Knight Commander of the Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael and Saint George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief in and over the Island of Ceylon, with the Dependencies thereof.

A. E. HAVELOCK.

HEREAS by section 1 of "The Youthful Offenders' Ordinance," No. 1 of 1886, it is enacted that the said Ordinance shall come into operation only in such circuits, districts, or divisions of the Island defined for the purposes of the administration of justice, and at such time or respective times as the Governor in Executive Council shall, by Proclamation published in the Government Gazette, from time to time or at any time appoint:

Now know Ye that We, the said Governor, in Executive Council, do by this Our Proclamation appoint and declare that the Ordinance No. 1 of 1886 do come into operation within the Judicial District of Kalutara, Western Province, as from and after the First day of July, 1894.

Given at Kandy, in the said Island of Ceylon, this Twentieth day of June, in the year of our Lord One thousand Eight hundred and Ninety-four.

By His Excellency's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

APPOINTMENTS, &c., BY THE GOVERNOR.

IS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR has been pleased to appoint Mr. GILES FREDERICK WALKER to be an Unofficial Member of the Legislative Council of the Island of Ceylon.

By His Excellency's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 26, 1894.

IS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR has been pleased to appoint Mr. H. R. SPENCE to continue to act as Office Assistant at Batticaloa to the Government Agent, Eastern Province, in addition to his own duties as Assistant Conservator of Forests, up to 31st July, 1894.

By His Excellency's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 26, 1894.

IIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR has been pleased to appoint Dr. HEYNSBURG to be an Official Member of the Local Board of Matalé, vice Dr. EBELL.

By His Excellency's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 29, 1894.

IS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR has been pleased to appoint the under-mentioned persons to be Assessors for the year 1895, under the provisions of the 5th section of the Ordinance No. 7 of 1866, viz.:—

For the town of Batticaloa.

Mr. J. D. CASINADER. Mr. W. C. CANAGASABEY.

Mr. R. N. AROLAMBALAM,

MI. II. II. ARULAMBADAM,

For the town of Trincomalee.

Mr. C. VALLIPURAMPILLAI.

Mr. N. ARUNASALAM.

Mr. P. F. DE VISSER.

By His Excellency's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 25, 1894.

IIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR has been pleased to make the following appointments:—

DON DANORIS RANAWIRA to act as Registrar of Marriages, Births, and Deaths of Tihawa, in the District of Hambantota, for one month from the 22nd instant, during the absence of the Registrar, Kurundu Patabendige Don Jacovis de Silva, on leave. His office will be at Bangalawewatta in Tihawa.

DON ENDORIS DE SILVA WIJEWARDANE to act as Registrar of Marriages, Births, and Deaths of Hinidum pattu, in the District of Galle, for two months from the 18th instant, during the absence of the Registrar, DIONYSIUS DE SILVA MADANÁYAKE, on leave. His office will be at Baduwatta in Hinidum pattu.

Wijewardena Mudiyanselágé TISAHAMI to act as Registrar of Marriages (Kandyan and General), Births, and Deaths of Rilpolapaláta, in the Province of Uva, for one month from the 10th July, 1894, during the absence of the Registrar, Wijekon Mudiyanselágé UKKU BANDÁ, on leave. His office will be at Yakdelukumburagedarawatta in

Hindagoda.

Rahupola Abeyakon Jayasundera Mudiyanselagé Banpá to be Registrar of Marriages (Kandyan and General), Births, and Deaths of Bogodapaláta, in the District of Badulla, vice Hale Ela Basnáyaka Wijesundara Mudiyanselágé Sudu Banpá, deceased, with effect from the 22nd June, 1894, and until further orders. His office will be at Edemegedarawatta in Hetekmé.

Abeyasindha Heratnayaka Mudiyanselagé MUDIYANSE to act as Registrar of Marriages (Kandyan and General), Births, and Deaths of Pandita pattu, in the District of Puttalam, for one and a half month from the 10th July, 1894, during the absence of the Registrar, Abeyasinha Herat Mudiyanselagé RANHAMI, on leave. His office will be at Pahalawatta in Wadigamangawa.

Udangomuwe Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Punchi Banda, Arachchi, to act as Registrar of Marriages (Kandyan and General), Births, and Deaths of Matalé Udasiya pattu, in the District of Matalé, for one month from the 1st proximo, during the absence of the Registrar, P. B. Talgahagoda, on leave. His office will be at Weligala Walawwewatta in Weligala.

Harankaha Vidánelágé PEIRIS APPUHAMI to act as Registrar of Marriages (Kandyan), Births, and Deaths of Palle pattu of Kuruwiti kóralé, in the District of Ratnapura, for four months from the 1st July, 1894, during the absence of the Registrar, H. W. UKKUHAMI, on leave. His office will be at the usual place at Kendangamuwa.

Abeyaratne Herat Mudiyanselage UKKU BANDA to act as Registrar of Marriages (Kandyan and General), Births, and Deaths of Peravili pattu in the District of Puttalam, for fifteen days from the 12th proximo, during the absence of the Registrar, Abeyaratne Herat Mudiyanselagé APPUHAMI, on leave. His office will be at Innawatta in Kollankulama.

Disanayake Mudiyanselagé UKKURALA to act as Registrar of Marriages (Kandyan and General), Births, and Deaths of Ihalawisideké kóralé in Wéudawilihatpattu, in the District of Kurunégala, for three months from the 5th proximo, during the absence of the Registrar, E. M. KIRIHAMI, on leave. His office will be at Walawwewatta in Wadupola.

By His Excellency's command, E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 26, 1894.

GOVERNMENT NOTIFICATIONS.

MEETING of the Legislative Council will be held at the Council Chamber on Saturday, the 7th proximo, at 3 o'clock P.M.

Council Chamber. Colombo, June 27, 1894.

By order, H. WHITE, Acting Clerk to the Legislative Council.

T is hereby notified that from and after the 14th instant and until further orders the office of the Registrar of Marriages, Births, and Deaths of Yatipaláta, in the Province of Uva, will be held in the garden called Kenkarawatta in Medawala.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 22, 1894. E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

HEREAS by section 3 of the Ordinance No. 12 of 1885 it is enacted that it shall be lawful for the Governor, acting with the advice of the Executive Council, by resolution to be notified in the Government Gazette, to abolish any existing tolls or any tolls which may hereafter be legally established, and to determine at what places tolls should be collected, and to alter such places and other places to appoint for the collection thereof—anything in "The Tolls Ordinance, 1867," to the contrary notwithstanding:

It is hereby notified for general information that the Governor, with the advice of the Executive Council, by virtue of the powers conferred on him by the said Ordinance, has, by resolution of the 14th day of June, 1894, abolished the tolls levied at the Badulla bridge and at Passara, as from and after the 1st day of January, 1895, and has altered the place for levying toll from the 103rd milepost of the Ratnapura-Haputalé road to the 100th mile of the said road, as from and after the same date.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office. Colombo, June 23, 1894.

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

ROM and after Friday, July 6, 1894, the Gazette will be published in Parts, separately paged for convenience in filing as separate compilations.

The arrangements of contents will be as follows:—

Part I.—General : Minutes, Proclamations, Appointments, and General Government Notifications. Part II.—Legal and Judicial.

PART III.—Provincial Administration.
PART IV.—Marine and Mercantile.
PART V.—Municipal and Local.

The subscription will continue to be Rs. 12 per annum, and the price for each complete issue 25 cents.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 18, 1894. E. NOEL WALKER. Colonial Secretary.

T is hereby notified that the notice dated June 2, 1894, calling for tenders for the supply of rice, Northern Province, to be receivable at this Office up to noon on Monday, July 2, 1894, is withdrawn and cancelled.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 28, 1894. E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

LAND SALES IN THE WESTERN PROVINCE.

No. 1,404, w. P.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 6, 1894.

N Monday, July 23, 1894, and on the following days, at 12 o'clock noon, the Assistant Government Agent for the Negombo District will put up for sale or settlement, at Minuwangoda Resthouse, the under-mentioned portions of Crown Land, on the terms authorized by Government.

Eighty-two allotments of land situated in the Alutkuru North Division of the Negombo District of the Western Province.

** 6	2061H T	TOVINCE.	Prelimir	nary plan 10,185.					
	Tat	37:11 0 mg		•	D			tent	
	Lot.	Village. •	Name of Applicant.	Name of Claimant.	Description.			8. P	
	7351 7352	Hunumulla Do.	Hanpalanelagahalanda Hanpalanelagahawatta	K. Nikulas Fernando Don Siman Fernando	Young cocoanut do.	. 0		$\frac{3}{2} \frac{21}{27}$	
	7353	. Do.	do.	Don Charles Perera	Garden	ŏ		2 8	
	7354	Do.	do.	do.	do.	Õ		0 34	
	7355	Do.	do.	The heirs of late Mr. Pete		_	,		
	7356	D _o	a.,	Perera Senanayaka	do.	5	(36 36	•
	1990	Do.	do.	K. Christina Fernando and añother	do.	1	(0	ı
		•	Drolivaino	ary plan 10,184.	uo.	_	•	, ,	
A	665	Yagodamulla	Helandagahalanda	W. Santi Fernando	Clear land	0	(34	ļ
. В	665	Do.	do.	W. Gironis Fernando	do.	0	1	13	;
Ç	665	Do.	do.	do.	Garden	0		8	
D	665	Do.	do.	do.	Old garden	0	ţ	24	:
т	CAD	Th dalman		ry plan 10,061.					
J	649	. Badalgama	Badalgamawatta	Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de Soysa	Garden	0	1	2 0	r
K	649	Petigoda	Kapuwatta	Messrs. Akbar Brothers	do.	ŏ		20	
${f L}$	649	Badalgama	Badalgamawatta	Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de					
3.5	440	TD 11 3	-	Soysa	Jungle	0		10	
M. N	649 649	Petigoda Badalgama	Kapuwatta	Messrs. Akbar Brothers	Low jungle	0	ě	32	
74	040	Danaigama	Badalgamawatta	Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de Soysa	Garden	0	2	21	•
O	649	Petigoda	Kapuwatta	Messrs. Akbar Brothers	do.	Õ		28	
P	649	Do.	Kapuwattadeniya	do.	Deniya	0	0	14	
Q	649	Badalgama	Badalgamawatta	Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de	Q	1	1	^	
\mathbf{R}	649	Petigoda	Kapuwatta	Soysa Messrs. Akbar Brothers	Garden do.	1	0	0 32	•
\mathbf{S}	649	Do.	Kebileagara	do.	Deniya	ō	0		
	649	Delpakadawala	Nagahawatta	V. Don Juan Appuhamy	Garden	0	-	18	
	649	$\mathbf{p}_{\mathbf{o}}$.	do.	D. Punchappu	do.	Ŏ		12	
W	$649 \\ 649$	Do. Petigoda	do.	G. Allis Vedarala	do. do.	0 1		24 23	
	649	Katukenda	Serangahapata Katukenda	Messrs. Akbar Brothers Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de	uo.	Ľ	4	20	
				Soysa	do.	1	1	-38	
	.649	Delpakadawala	Nagahawatta	V. Don Juan Appu	do.	0	1	0	
Z	649	Do.	do.	H. Migel Fernando and two	do.	ò		14	
A	650	. Do.	· do.	others Rev. Father C. Vianni	do.	0		16	
\mathbf{B}	650	Do.	do. •	Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de		Ĭ	•		
~	050	T	_	Soysa	do. ·	0		27	
\mathbf{C}	$\begin{array}{c} 650 \\ 650 \end{array}$	Do. Do.	do.	Gamage Babahami and others	do. do.	0	0	5 9	
Ĕ	650	Badalgama	do. Badalgamawatta	Gamage Nonnohami Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de	uo.	•	U	ð	
		8	17th Control of the C	Soysa	do.	2	0	37	
F	650	Do.	do.	do.	do.	1		0	
G	650 650	Do. Do.	do.	do.	do, Paddy fold and	0	1	29	
**	000	10.	Kanapademulla	L. Etanahami and another	Paddy field and owita	0	0	27	
I	650 *	Do.	Siambalagahawatta	• do.	Garden	_		9	
	650	Do.	Maragahakumbura	do.			0		
	650 650	Do.	Welikumbura	do.	do. Dillows and naddy	0	0	10	
ш	090	Do.	do. •	H. Porolis Fernando and another	Pillewa and paddy field	0	1	2	
M	650	$\mathbf{D_0}$.	Badalgamawatta	Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de		•	•	4	
3-	450			Soysa ·	Garden	0		27	
N O		Do.	Thanagamwatta	D. S. Senanayake	do.			16	
	650	Do.	Walaowita Ambagahawatta	Hendalage Karolis Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de	do.	0	1	9	
		20.	TTITI Dagatta Watta	Soysa	do.	0	0	30	
Q	650	Do.	Walaowita	Mr. Ĝabriel de Croos	do.	Ō		19	
R	650	Do.	Badalgamawatta	Heirs of late Mr. C. H. de	3 .	^	c	4.0	****
		•	111	Soysa	do.	0	Z	18	
H	646	Tammita	Kongahakumbura	y plan 10,033. The heirs of Mr. F. Livera	Paddy field	1	2	13	
	045	Do' •	Medakele		Jungle			31	
					-	(:	3))	
			•	;		•	•		

,			•			т.	1_4	
	Lot.	Village.	Name of Applicant.	Name of Claimant.	Description.			tent. R. P.
	7044	·	Preliminar	ry plan 10,032.				0 4
	7044	Tammita	Gonnagahalande	· — ·	Jungle	1		2 4
		·	Prelimina	ry plan 9,899.	•			
	Y 628 Z 628	Horampella Do.	Kahatagahawatta do.	Horatalpedige Jayetuwa Horatalpedige Sawiya and		3		1 14
	A 629	Do.	Ha w aikumburapillewa	others Amarasinpedige Sobana an		1		21
	B 629	Do.	Hawaikumburapillewa or Kahatagahawatta	others Amarasinpedige Sawariya ar others	do. ¹ d Garden	0		0 21 0 2
		•	•	• •	Garden	v		, 2
	T. 649	A godinima In ála	•	y plan 9,986.	D'II.			a 94
	L 642	Asgiriwalpola	Kosgahapillewa	T. Daniel Appuhami	Pillewa	0	-	2 34
				y plan 9,263.				
	W 548 D 549	Ganemulla Do.	Ketakelagahawatta •Wewakumburapillewa	W. Matthes Fernando	Garden	1 0		2 12 0 18
	G 449	Do.	Kelagahawatta	W. Karolis Fernando W. Bastian Fernando	Low land Low jungle	-		1 10
	8038	Po.	do.	do,	Cocoanuts	0	() 4
	8039 8040	Do. Do.	Ketakelagahaowita do.	K. Abraham Perera	Low jungle	0) 27 31
	H 549	Do.	Gorakagahaowita	N. Bastian Silva and another W. Babanis Fernando	do.	0 1	-	151
	I 549	Do.	Ketakelagahawatta	W. Matthes Fernando	Garden	0	:	3 34
	J 549	Do.	Gorakagahawatta	S. Juliana .	, do.	0	1	20
		•	Preliminar	ry plan 7,976.				
	W 440	Asgiri-walpola	\mathbf{K} apehena	T. Kattohami and others	Low jungle	0	1	39
	Y 440	₽ Do.	Kapewatta •	do.	Garden .	0	1	19
	0040	35.7	• Preliminar	y plan 6,318.	,	•		
	9748 9049	Màdawela Do.	· Gorakagahadalupota	_	High shrub	1	0	
	9050	Do.	do. do.		do. do .	0 0		37 26
			•		40.		Ĭ	
	J 3011	Nilpanagoda		ry plan 5,594.				
	M 301	Do.	, -	Alawaladewage Hendrick Fernando and others	Garden	0	0	36
	,	D 0	Millagahawatta	Weerakkodimohottige Dona Elizahami	do.	2	0	9
	0 301	Do.	do.	do.	do.	$\bar{0}$	3	0
	. Q 301 6466	Do. Do.	do. Imbulgahagodella	do.	do.	0	3	$\frac{8}{28}$
	6471	Do.	imbulganagodena	W. B. Prenis de Cooray	do. Deniya	2 0		31
			Preliminary pla	n 5.604.		-	_	-
	L 305	Maduwa and	7 1					
		\mathbf{Arambe}	Halgaha Dalupota	W. Simanis Fernando and				
	P 305	Maduwa	Dewatagahakumbura-	others	Low jungle	0	2	34
			pillewa	M. Thomis Silva and				
	Q 305	, 🗣 🔻	~	another	do.	0		34
	₩ 500	Do,	Gorakagahapillewa	K. Lisohamy	do.	0	1	3
			Preliminary pla	•				
	U 132	Essella	Hiddellagahapillewa	L. Punchi Sinno and			_	
				others	Chena	. 1	1	12
	•	•	Preliminary pla	n 2,722.				•
	554	Akaragama	Katuwakele	Crown	\mathbf{Jungle}	0	2	24
		. •	Preliminary pla	an 460.				
	O 144	Kowinne	Tekkawatta	K. Arnolis Perera	Garden	2	2	34
			Preliminary pla	in 456.		•		
	U 137	Nilpanagoda	Kadumbiriyagahalanda	A. Undiya and Lokki	Garden	10	3	25
	J 139	Do.	Galavelikanda	Crown	Pillewa	2		24
			Preliminary pla	n 2,357.	•	1		
	8 839	Dagonna	Elewelkeledalupota	Crown	Low jungle	3	2	31
					-			

Upset price,—Rs. 10 per acre.

Any person or persons laying claim to any of these lands are hereby noticed to produce evidence of their title before the Assistant Government Agent, Negombo, on or before the day of sale.

Further information respecting these lands may be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Assistant Government Agent, Negombo.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

E. Noel Walker,
Colonial Secretary.

No. 1,404, W. P.

වම් 1894 ක්වූ ජූනි මස 6 වෙනි දින කොළඹ මහසෙකුතාරිස්උන්නාන්සේගේ කන්තෝරුවේදීය.

ම ගමු දිසාවේ ආණ්ඩුවේ උපඒජන්තඋන්තාන්සේ විසින් මෙහි පහත සඳහන්වෙන ආණ්ඩුව සන්තක ඉඩම් ආණ්ඩුවේ නියෝගවල පුකාරයට වමී 1894 ක්වූ ජූලි මස 23 මෙනි සඳුද සහ ඊලඟ දවස්වලදින් දවල් 12ට පමණ මිනිවන්ගොඩ තානායමේදී විකුතන්ට නොහොත් නීන්දුකර දෙන්ට යෙදෙනවා ඇත.

මීගමු දිසාවේ බස්නාහිර පලාතේ උතුරු අළුත්කුරුකෝරලේ පිහිටාතිබෙන බිම්කැබෙලි 82ය.

_		සිතියම 10,185. හම—සූනුමුල්ල.				
	- dA@ - 4**	අයිතිකම කියන්නා.	జయాకించి			න.
ලනා. පාද්ය	ඉල්ඵම්කාරයා.	•	අන්දම. * ලබනයේ			′ૄ. .
$\begin{array}{c} 7351 \\ 7352 \end{array}$	හන්පලන්දගහලන්ද හන්පලන්දගහවන්න	ක. නිකුලස් පුනාන්දු දෙන් සිමන් පුනාන්දු	පැල ෙ පාල් එම	$0 \\ 0$		$\begin{array}{cc} 3 & 21 \\ 2 & 27 \end{array}$
7353	එම -	දෙන් චාර්ලිස් පෙුරා	වක්ත .	ŏ	3	2 8
7354	එම	එුම ,	එම	0	(0 34
7355	එම	නැසීගිය පිටර් පෙරා සේනනායක	200	_	٠,	
7956	එ ම	මග් උරුමක්කාරයෝ ක. කිස්තිනා පුනාන්දු සහ තවත්	එම එම	5 1		0 36 0 0.
7356	60		29	1	,) U.
A 665	හැලඹගහලන්ද	සිතීයම 10,184. ගම—්සාගොඩමුල්ල. වි. සන්ති පුනාන්දු	එලිකරණලද බිම	o 0	ſ	34
B 665	ඉම <i>කැ</i> ලිය නකල තුර	වි. ගිරෝනිස් පුනාන්දු	එම	0		13
C 665	එම	එම	වන්න 🛊	Ō	Ō	
· D 665	එ ම	එ ම · ·	පරණ වගාව	0	C	24
		සිතීයම $10,061$. ගම—බඩල්ගම.				•
· J 649	බ ඩල්ගමව ත්ත	නැසීගිය සී. එව්. ඉසායිස මහත්	2	^	_	
		මසාගේ උරුමක්කාරයෝ ගම—්පැනිගොඩ.	ව ත්ත	0	1	2 0
K 649	කපුවත්ත	•	එම	0	1	20
17 010	wg	ගම—බඩල්ගමු.	00	Ü	_	20
L 649	බ ඩල්ගමවත්ත	් නැසීගිය සී. එච්. ඉසායිස මහත්	•			
		මයාම ග් උුරුමක් කාරයෝ	කැලැව	0	3	10
M 640	කපුවත්ත	ගම—පැනිගොඩ. අක්බාර් සහෝදරමහන්මයින්		Λ	9	32
M _. 649	කුට්රධාන	ශම—බඩල්ගම.	ලදකැලැව	0	o	οZ
N 649	බඩල් ගම ව ත් ත	නැසීගිය සොයිස මහත්මයාගේ				•
	•	් උරුමක් කාරයෝ	වන්ත	0	2	21
0.040		හම—පැතිගොඩ.	. .	_	_	20
O 649 P 649	්කපුවත්ත කපුවත්තලෙනිය	අක් බා ර් සහෝරදර මහත්මයි න් එම	ව ත් ත ඉදනිය	0		28 14
1 043	<u>ಇದಿಂಬರಾಷ್ಟ್ರಭಾ</u>	ගම—බඩල්ගම.	<u> ဖင့်သသ</u>	U	U	14
Q 649	බ ඩල් ගම් ව ත්ත	නැසී ගිය සොයිස මහන්මයාගේ	•			
	-	උරුමක් කාර යෝ	වන්ත	1	1	0
D C40	කපුව ත්ත ්	ගම—පැනිගොඩ.	. 40	1	^	90
R 649 S 649	කපුව ටා රා කැකිලේඅගාර	අක්බාර් සහෝදර මහත්මයින් • එම	් එම දෙනිය	1		32 9
D 010	m(moCdmio	ගම—දෙපල්කඩවල.	ဖရထယ	v	•	. •
T 649	නාගු හිව <mark>න්</mark> ත	දෙන් ජුවන්අප්පුහාමි	වත්ත	0	0	18
U 649	එම	දු. පුන්චිප්පු	එම	0		12
V 649	එම	ග. අල්ලිස්පුනාන්දු ගම—පැනිඉගාඩ.	එම	0	0	24
W649	ිසරන්ග හපාත	ශ්ම—පැත්මශාස. අක්බාර් සහෝදරමහත්මයින්	එම	1	2	23
		ගම—කටුකෙන්ද.		_	-	
X 649	කවු කෙන්ද	නැසීගිය සොයිය මහත්මයාගේ		_		
		උ රුමක්කාරගෝ	◆ එම	1	1	38
Y 649	නාගත වත්ත	ගම්—ලදපල්කඩවල. ී වී. දෙන් ජුවන් අප්පු	. *	0	1	0
Z 649	ළු ගැන ක එම	හෙ. ම්ගෙල් පුනා න්දු සහ දෙදෙනෙස		_	ō	-
$\mathbf{A} 650$	එම	ඉග ඉ. සී. වියානි		0	0	16
D 450		සිතියම් 10,061. ගම—දෙල්පකුඩවල.	•			
B 650	නා ග හව න්ත	නැසීතිය සොයිස මිහන්මයාමි <mark>ග්</mark> උරුමක්කාරයෝ	Derim	۸	Λ.	97
C 650	එම	ගමගේ බබාහාම සහ තවත්			$0 \\ 0$	5
\mathbf{D} 650	එ ම	ගමගේ නොන්නොහාමි	එම	ŏ	ŏ	ğ
		ගම—ඛසල්ගම.				
E 650	බ සල්ගම ව ත් ත	නැසීගිය ඉසායිස මහත්මයාගේ	**	9	^	077
F 650	එම '	උරුමක්කාරයෝ එම	එම එම -	$f 2 \\ 1$		37 . 0
G 650	එම -	<u> එ</u> ම .		$\vec{0}$		29
${f H}650$	කන පදෙමුල්ල			ŏ		27
1 650	සියඹලගහ වන්න	එම	වන්ත 🕖 🔻	0	1	9
J 650 K 650	මාරගහ කුඹුර ව-සිකුමුර				0	
77 000	වැලිකුඹුර	<u>එ</u> ම		0.	0	
				1 2		1

නො.	ඉල්ඵම්කාරයා.	අයිතිකම කියන්නා.	ූ අ න්ද ම.		හ. රු.	-
	* *	•	, was for	-1	- •.	
L 650	වැලි <i>කු</i> ඹුර	හ. පොලෝරිස් පුනාන්දු සහ - ' කෙනෙක්	පිල්ලෑව සහ කුඹුර	0	1	2
M 650	බසල්ගම ව <i>ත්</i> ත	නැසීගිය සොයිස මහ න්මයාගේ උරුමක්කාරයෝ	වන්ත	0	2	
N650	තා නායම් වන්න	ඩි. ඇස්. ඉස්නනායක	එම	0		16
O 650	එල ඕව්ට	හැන්දලගේ කරෝලිස්	එම	ð	1	9
$\mathbf{P}_{ullet}650$	අඹිගහ වන්න	නැසීගිය සොයිස මහ න් මයාගේ		_	_	
		උරුමක්කාරගෝ		0		30
\mathbf{Q} 650	එල ඕවිට	ඉන්බුගෙල් ද කෲස් ම හත් මයා	එම	0	0	19
R650	බුසල්ගම වත්ත	නැසීගිය සි. එව්. ද සොයිස මහත්ම යාගේ උරුමක්කාරගෝ) එම	0	2	18
		සිතියම 10,033. හම—කම් ම ට.				
H646	කෝන්ගක කුඹුර	සනයම 10,000. තම—තමමට.	.~ \			
11 040	කොවාගත ක්ෂුට	ඇ1්ප්. ලිවේරා මහත්මසාගේ උරුම කාරගෝ		1	2	12
7045	මැදකැලේ	2010 GC	කුඹුර කැලේ	1	2	31
1039	<i>ၜ႞႖ၮႃ႞</i> ၜၛ	0.10.000	කැලේ .		_	OL
7044	and day	සිතසම $10,032$.			a	4
7044	ගොන්න ග හලන්ද		කැලේ	1	2	4
Y 628	** **	සිනියම 9,899. ගම—ඉහාරැම්පැල්ල.	m d assam. S	9	1	14
Z 628	ක හ ට ගහව ත් ත එම	ඉහාරනල්පේදිගේ ජසේතුවා	පරණිවගාව	$\frac{3}{1}$	7	14. 21
A 629	_	එම සවියා සහ තවත්අය අවරසින්ඉප්ඩිගේ සොබනා සහ	. එම	1	Z	ZI
A 043	හවරිකුඹුරපිල්ලැ ව	අවටස්ත්රේප්රේ සොවනා සහ කුවක්අය	එම	0	Λ	21
B 629	එම නොතොත් කතට		59	U	U	41
25 025	ව න් න .	එම සවරියා සහ නවත්අය	වත්ත	0	0	2
		•		U	٠	_
		සිතියම 9,986. ගම—අස්තිරිවල්දෙපාල.				
${f L}~642$	කොස්ගහපිල්ලෑ ව	ෙත. දනිඉකල්අප්පුතාමි	පිල්ලැව	0	2	34
*		සීතියම $9,263$. ගම—ගඉන්මුල්ල.				
W548	කැටකැලගහවත්ත	වී. මන්තෙස්පුනා න්දු	වත්ත	1	2	12
D549	වැවකුඹුර් පිල්ලෑව	වී. කරෝලිස්පුතාන්දු	පහත් භුමිග	0	0	
G549	කැලගහවත්ත	වී. බස්තියන්පුනාන්දු	ලඳකැලෑව	1	11	10
8038	එම	🎍 එම 🛒	ෙ පාල්	0		4
8039	කැටකෑලගහ ඕවිට	කේ. ආබුහම් පේරා	ලඳකැලැව`	0	0	27
8040	එම	නු. බස්තීයන් සිල්වා	පහත් භුමිය 🕠		1	
H 549	ඉගාරකග හඹිවිට ු	වී. බබා නිස් පුතාන්දු	_ එම		0	
I 549	කැ ටකැලගනවන්	වී. මත්තෙස්පුතාන්දු	වන්ත	0	3	
J 549	ගොර කගනව ත් 	ස. ජුලියානා	එම	0	Ţ	20
****		සිතියම 7,976. ගම—අස්තිරිවල්පොල.		_		
W440	ක පේලුස්න	ට. කන්නොහාම් සහ තවත් අය	ලඳුකැලැව	0	1	
Y 440	කලේව ත්ත	එම	විත්ත	0	1	19
0040		සිතියම $6,\!318$. ගම $lacksquare$ මඩව ල. ·	4 2 22		Δ	
9048	ගොරකගහදඵපො ත		පඳුරුසහි බිම	1	0	
9049 9050	⁄ එම එම		එම	0	0	
3030	50		එ ම .	0	0	zo
	•	සිතීගම 5,594: හම—නිල්පනාගොඩ.				
J 301½	ඉොරලින්ගහ ලන්ද	අලවලදෙවගේ තෙන්දික්පුනාන්දු	o h	^	•	0.4
36901		සහ තවත්	වත්ත	0	0	36
M 301	ම්ල්ලගහ වත්ත	වීරක්කොඩි මොහොට්ටිගේ දොන		0		
O 301	40	එ ලි සහාමි ************************************	එම	2	9	Λ
	එම එම	<u>එම</u> එම	එ ම 4 බ		$\frac{3}{3}$	0 8
$egin{array}{c} \mathbf{Q} \ 301 \ 6466 \end{array}$. 20	එම එම		0	
6471	මඹුල්ගහ ගොඩැල්ල	බ. ලෙුනිස්ද කුරේ		0	0	
OHIL			ෙදනි ය _	U	0	ΩŢ
TOOF		සිතියම 5,604. ගුම—මඩුව සහ අරඹේ.	_	_		0.4
L~305	හල් ගහදඵපොත	වී. සිමානිස් පුතා න්දු සඟ තවත්	ලඳකැලැව	0	2	34
D 905		ගම—මඩුව.		Λ	Λ.	91
P 305	දෙව්වන්හ කුඹුර පිල්ල		එම	0	0	3 3
/Q 305	ගොරකගත පිල්ලැව	ක. ලිඉසා්හාම්	එම	0	1	J
		සිතියම 2,902. ගම—ඉස්ඇල්ල.				
U 132	තිදුල්ලගහ පිල්ලැව	ල. පුන්චිසිණ්ණෙකු සහ තවත්	මේ න	1	1	12
		සිනියම 2,722. ගම—අකරගම.				
554	කටුවකැලේ	සනයම 2,122. ගම—අකටගම. ආ∙ඉණ්ඩුවසන්නක ඉඩම	කැලේ	0	2 :	24
JUI		· • =		0	- '	
0.144	a ententen a milan	සිනියම 460. ගම—ඉකෝචින්න.	a) corbon	2	2 :	24
0 144	නේ ක්කවත් න	ක. අර්නෝලිස් පුෙරා	වත්ත ·	4	4	O'I
TT 405	5.00	සිතියම 456. ගුම—නිල්පනාඉතාඩ		10	9	9 5
U 137	කඳුම්හිරියගහ ලන්ද	අ. උන්දියා සහ ලොක්කි	එම	10	o :	41

නො. T 139	ඉල්එම්කාරගා. ගලවැලි කන්ද	අයිතික ම කියන් නා. ආණ්ඩුව	අ න්ද ම. පිල්ලැව	මහතා. අ. රු. ණ. 2 3 24
		සිතියම 2,357. ගම—ද,ගොන්න.		
8839	ඇටවැල්කැලේ දඵපොඨ	ත ආ ණේඩුව	ලඳකැලෑව	3 2 31

අකිකරයක් මිලකර තිබෙන්නේ රුපියල් 10වය.

මේ ඉඩම්වලට අයිනිවාසිකම් කියාසිරින අය ඒ අයිනිවාසිකම් දක්වන පිණිස නිවෙන මජ්පු සහ සා*ස*මින් සමග ම්හුමුවේ ආණ්ඩුවේ උපඒජන්නඋන්නාන්සේ ඉදිරිපිට විකිනීමේ දවසේදී නොහොත් ඊට පුථම පෙණි සිටින්ට ඕනාය.

මේ ඉඩම් ගැන වැඩිදුර කාරණ සර්වේසර්ජැනුරාල් උන්නාන්සේගෙන්ද, විකිණිමේ කොන්දේසි ගැණැම්ගවුවේ ආණ්ඩුවේ උපඒජන්තඋන්නාන්සේගෙන්ද දුනගන්ට පුළුවන.

> ආණ්ඩුකාර උතුමා නන්වහන්සේගේ ආසුවලෙස, ඊ. නොඑල් වාකර්, මහසෙකුහාරිස් වම්හ.

No. 1,405, W. P.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 26, 1894.

A T noon on Tuesday, August 7, 1894, and on the following days, the Assistant Government Agent of Kalutara will put up for sale or settlement, at his Office in the Kalutara Kachchéri, the under-mentioned Crown Lands, on the terms authorized by Government.

Preliminary plan 4,137.

		Village,-Kindelp	itiy	a.		
	•		·			Upset Price
			E:	xte	nt.	per Acre.
٠	Lot.	Name of Land.	A.	R	. Р.	$\mathbf{R}\mathbf{s}$.
\mathbf{E}	546	Ambagahakumbura	5	2	18	40
L	546	Hirikumbura	3	1	33	40
P	546	Kindikumbura	1	0	20	40
Q	546	Kindiowita .	0	2	30	40
		Vibodamkumbura	1	0	15	40
G	547	Guneiyakumbura	2		20	40
R	547	Mikandalangakumbura	2	1	16	40
Т	547	Wetak eyagahakumbura	0	1	11	40
	547	Hirandeniyakumbura	0		15	40
\mathbf{v}	547	Puwakgahayata-aswed-	-			_
		duma	0	1	1	40
D	548	Dorakadakumbura	1	ō	16	$\tilde{40}$
\mathbf{E}	548	Owilanakumbura	$\bar{0}$	š		$\overline{40}$
H	548	Kawalakumbura	ŏ	š	6	40
	549	Kumarakumbura	5	2	4	40
Y		Anhettigekumbura or	•	_	•	*.0
_		Polekandakumbura	2	1	2	40
M	549	Kuladuwewagurakum-	-	-	_	10
		bura	0	3	39	40
C	550	Amarasinhakumbura	š		3	40
Ğ	550	Hapugahakumbura	4		39	40
P	551	Halgahakumbura	ô		21	20
-	.,,,,	22g	Ū	~	41	20
		Preliminary plan 3	,467			
\mathbf{D}	372	Hatiyakumbura	2	0	16	20
\mathbf{R}	373	Dangahakumbura	0	2	28	20
I	377	Koddeniyawattakattiya	0	1	30	10
		In Adileani pattu of Paris	ma m	1	ama I	•

In Adikari pattu of Rayigam korale.

Further particulars respecting these lands may be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Assistant Government Agent, Kalutara.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

E. Noel Walker, Colonial Secretary. වමී 1894 ක්වූ ජූනි මස 26 වෙනි No. 1,405, W. P. දින කොළඹ මහසෙකුතාරිස්උන් නාන්සේගේ කන්තෝරුවේදීය.

ඉස්ඩුවට අයිනි මෙහි පහත සඳහන්වෙන බිම් කො ටස් වමී 1894 ක්වූ අගෝසතු මස 7 වෙනි අග හරුවාද දවල් සහ ඊලග දවස්වලදින් කළුතර ආණේ ඩුවේ උපඑජන්තඋන්නාන්සේ විසින් කළුතර කුච්චරි සේදී ආණ්ඩුවේ ආඤුවල පුකාරයට විකුණින්ට හෝ අයිනිකාරයින්ට මේරුම්කරදෙන්ට යෙදෙනවා ඇත.

i		•	සිනියම 4	,137.			æ	ක්කර
i		තිබෙන	සථානය	·කි දෙල් පි	ටිය.		-	යක
i	e					මහා		©ිල.
	ඉතා.	ඉදි	ාම.		¢	. රු	. ප.	රු.
	\mathbf{E} 546	අඹගන	කුඹුර		5	. 2	18	40
1	L~546	ත්රිකුඹු	ර		3	1	33	40
١	P 546	ක්දිකුඹු	ರ		1	0	20	4 0
	Q~546	කිදි ඕව්	ච		0	2	30	40
Ì	$\tilde{\mathbf{A}}$ 547	විමේඛ්ද	න කුඹුර		1	0.	15	40
	G547	ගුඉනයි	හා කුඹුර		$\frac{2}{2}$	1		40
Ì	m R~547	මිකන්ද	ලඟ කුඹුර		2	1.	16	4 0
l	T547	මැට මක්	යියාගහ ස	ව ඹුර	0	1 :	11	4 0
l	$\mathrm{U}~547$	කිරන් ම	දනිගේ කුඹු)ර	0		15	4 0
ļ	V 547	ු පුවක් ගැ	නගට අස්ව	ැද්දුම	0	1	1	40
	D 548	ෙදැර කෑ	ට කුඹුර		1	0	16	40
l	E 548	ඔව් ලා ම	න් කුඹුර		0	3 3	13	40
l	H 548	කවුලා අ	තුඹුර		0	3	6	40
	K 549	කුමාර න	ාඹුර		5	2	4	40
	$\Upsilon 549$	අන් මහර්	වීලිගේ කු	මු ර				
		ල නා ම	භාත් ඉපාල	්		-		
		කන්ද	කුඹුර		2	1	2	40
	M549	කුලදුමේ	ි වගුර කුණි	³ ර	0	3 3		40
	C 550	අමරසින	්ග කුඹුර	,	3	1	3	40
	G 550	හපුගහ	කුඹුර		4	0 3	39	. 40
	P 551	න ල්ගන	කුඹුර		0	2 2	21	20
			සිනියම	3,467.	_		_	
	D372	හට්යා කු	<u>ා</u> ඹුර	,	2	0 1	.6	20
	R373	දන්ගහ	තුඹුර		0	2,2	8	20
	I 377	ඉනාන් ල	දනියේ වඨ	್	•			
		කච්චිර	5		0	1 3	0	10
				h 4 B	_	_		_

පිහිටානිබෙන්නේ රයිගම්කෝරලේ අදිකාරිපත්තුවේ. මෙම ඉඩම් ශැණ වැඩිදුර කාරණ සර්වේශර් ජන රාල් උන්තාන්සේගෙන්ද, විකිනීමේ කොන්දේසි ගැණ කාරණ කළුතර ආණ්ඩුවේ උපඒජන්තඋන්නාන්සේ ගෙන්ද දුනගන්ට පුළුවන.

ආණ්ඩුකාර උතුමානන්වහන්සේගේ ආඥවලෙස, ඊ. නොඑල් වාකර්, මහසෙකුතාරිස් වමිහ.

LAND SALES IN THE CENTRAL PROVINCE.

No. 1,422, C. P.

Colonial Secretary's Office,

Colombo, June 6, 1894.

O^N Wednesday, August 8, 1894, at 12 o'clock noon, the Hon. the Government Agent for the Central Province will put up to auction, at his Office in Kandy, the under-mentioned portions of Crown Land, on the terms authorized by Government.

Two allotments of land situated in the Medapalata kóralé of Udunuwara, in the District of Kandy, Central Province.

Preliminary plan 4,476.

Lot.	Name of Land.	Village.	Name of Applicant.	Name of Claimant.	Description.	Extent. A. R. P.
•11955	Aludeniyahena	Hiyawala	Mahahapanpedi Durayala-	The Crown	Kurakkan and	
11956	Do.	do.	gedara Sarana do.	do.	plantains Chena	$\begin{array}{cccc} 0 & 1 & 27 \\ 2 & 3 & 38 \end{array}$

Upset price,—Rs. 10 per acre.

Further information respecting these allotments of land may be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Hon. the Government Agent, Central Province.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

No. 1,422, C. P.

වමී 1894 ක්වූ ජූනි මස 16 වෙනි දින කොළඹ

මහසෙකුතාරිස්උන්නාන්සේගේ කන්තෝරුවේදීය.

මුඛාව දිසාවේ ගෞරවනියවූ ඒජන්තඋන්නාන්සේ විසින් මෙහි පහත සඳහන්වෙන ආණ්ඩුව සන්තක ඉඩම් ආණ්ඩුවේ නියෝගවල පුකාරයට වමී 1894 ක්වූ අගෝස්තු මස 8 වෙනි බුදදින දවල් 12ට මහනුවර කච චේරියේදී වෙන්දේසිකර විකුණින්ට යෙදෙනවා ඇත.

මඩාම දිසාවේ උඩුනුවර මැදපලාතේ කෝරලේ කොට්ඨාසයේ පිහිටාත්බෙන බිම්කැබෙලි දෙ**කක්.** සිහියම 4,476. ගම—නියවෙල. අයිනිකම කියන්නා—ආණ්ඩුව.

නො. 11955	ඉඩමේ නම. අඵදෙනියේ ඉස්න	ඉල්එම්කාරයා. මහහපන්ජේඩි දුරයලැගෙදර සරන	ූ අන්දම. කුරක්කන් සහ	ගෙන. අ. රෑ. ප.
11300	අපදේනයෙ අගුත	ඉගත්වන්ටෙක් පුටකලැගේදට කටන්	ඉකු සෙල් ඉකු සෙල්	0 1 27
11956	එම	. එ ම	· ගේන	2 3 38

අක්කරයක් රූපියල් 10යේ හිට විකුණන්ට පටන්ගනු ලැබේ.

මෙම ඉඩම් ගැන වැසිදුර කාරණ සර්වේසර්ජනරාල් උන්නාන්සේගෙන් දෙනගන්ට පුළුවන්වත් ඇර, විකිනීමේ කොන්දේසි ගැන කාරණ මඩෳම දීසාවේ ගෞරවනියවූ ආණ්ඩුවේ එජන්නඋන්නාන්සේමෙන් අසා දෙනගන හැකිවේ.

ආණ්ඩුකාර උතුමානන්වහන්සේගේ ආසුවලෙස,

ඊ. නොඑල් වාකර්, මහසෙකුතාරිස් වම්හ.

No. 1,423, C. P.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 19, 1894.

O^N Wednesday, August 8, 1894, at 12 o'clock noon, the Hon. the Government Agent for the Central Province will put up to auction, at his Office in Kandy, the under-mentioned portion of Crown Land, on the terms authorized by Government.

An allotment of land situated in the Medapalata korale of Udunuwara, in the District of Kandy, Central Province.

Preliminary plan 2,973.

Lot. Village. Name of Land. Name of Claimant. Description. A. R. P. O 379 Embekka Attikkagahamulahena The Crown Chena 6 2 38

Upset price,-Rs. 10 per acres

Further information respecting this allotment of land may be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Hon, the Government Agent, Central Province.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary. No. 1,423, C. P.

වම් 1894 ක්වූ ජූනි මස 19 වෙනි දින කොළඹ මහසෙකුතාරිස්උන්නාන්සේගේ කන්තෝරුවේදීය.

ම බාම දිසාවේ නෞරවනියවූ ඒජන්තඋන්තාන්සේ විසින් මෙහි පහත සඳහන්වෙන ආණ්ඩුව සන්තක ඉඩම ආණ්ඩුවේ නියෝගවල පුකාරයට වමී 1894 ක්වූ අගොස්තු මස 8 වෙනි බුදදින දවල් 12ට මහනුවර කච් චේරියේදී වෙන්දේසිකර විකුණන්ට යෙදෙනවා ඇත.

මඖාම දිසාවේ උඩුනුවර මැදපලාතේ කෝරලේ කොට්ඨාසයේ පිහිටානිවෙන බිම්කැවෙලි එකක් සිනියම 2,973. අයිනිකම කියන්නා—ආණ්ඩුව.

මහත. නො. නම. ඉඩමේ නම. අන්දම. අ. රු. ප. O 379 ඇම්බැක්ක අධ්වික්කාගහමුල හේන 6 2 38

අක්කරයක් රුපියල් 10යේ හිට විකුනන්ට පවන්ගන් ලැබේ.

මේ ඉඩම ගැණ වැඩිදුර කාරණ සර්වේසර්ජනරාල්උන්නාන්සේගෙන් දැනගන්ට පුළුවන්වත් ඇර, විකි නීමේ කොන්දේසි ගැණ කාරණ මබාව දිසාවේ ගෞරවනියවූ ආණ්ඩුවේ එපන්නඋන්නාන්සේගෙන් අසා දුනගත හැකිවේ.

ආණ්ඩුකාර උතුමා හන්වහන් සේගේ ආඥවලෙස,

ඊ. නොඑල් වෘකර්, මහසෙකුතාඋස් වම්හ

No. 1,424, C. P.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 19, 1894.

N Wednesday, August 1, 1894, at 12 o'clock, the Assistant Government Agent for the Nuwara Eliya District will put up to auction, at his Office in Nuwara Eliya, the under-mentioned portions of Crown Land, on the terms authorized by Government.

Three allotments of land situated in the Walapane Division of the Nuwara Eliya District of the Central Province.

Preliminary plan 4,111.

		. Cato.			Extent.
Lot.	Village.	Name of Applicant.	Name of Claimant.	Description.	A. R. P.
11035	Abanella	. B. Loku Banda	The Crown	Paddy field	0 0 32
11037	Do.	do.	do.	ďo.	0 1 14
11038	. Do.	Sadris .	do.	Patana	1 0 3

Upset price,—Rs. 10 per acre.

Further information regarding these lands may be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Assistant Government Agent, Nuwara Eliya.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

E. Noel Walker, Colonial Secretary.

No. 1,424, C. P.

වම් 1894 ක්වූ ජූනි මස 19 වෙනි දින කොළඹ මහසෙකුතාරිස්උන්නාන්සේගේ කන්තෝරුවේදීය.

ම බාම දිසාවේ නුවරඑලියේ උපජජන්තඋන්නාන්සේ විසින් මෙහි පහත සඳහන්වෙන ආණ්ඩුව සන්තක ඉඩම් ආණ්ඩුවේ නියෝගවල පුකාරයට වමී 1894 ක්වූ අගෝස්තු මස 1 වෙනි දිනවූ බදද දවල් 12ට නුවරඑළ යේ කව්වේරියේදී වෙන්දේසිකර විකුණින්ට යෙදෙනවා ඇත.

මඛාම දිසාවේ නුවරඑලි පලාකේ වලපනේ කොට්ඨාසයේ පිහිටා කිබෙන බිම්කැබෙලි.

සින්යම 4,111.

මනා.	ගම.	● ඉල්ඵම්කාරසාගේ නම.	ි අසි තික ම කියන්නා	අන්දම.	මහත. අ. රු. ප.
11035	අඹන්දෑ ල්ල	කී. ලොකුබ<i>ත්</i>ඩා	ආණ්ඩුව	ක් <mark>ම</mark> ුර	0 0 32
11037 .	එම	එුම	එම	එම	0 1 44
11038	එම	සාඅිරිස්	එම	පතන	1 0 3

අක්කරයක් මිලකර තිබෙන්නේ රුපියල් 10ය බැගින්.

මෙම ඉඩම් ගැණි වැඩිදුර කාරණ සර්වේසර්ජනරාල් උන්නාන්සේගෙන්ද විකිනීමේ කො**න්දේසි ගැණි** කාරණ මඩාමදිසාවේ නුවරඑලියේ ආණඩුවේ උපඒජන්නඋන්නාන්සේගෙන්ද දනගන්ට පුළුවන.

ආණ්ඩුකාර උතුමානන්වහන්සේගේ ආඥවලෙස,

ඊ. නොඑල් වෘ**ක**ර්, මහසෙකුකාරිස් වම්**හ**.

LAND SALES IN THE NORTHERN PROVINCE.

No. 263, N. P.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 14, 1894.

N Tuesday, July 3, 1894, the Assistant Government Agent for the Mullaittivu District will put up to auction, at his Office in Mullaittivu, the under-mentioned portion of Crown Land, on the terms authorized by

An allotment of land situated in Karikkaddumulai North Division of the Mullaittívu District of the Northern Province.

Preliminary plan 1,739.

Lot.

Village.

Name of Applicant.

Name of Claimant.

Description.

Extent. A. R. P.

6596

Chilavattai

Chellappa Annakutti

Crown

Forest land suitable for

cocoanut cultivation 232 1 0

A water-rate not exceeding Re. 1 per acre per annum shall be charged in the event of the tank by which the land is benefited being restored by Government.

Further information respecting this land may be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Assistant Government Agent, Mullaittivu.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

No. 263, N. P.

கொலோனியல சக்கிற்த்தார ஆபிசில கொழும்யு, 1894 ம் தேல் ஆனிமீ 14 ந் டை

1894 ம ஆணுடு ஆடியாதம் 3 ந் தேதை செவ்வாய்க்கிழமை பக்ல 12 மணிக்குத் தொள் ஆபிசில முலஃதைத்வ உதுடைகை கவ்டுணமேந்து ஏசுனுறவர்களால இதனகேற சொலலபபட்டிருகுகிறை முடிகுசுறிய கா ணித்துண்டு ஒன்றை, பூல் இத்துக்கச்சேரியில் அரசாட்சியாரால் உக்தரவுடண்ணப்பட்டிருக்கும் பொருத்தப் பூரகாரம் பியசித்தவைத்திலகூறி விற்கப்படும்.

ஒரு த*ை* 3களாணி முல*ு தைவே* டி மதிறிகள்ளு கெரிகடுமு**ஃ வ**ட உரு**பட**குதியி **விருகசினு**றது.

படத்தின் இலக்கம் 1,739. குறிச்சி—சிலாவத்தை. உருத்தாளி—முடி.

லிசாலம.

இல.

கேள்விக்காநன பெயா.

காணியின பெயா.

காணியினு விவாமு.

ஏ. ஹா. பெ.

6596

செலவப்பா அன்னக்(கிடம்

காடு, தெனைடைரசசெய

232 1 0

தசசண வெளிக (சுள த துக காடு

கை**குத் க**ூந்தது

இக்காணிசுரூத தண்ணீர பாய்ச்சும் குளம கவாணமேந்தினுல கட்டப்படுங்கால வருஷத்துக்கு ஒரு ஏக் கருக்கு 🤭 புது ஒன்றுக்கு மேழ்படாத தண்ணீர வரி கொடுக்க வேண்டிவரும்.

இக*கா*ணியைப்**ப**ற்றிய டேலதன மான விவரஙகளூச் சஙகைபோந**த சேவே**யர்ஜெனறல் *து*ரைய**வாக** ளிடத்திலும் வீறபனை?ன கொந்திசைப்பறறி முலஃத்திவு உதவிக கவற் ு ே நது ஏசனறுததுமையவாகளிட த் இலு மகட்டமிர் தகொள்ளலாம்.

அதியுததம் தேசாதிபதியவாகளினது கடடுளையிலை படி,

ஈ. 2 நோவெல் உவாககா இராசாங்க விசுதா.

LAND SALES IN THE EASTERN PROVINCE.

Extent.

No. 480, E. P.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 18, 1894.

ON Friday, July 27, 1894, at noon, the Assistant Government Agent for the Trincomalee District, Eastern Province, will put up to auction, at his Office in Trincomalee, the under-mentioned portions of Crown Land, on the terms authorized by Government.

Thirty-four allotments of land situated in the Koddiyar and Tampalakam divisions of the Trincomalee District of the Eastern Province.

> Preliminary plan 1,829. Village—Sampur. Claimant—Crown.

Lot. Name of Applicant. Description. A. R. P. 5861 The Government $\mathbf{A}\mathbf{gent}$ Paddy field 2 0 21 Do. 0 27 5862 0 do. Do. do. ō 0 29 5863 5864 D٥ đ٥. 11 ħ 0 Jungle 5865 2°16 2 5868 K. Maruta Udaiyar do. 4 2 22 Paddy field 5869 6 1 28 5870 The Government Agent d٥. 2 .2 5871 ° Do. 0 do. 1 5872. Do. do. 1 22 5873 Dρ. do. 2 0 21 Do. 5874 do. 5 1 14 5875 Do. do. 0 0.37M. Katamuttu 5876 6 0 do. 0 5877 The Government Agent do. 2 $\begin{smallmatrix}0&26\\2&32\end{smallmatrix}$ 5878 $\bar{3}$. Do. do. ŏ 3 20 5879 Do. do. 5880 Do. do. 1 2 8 5881 Do. 2 36 do. 4 5883 ~ Do. do. 3 1 28 5884 Do. do. 0 0 26 V. Kanapati 0 17 5885 do٠ 1 5886 Do. 7 do. 0 2 5887 Do. 2 Jungle 3 1 5888 $\tilde{2}$ 34 Do. . Paddy field 5889 Dο. High jungle 0 17 Preliminary plan 428. Village - Kilivoddi. . Claimant - K. Kantappen. 155 Paddy field 14 2 15 155 do. 3 1 20 155 do. 2 14 4 Claimant-K. Sinnan. M 155 Paddy field 2 4 Claimant-K. Konamalai. S 155 Paddy field 11 0 33

instalments 9 1 12
Further information regarding these lands may be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Assistant Government Agent, Trincomalee.

Claimant -K. Kantappen.

Claimant-S. K. Saravanai.

Preliminary plan 1,663. Village—Tampalakam.

Re-advertised for non-payment of

Paddy field

Paddy field

1 3 33

3 0 26

T 155

U 155

4843

By His Excellency the Governor's command, E. Norl. Walker, Colonial Secretary. No. 480, E. P. கொ. சக்கிற்க்கா ஆடிகுல், கொழுடிபு, 1894 ம இலி ஆணிமு 18 உ.

1894 ம் ஆ ஆடிமு 27 ந் சேதி வெளளிக்கிழமை மத்தியாணம் தன ஆபிசில கிழ்நாகாணத்தத் திர்கோணமல் முனதிறிக்கின் உதல் கவற்ணமேந்த ஏசன் றவாகளால இதன்டியிற் செ. லலப்பட்டிருக்கிற முடிக்குரிய காணித்தண்டுகள், அரசாட்சியாரால் உத்த ரவு பண்ணப்பட்டிருக்கும் பொருத்தப் பிரகாரம் ஏலதத்திற்கூறி விறகப்படும்.

34 காணிக்தாணை கள, கீழ மாகாணத் தை இரிகோ ுருடூல டௌதிறித்தினை கோட்டியார தடுப்ளகம**ப்** பஞ் இயி விருக்கின்றன்.

பிளான இலக்கம் 1,829.

	1			·			
		குறிக்	சி—சமபூர. உரித	தாளி—அரச	ாட்€	சியாரு.	
			•		a	சாலம்.	
		இல்.	8கேள் விக்காரன்.	விசையம்.		றா. ப.	
		5861	ஆளுகைகளியிய	1	- ,		
		0002	ஸ்தா	செலவயல	2	0 21	
		5862	SOLD.	• 69rb	õ	0 27	
		5863	40-5	കെ	ŏ	0 29	•
į		5864	50.2	ஒ	11	0 0	
		5865		asır(b)	2	2,16	
ı	'	5868	கெ. மருதஉடை		_	- 4	
			யா ர ்	ஒடி	4	2 22	
1		5869	-	தெலவயல	6	1 28	
		5870	ஆளுகைகாரிய	•		3	
Į		•	ஸ் கா	50.0	1	2 3	
1		5871	60.p	ஒடி	0	1 0	
I		5872	டை	லர்	1	$1 \ 22$	
l		5873	•ம ு	<u>,</u> የያ ተ <mark>ያ</mark> ተ	2	$0 \ 21$	
l		5874	rgrð	49.0	5	1 14	•
l		5875	· earl	. Wrd	0	0.37	
1		5876	எமு. காததமுத்	த வேடி	6	0 0	
l		5877	ஆளுகைக்காரிய		~		
	*		்ஸ், <i>த</i> ர	691 9	2	0 26	
ļ		5878	2017	லூ	3	2 32	
l		5879 .	EDTO.	eorb .	0	3 20	
l		5880	wo	1970	1	2 8	
ŀ		5881	ஒர்	சு	4	2 36	
	•	5883	சுர்	சை	3	$\begin{array}{c} 1 & 28 \\ 0 \bullet 26 \end{array}$	
		5884	ூர். தூர்	60 <u>.</u> 9	$0 \\ 1$	0 17	
		5885 5886	ை. கஓ்ரைய இ	SOF	0	2 7	
		5887	6.3	ுடை⊈் காடு	2	$\stackrel{\scriptstyle 2}{1}$ $\stackrel{\scriptstyle 3}{3}$	
		5888	<i>⊗</i> • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	தொ <u>ச</u> தெலவடல	$\tilde{5}$	$\frac{1}{2} \frac{3}{34}$	
		5889	<u>ச</u> ை	உயர்ந்தகாடு	5	0.17	
			(grð				
		பிளாக	ன இலக்கைம் 428. (சுறிசசி—கெ	ନାର	eville.	
			உரித்தாளி செ.	கேந்தை ப பேன.			
	J	155		நெலவயல்	14	2 15	
	K	155	· <u> </u>	-ma	3	1 20	
	L	155		eorb.	4	2 14	
			உரித்தாளி—இக	. சின என.	•	٠.	•
	M	155	•	தெவையல	4	2 4	
	TAT	,			_		
			உரித்தாளி—கே.	கோணுமலே.			
	s	155	~_	தெலவயல]	1	0 33	•
				•			
	m	1	உரித்தாளி—கே.		7	 9 90	
	\mathbf{T}	155	•	செல்வயல	1	3 33	
			உரித்தாளி—எஸ். (7 = = = 2 ===			;
		,,,,	- 110 m d m - 100 m			0.00	
	U	155		தெலவயல	3	0 26,,	
			•	•	(3)	

. ,	். விக்கம்.	, இக்காணிகளே
இவ.	களைவித்±ாருண. விவோ⊄ட அ.றா.⊔.	யவறறை கௌர
	பிளான இலக்கட்ட 1,663.	தீண க ^த ுப் ப ற்றி
	<i>ுறிச்சி—த</i> ட பலகமம .	கசாரியன் தரிடத
4843	ஒ ்க ்சூப பணமிறுடையாற் றி	அதிபுகதம் தேச
	ரும் ப வி ற்பனவுக ருப்போ	• •
	ட் ப ட்டது 9 1 12	}

இக்காணிக்ஃ ப்பற்றி டேலே இகை எக்அறிய வேண்டி பெஹ்ஹைற 'கௌாவ அளவைத்தீஃவெரிடத்திலும் நிபந் கூணகுணப்பற்றி திரிகோண்டிஃபின் உத்தி யொளுகை கோரியல் திரிடத்திலும் கேட்டறிந்த கொள்ளைலாட். அதிபுத்தம் தேசா இபதியவாகள்து கெட்டீஃரப்படி, ஏ. நோடுவலை உவாக்கா, இராசாங்க் விகிசர்.

LAND SALES IN THE PROVINCE OF UVA:

No. 167, P. OF U.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 20, 1894.

ON Tuesday, August 14, 1894, at noon, the Government Agent for the Province of Uva will put up to auction, at his Office in the Kachcheri, the under-mentioned portions of Crown Land, on the terms authorized by Government.

Six allotments of land situated in the Yatikinda division of the Badulla District of the Province of Uva.

		Preliminary plan 393. App.	licant—Mr. H. O. Hos	season.	-		
•	•		•		E	xte	nt.
Lot.	Village.	Name of Land.	Name of Claimant.	Description.	A.	R.	₽.
F 43	Gawarawela	Tennawattahena	Wewaldi Vidane	Chena .	9	0	٠0
8462	Dandugolla	Dandugollagamapatana	7 plan 2,738. Crown	Patana and forest	14	2	22
1213	Hetemme	Preliminary plan 371. Ap Gongaltennapatana	plicant—Mr. P. F. Ha Crown	dow. Patana and jungle	4	0	4
1550 I 51 J 51	Nawela Do. Do.		Crown .	nson. Patana Forest Chena, scrub, patana	$\begin{array}{c}2\\7\\24\end{array}$		34 15 20
	•	Preliminary	y plan 399.				
5 a	Two alto	tments of land situated in the	Wellawaya division of	Badulla District.			
		Applicant-Mr. A					
1342	Nikapota	Kapuhenapatana	Crown	Patana and jungle	3	0	10
1345	Do.	do.	do.	do.	2	1	3

Upset price,—Rs. 10 per acre.

Further information respecting these lands may be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Government Agent, Badulla.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

No. 167 P. OF U.

වම් 1894 ක්වූ ජූනි මස 20 වෙනි දින කොළඹ මහසෙකුතාරිස්උන්නාන්සේගේ කන්නෝරුවේදීය

 \mathbb{C}^{9} ව දිසාවේ ඉදුල්ලේ ආණ්ඩුවේ ඒජන්තඋන්නාන්සේ විසින් මෙහි පහත සඳහන්වෙන් ආණ්ඩුව සන් තක ඉඩම් ආණ්ඩුවේ නියෝගවල පුකාරයට වමී 1894 ක්වූ අගොස්තු මස 14 වෙනි දිනවූ අගහරුවාද දවල් 12ට ඉදුල්ලේ කච්චේරියේදී චෙන්දේසිකර විකුණින්ට කෙදෙනවා ඇත.

ඌව දිසාවේ බදුළු පලාහේ සවිකිඳ කොට්ඨාසයේ පිහිටානිබෙන බිම්**කැබෙලි.** - සිතියම 393. ඉල්ළුම්කාරයා—එව්, ඕ. හොසිසන් මහත්මයා. අයිනිකම කියන්නා—වැවලියද්දේ විද හා.

۸.		•	මහත.
ඉතා	ගම.	ඉඩමේ නම. අන්දම. ු	අ. රු. ප.
F 43	ගවරවෙල	තැ <i>න්</i> නේවන්නේ සේන හේන	9 0 0
8462	ද ඹුගොල්ල	සිත්යම 2,738 අයිතිකම කියන්නා—ආණ්ඩුව. දඬුගොල්ලේගම පතන පතන සහ කැලේ	14 2 22
1213	නැතැම්ම	සිනියම 371. ඉලිවීමකාරයා—පී. ඇජ. හැඩෝමහත්මයා. ගොංකුල්තැන්නේ පතන පතන සහ කැලේ	4 0 4,
1550	නාවෙල	සිනියම 431. ඉල්එම්කාරක—ආර්. ඇප්. නොම්සන් මහන්මයා. දින්ගොමනේ පතන පතුන	. 2 2 34

නො.	ගම.	ඉඩමේ නම,	අන්දම.	මහත. අ. රු. ප.
		අයිතිකම කියන්නා—නාවෙල විහ	ාරෙ.	
I 51	නාවෙල	ලවළුගස්තැන්ඉන් මූකලා	න මුකලාන	7 0 15
J 51	එම	දිග්ගොම්මනේ හේන	ඉහින්කනන්න සහ පෘ	තන24 3 20
	බදුළු දිස්ණු: ඉල්ළුම්කාර	ක්කෝ වැල්ලවාය පලාතේ පිහිටි ඉඩම් කැබ(කා—ඒ. සී. චෙම්බර්ලින් මහන්මයා. අයිනි	ලි දෙකක්. සිතියම 399. කම කියන්නා—ආ ණඩුව.	
1342	නික පොත	කපුගේනේ පතන	පතන සහ කැලේ	3 0 10
1345	එම	ළු ම ·	එම	2 1 3

අක්කරයක් රුපියල් 10 සිට විකුනනුලැබේ.

මෙම ඉඩම් ගැණි වැහිදුර කාරණ සර්වේයර්ජනරාල් උන්නාන්සේගෙන්ද, එහි විකුනුම් ගැණි තෞර තුරු බදුල්ලේ ආණ්ඩුවේ ඒජන්ත උන්නාන්සේගෙන දෙනගත හැකිය.

> ආණ්ඩුකාර උතුමානන්වහන්සේගේ ආඤවලෙස, ඊ. නොඑල් වාකර්, මහසෙකුතාරිස් වම්හ.

LAND SALES IN THE PROVINCE OF SABARAGAMUWA.

No. 176, P. OF S.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 14, 1894.

N Thursday, August 9, 1894, at 1 P.M., the Assistant Government Agent for the Kégalla District of the Province of Sabaragamuwa will put up for sale or settlement, at his Office in Kégalla, the under-mentioned portions of Crown Land, on the terms authorized by Government.

Forty-four allotments of land situated in the Beligal korale of the Kegalla District of the Sabaragamuwa Province

F	Province	•	•	Ü		
			-Beligal korale, Gandolaha pattuwa	. Situation -Ala	paladeniva.	
		•			Extent.	Value of
	Lot.	Name of Land.	Name of Claimant.	Description.	A. R. P.	Timber.
	1072	Meddahena, Panwattehen	na, and			Rs. c.
		. Hapugahamulahena	A. Dingiri Menika and others	Jungle	7 2 36	20 0
	1073	Do.	ďo.	do.	0 0 10	
	1074	· Do.	do.	do.	0 1 2	
	1075	\mathbf{Do} .	. do.	do.	0 2 2	
	S 59	Hapugahamuladeniyakun		•		•
		_ bura ·	A. Pinchi Appuhami and other	ers Field	0 2 21	<u> </u>
	T 59	Hapugahamulahena	do.	$\mathbf{Pillewa}$	0 1 14	<u> </u>
		Preliminary plan 394.—	Beligal korale, Gandolaha pattuwa.	Situation-Naw	agomuwa.•	•
	962	Pansalagawadeniyahena or	· Gal-		- S	
		 kotuwehena 	R. Punchirala and others	Forest	1 0 15	2 0
	963	Halwalamukalana	W. Mudalihami and others	· Cleared land	1 1.39	
	964	Halwalamukalanadeniya	do.	Deniva •	0 1 13	
	. 965	Halwalamukalana	do.	Garden	0 0 7	
		Preliminary plan 5.947.	-Beligal korale, Gandolaha pattuw	a. Situation—Ba	tuwatta	
	76263	Kongahamulawatta (for		a. Stonemotina	terration.	
		part of Kendagollemuka		New garden	0 3 32	
			Beligal korale, Gandolaha pattuwa.	_		
	941	Kongahamulahena alias Ka		Situation—Bate	iwatta.	
	∂ 4 1	mullepillewa	B. Kiri Baiya and others	Garden	0 0 7	
		* .	•			
			Beligal korale, Gandolaha pattuwa.			
F		Galmullahena	A. Wedahami and another	Chena	0 1 24	
8		Do.	Lekamale Hetuhami	do.	1 0 12	- •
U		Pallepitiyahena Do.	A. Dingiri Appu and another	do.	2 0 12	-
V		Panwattahena ·	A. Dingiri Appu A. Punchi Menika	Jungle Chena	0 1 24	
	413	Pansalagawahena	V. Mudalihami and another	do.	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	
-11	. T 10	9 .				
	249	Preliminary plan 152.—	-Beligal korale, Kandupita pattuwa			
	243	Ginigaldeniya	Crown	Old garden	1 2 8	
	244	Do.	do.	\mathbf{Forest}	7 0 8	
•		Preliminary plan 292.	-Beligal korale, Kandupita pättuwa		wala.	
	611	Dangollehena	Crown	${f Jungle}$	1 2 9	
		Preliminary plan 5,356.—	-Beligal korale, Kandupita pattuwa	. Situation-Imb	ulgala.	
	5692	Kovilladeniyahena	H. Dingiri Menika	Chena	7 1 7	
		Preliminary plan 395 —1	Beligal korale, Kandupita pattuwa.	Situation-Yatto	obon.	
I	58	Hankoladeniyahena	H. Samara and others	do.	goda. 0 3 3	
Ĵ	58	Samarayagehena	N. M. Dingiri Menika	Cleared land	1 1 23	_
ĸ	58	Do. •	do.	do.	0 3 18	<u> </u>
Ē	58 .	Do.	do.	Chena	0 1 0	****
_		,	No.		J 1	. 1
M	58	Buluwamulatenna	tuation—Yattogoda and Ballapana.			
N	58	Do.	S. Unga and others do.	Chena	1 1 21	
_ <	966	Golluwamulatenna	· Crown		0 0 29 0 1 30 -	
	•00	O OTTE A WILLIAMOUTIN	OTOWN	Oleared land		 } \
				*	(3*	')

.]	Lot.	Name of Land.	Name of Claimant.	Description.		kte: R.	nt. P.	Value of Timber. Rs. c.
	812	Preliminary plan 327.— Kalugahahena or Walapot	Beligal korale, Kandupita pattuwa.	Situation—Ball	apana			200.
		hena	M. Ukkuwa and others	Chena	2	3	14	
		Preliminary plan 309.—	Beligal korale, Kandupita pattuwa.	Situation-Yat	togod	a.		•
	643	Tambannahena	S. Unga and others	Forest and chena	12	2	28	38 78
	644	Uraullekumbura	. Situation—Ballapana. H. Wattuwa and others	Field	0	0	28	_
	645	Tambannahenamukalana	Situation—Asideniya. Crown	Forest	2	1	14	11 75
•	646	Bogahamademukalana	Situation—Ballapana. S. Unga and others	Forest and chena	. 6	3	0	15 30
	959 960 961	Preliminary plan 393 Meddedemiyahena Do. Do.	–Beligal korale, Kandupita pattuwa. K. Kirihami and another Crown do.	Situation—Ya Threshing-floo Forest do.		0	8 34 30	 11 25 1 0
O P	29 29	Preliminary plan 204.—I • Wikotanagalahena Immalawatta	Beligal korale, Kandupita pattuwa. Crown do.	Situation—Kaba Jungle New garden	igomi 3 21		22	_
Z A	57 58	Preliminary plan 382.— Galkadullehena Arambewattehena	Beligal korale, Kandupita pattuwa. W. R. Ukku Banda and others A. Appuhami and another	Situation – Ko Jungle Chena		ala. 3 2		_
В	58	Kuditiyawagawahena	Situation—Delpatdeniya. W. Ukku Banda and others	Chena .	0	2	31	_
$^{\mathrm{C}}_{\mathrm{C}}$	58 58 1	Hunnannedeniyahena Kuditiyawewatta	Situation—Ballapana. Yodapodigekirisaduwa and other do.	s do. do.	2 0		23 23	_

Upset price,—High lands Rs. 10 to Rs. 30 per acre, mud lands Rs. 40 per acre.

Further information regarding these lands can be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Assistant Government Agent, Kégalla.

By His Excellency the Governor's command.

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

No. 176, P. OF S.

. වම් 1894 ක්වූ ජූනි මස 14 වෙනි දින කොළඹ මහසෙකුහාරිස්උන්නාන්සේගේ කන්තෝරුවේදීය.

බරගමු දිසාවේ කැගල්ල දිස්තුික්කුවේ උපඒජන්නඋන්නාන්සේ විසින් වෙහි පහත සදහක්වෙන ආණ්ඩුව සන්තක ඉඩම් ආණ්ඩුවේ නිලස්තුවල පුකාරයට වමී 1894 ක්වූ අගොස්තු මස 9 වෙනි දිනවූ බුහස්පතින්ද සවස 1ට කැගල්ලේ ක්වීවේරියේදී ඉවන්දේසිකර විකුනන්ට නොහොත් මේරන්ට යෙදෙනවා ඇත.

සබරගමු දිසාවේ කැගල්ල පලාතේ බෙලිගල්කෝරලේ කොට්ඨාසයේ පිහිටා හිබෙන බිම් කැබෙලි 44යි. සිනියම 417. බෙලිගල්කෝරලේ ගන්දෙලහපත්තුවේ. තිබෙන සථානය—අලපලාදෙනිය.

			•	ම 3	ත.	6	වල වවිනා
ලනා. 🦼	ඉඩමේ නුම.	අයිනිකම කිය න්නා.	අ න්දම . අ	ţ. O	į, c		කම.
1072	මෑදහේන, පන්වත්තේ හේන	_	•				රැ., ඎ.
	සහ හපුගහමුල හේන	. ඒ, ඩින්ගිරීමැනිකා සහතව <mark>ත්</mark>		7		36	20 0
1073	එම	එම	එම	0	0	10	
1074	එම	එම	එම	0	1	2	
1075	එම	එම	එම	0	2	2	
S 59	නපුගනමුල ලදනිලේ කුඹුර	එ. පින්ව් අප්පුහාම් සහජවත්		0		21	- ,
T 59	හපුග්හමුලගේන		පිල්ලැව	0	1	14.	<i>*</i>
	සිතියම් 394	. නිඛේන සථානය—නවගො	මුව.				•
962	පන්සලගාවාදෙනිය හේන ඉතා	•					
	හො න් ගල් කොටුවහේන	කර්. පන්විරාල සහ තවත්	මුකලාන	1	0	15	2 0
963	ිහල්වලේ මූකලාන ි .	බනිලිව්. මුදලිභාමි ස හ තව න්	එලිකරපු ඉඩම	1	1	39	.—
964	හල්වලේමුකලානේ දෙනිය	එම	ෙනි ය	0	1	13	
$96\overline{5}$	හල්වලේමූකලාන	එම	ව ත් ත	0	0.	7	
4 - 7	සිතියම 5,94	7. නිඉෙන සථානය—බටුවන්	ිත.				
$7626\frac{3}{4}$	කෝන්ගහුමුල වන්න (කලින්						•
	කැ ඇගේගාල්ලේ මූ කලානෙන්	•		_		•	
	කොටසකි)	ආණ්ඩුව ්	අඵත් වන්න	0	3	32	-
	සිතිකම 38	ි. නිබෙන <mark>සථානය—බ</mark> ටුව න්	ದೆ.				
941	කෝන්තහමලකේකු නොහො		•		_	`_	
<u> </u>	ත් කනවිමුල්ලේපිල්ලෑව	නී, ක්රිබයියා සහ නව න්	ව ත් ත	0	0	7	. —
	සිනියම 7.81	5. නිබෙන ස්ථානය <u>—</u> කුරදුවි	వాదు.				
R 413	ගල්මුල්ලේ ගේන	එ. වෙදහාම් සහ කවත්	ිත්න ා	0	1	24	: =

		•				_		a a.	
^		-0-8 m2	·			©	නත.	Ga (ල ව ිටනා
•	නා.	ඉඩමේ නම.	අයිනිකම කියන්නා.	අ න්ද ම.	• (ţ. C	රු. ප		ගම.
		10 H 1 1						ા.	. ca.
	413	ගල්වුල් ලේ ඉස්න	මල්කවලැ හේතුහාමි	ගේ න	.]		12		
	413	පල්ලේපි වියේ හේන	ඒ. ඩින්ශිරිඅප්පු සහ තවත්	එ ම	2	? (12		
	$413\frac{1}{2}$	එම	ඒ. ඩින්හිරිඅප්පු	<i>ක</i> ැලල්	Ç		24	•	
	413	පන්ව ත් තේ හේන	එ. පුන්විමැනිකා	ම ස් න	1		. 34		— ·
X	413	පත්සලගාවා ඉස්න	ුවී. මුදලිහාමි සහ තවත්	එම	_0	1	29		-
	0.40	ස්තියම් 152. මෙලිගල්කෝ	්රලේ කුදුපිටපත්තුවේ. තීමේ	බන සථානය_—	·අ <u>වු</u>	ඉඟු	ඬ. ූ		
	243	න්නගල් දෙනය	ආ ණිඩුව	ි පරන වන්න)]	• 2	8		
•	244	එම	එ ම	මූක ලෘ න	7	C	8		_
		සිනි යම	292. තීබෙන සථානය—අලෑ	වල. •					•
	611	දන්ගොල් ලේ හේන	ආණ්ඩුව . ී	ිකැලේ	1	2	9		 -
			356. තිබෙන ස්ථානඅ—ඉඹු $($						
	5692	කෝවිලදෙනිය හේන • •	එව්. සිත්ගිරීමැනිකා	ලගල. හේන	7	1	7		
•	,,,,,		ටේ. ස්ක්ෂාවමැන්කා		•	•	•	٠	
	=0	ස්තිකම වෙන	කීමෙන සථා නය—සට්මෙට්		^				
1	58	හන්කො ලදෙන්සේ හේන	එව්. සමරා සහ තවත් 🕠	ලෙහ් න	0	3	3		· -
J	58	සමරයාගේ හේන	ු ඇත්. ඇම්. ඩින්හිරිමැනිකා	එලිකරපු			-		
		•		୍ତିଶ ର ୍ଥ	1		32		
K		.එ ම	එම	ී එම	0	3	18		 , ,
L	58	එම	එම -	හේන .	0				
		් නිමෙන සථා	නය—යට්ටෝගොඩ සහ බල්(ලාපාන.					•
	58	බු ඵ වමුල නැන්න	ඇස්. උන්ගා සහ තවත්	ි ලෙස්න	1		21		<u> 77 </u>
	58	එම	• එ ම	එම	0	0	29		نست ٔ
	966	ගොල් ලුවමුල කැන්න	ආණ්ඩුව .	එලිකරපු					24.24
			•	ඉඩම	0	1	3 0	•	
		සිතියම 32	27.	ඉප ාන. .					
	812	කළුග ග ඉහින ඉනාඉහාන්			•				
		ව ල පො ත් තන් හේන	ඇම්. උක්කුවා සහ තවත්	ග න්න	$\hat{m{z}}$	3	14		
		· සිතියම 309.	මබලිගල්කෝරලේ ක දු පිට (පත්තුවේ.				1,11	
		නීමේ	වන සථානය—සව්වෝගොඩ.				,	ç ^	
	643	තම න්නාහේන	ඇස්. උඟ ා සහ තවන්	මූකලාන ස	n				
	V-10		ඇය. උසා සහ සපත	ඉකලාන සර	12	9	2 8	38	78
		තී ෙ	බන සථානය—බල්ලාපාන.			_	20	•	••
(6 44	ඌරාඋල්ලේකුඹුර	එච්. වන්තුවා සහ තවත්	කුඹුර	0	Ò	28	_	_ `
•		, —		ಯೆಟ್ಡಿಂ	·	,	- ,		
	645	කමන්නේ ලක්කන්ට කට ක	ඛන සථානය—ආසිදෙනිය.		0	1	1.4	11	75
. '	940	තමන් නේ සේනේමූකලාන	ආණ්ඩුව	මූකලාන	Z	1	14	11	19
		තීම	බන සථානය—බල්ලාපාන.				·		
(646	බෝග හම් ම් කලාන	ඇස්. උතෘ සහ තවත්	මූකලාන සහ		_	_		
			· · ·	ඉග් න	6	3	0	15	30
		393	හී. නිඛෙන ස ථ ානය—යටගු	`ල්∙ු	_	_	_		
	959	මැද ෙද නිලස් හේන	ඉක්. කිරිහාමි සහ තවත්	කමන	Ö	0	8		-
,	960	එම	ආණ්ඩුව	මූකලාන		3			25
į	961	50	එම	ූ ව ීම	0	1	30	1	0
^	20	. සිනියම 204			0	4	00		
	29	ව්කොටනශුලසේන •	ආණ්ඩුව	කැලල් .	3	1		_	•
P	29	ඉම්මලවක්ත	එම	අවත්වත්ත	21	3	Z1	• -	-
• 7	57	සතයම 362.	ු කිබෙන සුථානය—කොබ්බ	[වල.■			*		
· Z	Ji	ගල්කඩුල්ලේ ඉහ්න	ඩබ්ලිව්. ආර්. උක්කුබන්ඩා		Λ	, .	10		
A	50	ude all and and and and and	සහ තවත්	කැලල්	0	3			• ,
A	58		එ. අප්පු කාම සහ නව න්	ලග් න	,0	2	2		•
_		තීමේද	ා සථානය— දෙල්පන් දෙනි≆.				•		*
В	58	කුඩ්රියාවගාවා ඉහින	ඩම්ලිව්. උක්කුබන්බා සහ	* ~	_				
•			ු තුව ත්	එම	0	2 3	ΣL,		
~	-0	තීමේ	ඛන සථානය—බල්ලාපාන.						,
C	98	හුන්නන් ම න් ඉදනි යේ හේන	ගොදමප්ඩි ඉග් නිරිසාදුවා		0	• •			
^	501		සහ තවත්	එම		1 2			•
C.	$58\frac{1}{2}$	කුඩිට්යාවේ වන්න්	<u>එ</u> ම	එම	0	0. 2	ð		

ම්ලකර තිබෙන්නේ ගොඩබිම් අක්කරයක් රුපියල් 10කිට 30 දක්වාද, කුඹුරු අක්කරයක් රුපියල් 40 බැහිනුත්ය.

ඉවම ඉඩම් ගැණි උරුමවාසිකමක් ඇති කෙනෙක් කැගල්ලේ කුච්චේරිය ඉදිරිපිටට පැමින විකිනෙන දවසට හෝ ඊට මන්නෙන් හමුන්ගේ උරුමවාසිකම් කියාසිපින්ට ඕනෑය.

මෙම ඉඩම් ගැණි වැඩිදුර කාරණ සර්වේසර්ජනරාල් උන්තාන්සේගෙන්ද, විකිනීමේ කොන්දේසිය ගැණ කාරණ කැගල්ලේ ආණ්ඩුවේ උපඑජන්කඋන්නාන්සේ ඉනන්ද දුනගන්ට පුළුවන.

ආණ්ඩුකාර උතුමානන්වහන්සේගේ ආඥුවලෙස,

ඊ. නොඑල් වාකර්, මහසෙකුතාරීස් වම්න. No. 177, P. OF S.

Colonial Secretary's Office,

Colombo, June 25, 1894.

T noon on Tuesday, September 4, 1894, the Government Agent of the Province of Sabaragamuwa will put up A T noon on Tuesday, September 4, 1894, the Government Agent of the Trovince of Countries of Cou Government.

Two allotments of land in Udapattuwa of Kuruwiti korale.

70 7				001
Prel	Im	inary	nlan	321.
		mint.	Prom	~

•			* -		Extent.
Lot.	Name of Land.	Village.	Name of Applicant.	Description.	A. R. P.
683	Bandarahena	Ketaliyanpalle	H. D. S. Dissanayake	Chena	8 0 0
•	•	Prelim	inary plan 432.		
1123	Annakkagalahena	Ketaliyanpalle	A. R. Dole	${f Jungle}$	4 1 20

Upset price,—Rs. 10 per acre.

Further information respecting these lands may be obtained from the Surveyor-General, and respecting the conditions of sale from the Government Agent, Ratnapura. By His Excellency the Governor's command,

E. NOEL WALKER Colonial Secretary.

No 177, P. OF S.

වම් 1894 ක්වූ ජුනි මස 25 වෙනි දින කොළඹ මහසෙකුතාරිස්උන්තාන්සේගේ කන්තෝරුවේදීය.

ුණ්ඩුවට අයිති මෙහි පහත සඳහන්වෙන බිම්කොටස් වීමී 1894 ක්වූ සැප්තැම්බර් මස $m{4}$ වෙනි දින අතරු අට වාද දවල් සබරගමුවේ එජන්තඋන්තාන්සේ විසින් රත්නපුරේ කච්චේරියේදී ආණ්ඩුවේ නියෝගවල පුකාරයව විකුනන්ට යෙදෙනවා ඇත.

සබරගමු දිසාවේ කුරුව්විකෝරලේ උඩපන්තුවේ පිහිටි ඉඩම්කච්චි දෙකක්.

සිනියම 321. ගම—කැවලියන්පල්ල.

		•	·	මහත.
ඉතා.	ඉඩමේ න ම .	ඉල්ඵම්කාරයා.	අඤම.	අ. රු. ප <i>.</i>
683	බන් ඩාර මන්න	එච්. ඕ. ඇස්. ඕසානායක	ගේ න	8 0 0
1123	අන්නක්කා ගලගේන	සිතියම 432. ඒ. ආර්. ඩෝල්	කැලැව	4 1 20

අක්කරයක් රුපියල් 10 බැගින්.

මෙම ඉඩම් ගැණ වැඩිදුර කාරණ සර්වේසර්ජනරාල්උන්නාන්සේමගන්ද, විකිනීමේ **මකාන්ඉද්සිය** ගැණි කාරණ සබරගමු දිසාවේ ආණුඩුවේ ඒජන්තඋන්නාන්සේගෙන්ද දුනගන්ට පුළුවන.

ආණ්ඩ්කාර උතුමා නන්වහන්සේගේ ආසුවලෙස,

ඊ. නොඑල් වාකර්, මහසෙකුතාරිස් වම්න.

NOTICES UNDER THE FOREST ORDINANCE.

HEREAS by the sixth section of Ordinance No. 10 of 1885 it is enacted that whenever it is proposed to constitute any land a reserved forest, notice thereof shall be published in the Government Gazette-

(a) specifying, as nearly as possible, the situation and limits of such land;

(b) declaring that it is proposed to constitute such land a reserved forest

(c) naming an officer (hereinafter called "The Forest Settlement Officer"), who shall be appointed by the Governor, to inquire into and determine the existence, nature, and extent of any rights claimed by, or alleged to exist in favour of, any person in or over any land comprised within such limits, and any claims relating to the practice within such limits of chena cultivation, and to deal with the same as provided in chapter II. of the said Ordinance:

And whereas it is proposed to constitute certain land situated in the Gabadagama of Eratne, in the Uda

Pattuwa of the Kuruwiti kóralé, as hereinafter defined, a reserved forest:

Notice is hereby given (1) that it is proposed to constitute the said land, as situated within the limits defined in the schedule hereunder written, a reserved forest; (2) that Charles Stewart Vaughan, Esq., is the Officer appointed the Forest Settlement Officer in respect thereof:—

SCHEDULE.

Lands situate in the Gabadagama of Eratne, in the Uda Pattuwa of Kuruwiti korale, Ratnapura District, described in preliminary plan 459, and bounded as follows:—

North, from the junction of the Magala and Yatiyawala village boundaries, along the boundary between the Atulugam korale in Three Korales in the Kegalla District and the Kuruwiti korale in the District of Ratnapura to its junction with the Central Province boundary.

East, the Central Province boundary up to Benasamanalagala trigonometrical station.

South, from the Benasamanalagala trigonometrical station along the northern boundary of the Gilimale

Gabadagama and the Ekneligoda village.

West, the Kudugal-ela as far as its junction with the Kuruganga, thence along the Kuruganga to the Ganimeela, thence along the Endiriyanwala and Yatiwala village boundaries as far as the limit of Magala village, exclusive ela, thence along the Endiriyanwala and Yatiwala village boundaries as far as the limit of Magala village, exclusive of the following lots within the above-stated boundaries, and more particularly described in the following title plans, viz.:—Title plans 114,709, 151,540, 114,632, 99,756, 99,757, 107,421, 112,968, 112,972, 117,888, 99,586, 112,970, 112,971, 112,973, 121,041, 99,758, 119,966, and 99,535, and the following lots in preliminary plan 459: 11, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 34, 39, 41, 43, 50, 51, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 65, 67, 68, 69, 70, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, 114, 115, 116, 117, 118, 122, 123, 124, 125, 127, 128, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134, 135, 136, 137, 138, 140, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 147, 149, 150, 151, 152, 153, 154, 155, 156, 158, 159, 160, 161, 162, 163, 165, 167, 168, 169, 170, 172, 173, 174, 175, 176, 177, 178, 179, 180, 181, 182, 183, 184, 190, 191, 193, 194, 195, 196, 197, 198, 203, 204, 205, 206, 207, 208, 209, 210, 211, 213, 214, 215, 216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 225, 226, 227, 228, 222, 230, 231, 232, 233, 234, 238, 239, 241, 242, 243, 244, 245, 246, 247, 248, 249, 251, 252, 253, 254, 256, 257, 258, 261, 262, 263, 266, 267, 268, 273, 274, 275, 276, 278, 280, 281, 282, 283, 284, 285, 286, 287, 288, 289, 290, 291, 292, 293, 295, 296, 297, 298, 299, 300, 302, 303, 313, 319, 320, 323, 324, 326, 331, 332, 334, 335, 336, 337, 338, 340, 344, 345, 346, 347, 348, 349, 350, 351, 357, 358, 360, 361, 362, 364, 365, 366, 367, 368, 369, 370, 371, 372, 374, 376, 377, 379, 380, 381, 382, 383, 384, 386, 387, 388, 389, 391, 393, 394, 398, 400, 402, 404, 406, 407, 408, 409, 410, 412, 413, 415, 416, 419, 421, 423, 424, 425, 426, 427, 428, 429, 439, 409, 410, 412, 413, 415, 416, 419, 421, 423, 424, 425, 426, 427, 428, 499, 439, 409, 409, 410, 412, 413, 415, 416, 41 537, 538, 541, 542, and 543.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office Colombo, June 27, 1894.

E. NOEL WALKER. Colonial Secretary.

MISCELLANEOUS DEPARTMENTAL NOTICES.

• .		
PUBLICATIONS FOR SALE at the Government Record Office, Colombo:—	Administration Reports (annual), bound Rs volumes, from Rs. 7.50 to 10	0
LEGISLATIVE ENACTMENTS.	Do. single reports each 4 pp. 0 Sessional Papers, bound volumes, from Rs. 7 50 to 10	0
Volume I. Rs. c.	Do. single papers each 4 pp. 0 Customs Tariff each 0	
All Proclamations, Regulations, and Ordinances	Customs Annual Returns , 1	0
in force in the Colony on the 12th day of January, 1870: being the "New Edition"	Customs Regulations ,, 0 Census of Ceylon, 1891 ,, 20	25 0
of Enactments authorized by Ordinances	Itinerary of Ceylon Roads:—	·
Nos. 6 of 1867 and 5 of 1869each 15 '0	Part I.—Principal Roads, Second Edition	٠. ٨
Volume II,	(1881), without Map , 2 Part II.—Minor Roads, Second Edition	v
Part From To	(1888), with Map ,, 8 Do. do. without Map ,, 3	0
1 6 of 1870 9 of 1871 1 0	District Manuals:	U
2 10 of 1871 — 28 of 1871 ", 1 0	Mannár, by the late W. J. S. Boake, c.c.s ,, 1	0
3 1 of 1872 — 7 of 1873	Uva, by H. White, c.c.s ,, 2 Nuwara Eliya, by C. J. R. LeMesurier, c.c.s. ,, 5	50 0
5 1 of $1874 - 3$ of 1875 $\frac{9}{1}$ 1 0	Register of Books printed in Ceylon and regis-	
6 4 of 1875 — 3 of 1876	tered under Ordinance No. 1 of 1885 : Part I., 1885-88 , 1	25
8 5 of 1877 — 8 of 1877 , 0 50	Part II., 1888-92	40
9 9 of 1877 — 23 of 1877	Epitome of Government Minutes, Circulars, and Notifications, 1849-71 ,, 1	0
11 1 of 1879 — 15 of 1879 ", 1 0	Do. do. 1872-87 1	0
Volume III.	Tables for calculating Pensions under the Widows' and Orphans' Pension Fund ,, 0	25
1 1·of 1880 — 17 of 1880 ;, 1 0	Dr. Müller's Report on the Inscriptions of	
2 1 of 1881 — 18 of 1881 ", 1 $\overset{\circ}{0}$	Ceylon :— Text 5	0
3 1 of 1882 — 16 of 1882	Plates 5	ŏ
5 19 of 1884 — 11 of 1885 ", 1° 0	Return of Architectural and Archæological Remains and other Antiquities in Ceylon , 1	20
• Volume IV.	Reports on the Archæological Survey of	
1 12 of 1885 — 8 of 1886 ,, 1 0	Ceylon :— Kégalla District 6	0
$2 \dots 9 \text{ of } 1886 - 7 \text{ of } 1887 \dots 1 0$	Anurádhapura (I.) ", 0	50
3 8 of 1887 — 2 of 1888	Do. (II.) , 1	0 60
W7.7	Do. (IV.) ", 1	5
Volume V. 1 16 of 1889 — 8 of 1890 , 0 85	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	20 50
$2 \dots 9 \text{ of } 1890 - 1 \text{ of } 1891 \dots , 0 45$	Pybus's Mission to Kandy ,, 0	50
4 9 of 1909 99 of 1909 0 001	The Maháwansa:— Original Páli Text, Part I , 7	* 50
Special Editions of the following, with Tables	Do. Part II, 7	50
of Sections and Indices, stitched in paper	Wijesinha's English Translation of Part II., with Turnour's Translation of Part I, 7	50
cover, are obtainable as follows:— The Penal Code (2 of 1883), 2 0	Sinhalese Translation, Part I ,, 5	0
The Criminal Procedure Code (3 of 1883) , 3 0	Nitinighanduwa, English , 5	0
The Courts Ordinance (1 of 1889) ,, 0 50 The Civil Procedure Code (2 of 1889) ,, 5 0	Do. Sighalese ,, 1	0
The Penal Code, in Sighalese of Tamil ,, 1 0	Rámanathan's Reports ,, 22 Report on Brown Scale, or Bug, on Coffee ,, 1	0
The Criminal Procedure Code, in Sinha- lese or Tamil , 1 50	Saddharmalankaraya ,, 2	. 0
Books of Ordinances passed in the following	Dravidian Comparative Grammar ,, 13 Governors' Addresses, 1833–77, 2 vols. ,, 10	. 0
Sessions (old Quarto Edition) can be had, price Re. 1 each:—1836, 1842, 1843, 1846,	Reports of the Temple Lands Commissioners, 1857 to 1865 0	50
1848, 1849, 1850, 1851, 1854, 1855, 1856,	Papers relating to Buddhist Temporalities, 1876 ,, 1	ő
1857, 1860, 1863-4, 1866-7, 1867-8, 1869-70, 1870-1, 1872-3, 1873.	Lepidoptera of Ceylon, in 13 Parts with coloured plates each Part 14	50
Single copies of Ordinances in English (and,	The Green-Scale Bug in connection with the	-
where translations have been published, in Sinhalese and Tamil) may be obtained	Cultivation of Coffee.—Observations by Mr. E. Ernest Green (illustrated) each 1	0
for 5 cents for every 8 pages octavo or	Clough's Sinhalese-English Dictionary, 20	ŏ
portion thereof. Municipal Councils' Ordinance, No. 7 of 1887 ,, 0 50	Regulations under the Merchandise and Trade Marks Ordinance of 1888 0	15 :
Copies of Government Minutes, Notifications,	Rules of the Public Service Mutual Guarantee	
and Regulations, &c. (where available), for every 8 pages octavo or 4 pages quarto, 0 5	Association ,, 0 Glossary of Native Words occurring in Official	10
	Documents , 0	50`
Colonial Office Lists (annual) " 4 0	Catalogue of Páli, Sinhalese, and Sanscrit Manuscripts in Temple Libraries ,, 0	50
Jeylon Civil Lists (annual) , 1 0	Alwis's Descriptive Catalogue of Sanscrit, Pali,	•
Jeylon Blue Books (annual) ,, 10 0	and Sinhalese Works ,, 5	Q

	A Review of Max Müller	's	Rs.	c.
Dhammapada	•••	٠.	each 1	50
Páli Grammar	•••		., 5	0
Extracts from the "	Pújáwaliya" (Sinhalese)	٠.	,, 0	7 5

Application for any publication in the above List should be made to the Government Recordkeeper, at the Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, and should be accompanied

by payment in advance.
Payment should be made by Post Office Order, Government Draft, or uncrossed Cheque on a Colombo Bank.

Stamps will not be received in payment.

H. WHITE, Acting Government Recordkeeper.

April 26, 1894.

THE CEYLON GOVERNMENT GAZETTE is published every Friday at the Government Printing Office.

The Subscription, Rs. 3 per quarter, is payable in advance, and can only be booked to terminate at the end of a quarter.

Single copies, when available, 25 cents each.

Charges for Advertisements, payable in advance.

•	J	ĸs.	C,
A column		7	50
Two-thirds of a column	•••	5	0
Half a column	•••	4	0
For small notices not exceeding	20 lines	2	50

Second and third insertions (consecutive), two-thirds and one-half, respectively, of the above rates. Cheques on outstation Banks must include usual Bank commission.

Advertisements should reach the Government Printer before noon on Thursday.

Back Numbers and Volumes of THE SUPREME COURT CIRCULAR (publication of which was discontinued on December 31, 1891) are also on sale at the Government Printing Office, as follows:—

•	•	Rs.	C.
Volume I		. 3	25
Volumes II. to IX., each	••	. 6	50
Separate Numbers:—			
To former Subscribers, each		. *0	12
To non-Subscribers each		0	95

For all other Government Publications application should be made to the Recordkeeper, at the Government Record Office, Colombo.

Geo. J. A. Skeen, Government Printer.

THE "KEW BULLETIN" of miscellaneous informa-L tion is issued as an occasional publication from the

Royal Gardens at Kew.

It contains notes on the economic products of plants which have been made the subject of particular study and investigation at Kew, and it is intended to be a means of

communication to persons interested in Botanical subjects and products in India and the Colonies.

The "Bulletin" is published by Messrs. Eyre and Spottiswoode, East Harding street, London, E.C., and may be obtained directly from them or through any bookseller.

Price 2d. per copy; by post, United Kingdom, 2½d., Foreign Countries and Colonies, 3d. per copy.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, April 26, 1894.

POST OFFICE has been opened at Gammaduwa beyond Rattota, in the District of Mátalé, on the 18th instant. Mails close at the General Post Office, Colombo, at 5.45 P.M.

Money Orders will be issued and paid at this office.

F. W. VANE Acting Postmaster-General.

Charge or rate in

Postmaster-General's Office, Colombo, June 18, 1894.

PECIFICATION (under Chapter VII. of Ordinance, No. 23 of 1889) showing the allotments of land (including Crown land) to be benefited by the Process American Company of the Crown land) to be benefited by the Bu-ela Anicut and Channel; the names, so far as they can be ascertained, of the proprietors of such allotments; and the amounts due upon each allotment.

Amount in respect of which the allotments are liable, Rs. 4,350.39.

Preliminary plan 1,886.

No.	Name of Allotment or Field.	Name of Proprietor.		rvey rence.		xtent. R. P.	inter upkeep per	est and p at Re. I acre.
1	Gedaragawakumbura	Nandina	T	833	• 0	3 22	0	89.
2	Do.	Pina	Ĵ	833	2	3 30	ž	
2 3	Do.	' Nandina	K	833	$\overline{0}$	0 14	ō	9
4 .	Helambagahamulakumbura	Philipappu Vidane	$\widehat{\mathbf{L}}$	833	Ŏ	0 8	ň	Š
5	Do.	Pina	N	833	1	3 17	. ĭ	86
6	Pallepattekumbura	·Nandina	Ō	833	1	1 30		44
7	$\mathbf{D_{0}}$	Tenna · *	$\check{\mathbf{P}}$	833	$\bar{0}$	2 9	ō.	$\tilde{56}$.
8	Baddekotuwa	Manikkuwaheneya ·	$\bar{\mathbf{Q}}$	833	1	0 34	Ĭ	22
9	Pallepottekumbura	William Keegel	$ m ilde{R}$	833	1	0 29	ī	19
10	\cdot D ₀ .	Pina	S	833	*0	2 28	ō	68
11	Akunawa	Nandina	\mathbf{T}	833	0	1 1	Ŏ	26
12	Helambagahamulakumbura	Mudalihami	U	833	0	2 33		71
13	Ďo.	Ukkunaide .	7	833	0	0 37		24
14 . '	Akunawe Ambagahakumbura	do.	\mathbf{X}	833	Ó	3 31		95
15	Baddekotuwa or Bogahakumbura	Philippuappu Vidane	${f Y}$	833	0	2 0		50 '
16	Baddekotuwekumbura	Dingirinachchire	${f Z}$	833	0	3 19	\ 0	87
17	Do.	Appunaide, late Vidane	\mathbf{A}	834	. 1	2 5	1	54
18	Baddekotuwekumbura	Rannaide and others	${f B}$	834	` 1	2 8		55
19	Pahala Akunawekumbura	do.	\mathbf{c}	834	0	2 35	0	72
20	Baddekotuwekumbura	Ungaheneya	\mathbf{D}	834	1	1 14	1	34 .
21	Akunawekumbura	Kiraheneya	${f E}$	834	- 1	1 17	1	36
22	Do.	Shroff	${f F}$	834	0	27	0	5 5
23	Do.	Appuham	$\cdot \cdot \mathbf{G}$	834	0	28	0	55
24	Do.	Siriya	H	834	0	2 0	0 :	50
		,					(4)

	No.	Name of Allotment or Field.	Name of Proprietor.		rvey rence			xte	ent.	int upke <u>p</u>	ere ere ep er	r rate lity fo st and at Re. acre.	r
		· ·	_			•							
	25	Akunawekumbura	Ranaheneya	I	834		1	0				20	
	26	$\mathbf{Do}_{\mathbf{c}}$	Kapuruhami	\mathbf{J}_{-}	834		0		19			62	
	27	Do.	Ranaheneya •.	,K	834		0	2				65	
	28 •	Do.	Dingiri Nachchire	\mathbf{L}	834		0	2				65	
	29	Do.	' . do	M	834		0		0			50	
	30	Budugepitiyekumbura	do.	\mathbf{N}	834	,	. 0		3i			95	
	31	Asweddumepinkumbura	Vihare	O	834		4	0				19	
	32	Asweddume-elakumbura	Palli Adime and others	\mathbf{P}	834		2	1	8			3 0	
	33	Pahala Ilukpitiyakumbura	Kiraheneya *	\mathbf{Q}	834		7	3	0		-	7 5	
	34	Pahala Ilukpitiyawewa	đo.	${f R}$	834		1	0			1	17	
•	*35 ·	Ihala Ilukpitiya	do.	\mathbf{s}	834		3	2	22		3	64	
	36	Do.	Babappuhami	${f T}$	834		1	0	23		1	15	
	37	Do.	Ran Naide and others	\mathbf{U}	834		1	1	20		1	38	
•	38	$\overline{\mathbf{Do}}$	Dingiri Nachchire	• V	834		3	0	34		3	22	
	39	$\overline{\mathbf{Do}}$	Babappuhami	· W	834		1	0	39		1	25	
	40	Kawudawatta Gambirigaha-	,										
	•	kumbura	Anggangale Unguhami	\mathbf{Y}	834		0	1	6		0	29	
	41	Do.	do.	\mathbf{Z}	834		Ò	0	32		0	20	
	$\tilde{42}$	Kawudawatta Bogahamulla-						-	•				
		kumbura •	Wedaralage Punchi Appu	· A	835		0	0	15		0	10	
	\bullet^{43}	Kawudawatta Kamatagawa-	Wouldings a mioni asppu		000		•	٠					
	• 10	kumbura	Gangoda Punchirala	\mathbf{B}	835		0	0	5		0	4	
	44	Kawudawatta Bogahamulla-	·				·	·	•		•	-	
	11	kumbura	Wedaralage Punchi Appu	C	835		0	꼑	23		0 -	40	
	45	Kawudawatta Kamatagawa-	"Cuaranage I unom 11ppu	•	000		٠	•			•		
	,10	kumbura	Gangoda Punchirala	D	835		0	2	16		o .	60	
	4 6 ·	Kawudawatta Pahalapaiya	Gangoda Kirietana	$\widetilde{\mathbf{E}}$	835		ĭ		34		ĭ		
	47	Kawudawatta Hakuranne-	Cangoda Kirietana	-	000			-	01		•	••	,
	7.	welahena	Gangoda Punchietanna	F	835		0	0	7		0	5	•
	48	Kawudawatta Hakurane-	Cangoda i unomevanna		000		v	U	•		v	U	
	30	welahenakumbura	· do.	G	835	•	0	9	23		0	65	
	49 •	Kawudawatta Pillewelakumbura		H	835		ĭ		26		ĭ		
	50		Angangare Ungunami	11	000			4	40			01	
	อบ	Kawudawatta Bamunage-	Commanda Windows	+	835		Λ	Λ	10		Λ	8	
	51	kumbum	Gangoda Kirietana .	J	835		0		12 11		0 0 :		
		Kawudawatta Pahalawela	do.	·K	835		ñ	2	11		0		
	52	Do.	Gangoda Sohendirala	T.	999		U	4	U	,	U	UU	
			•	rı	otal	•••	50	9	17	6	<u> </u>		
		į.	•	1	otai	•••	อฮ	Ð	H	0			
									_	-		_	

Kurunégala Kachchéri, March 7, 1894.

J. O'K. Murry, r Government Agent.

Total Quantities of the following Articles Exported from the Ports of Colombo and Galle during the under-mentioned periods.

COLOMBO. 1884. S. Saratore 23/6 rss. Chindwara	•	1	,	. z	$\overline{\Gamma}$																	Por						
Ses. Saratove 23/6 Ses. Warsha 23/6 Ses. Warsha 23/6 Ses. Pekin 25/6 Ses. Pekin 25/6 do 126126 - 126126 - 12616 do 22/6 Ses. Windobona 25/6 do 22/6 Trieste, &c 18990 18990 1680 134352 77 Sec. 29257 108 177	Vessels.	Date of Clearing.		Pantation Coffee.	1 .	Тев.	Cacao.	Trunk Cinchons.	Branch Cinchona.	Cinchons Chips.	Cocoanuts.	Coppersh.	Cocoanut Oil.	Cocoantt Poonse.	Cinnamon.	Cinnamon Oil,	Citronella. Oil.	Carda- moms.	Ebony.	Plumbago.	Coir Rope.	Coir Junk.		Coir Fibre.	Sapan- wood.	Orchilla,	Fibre.	Horns,
88. Sarstove 23/6 Calcuta 23/6 Bombay, &c. — 18808 — 17516 — 1000 298 — 1000 298 — 1000 298 — 19516 Calcuta — 2400 298 — 19516 Calcuta — 25/6	COLOMBO.		•	e₩t.	ewt.	1b.	ewt.	lb.	lb.	lb.	No.	ewt.	ewt.	ewt.		0,		115								-	_ -	
Ss. Bridan 25/6 Calcutta 25/6 Londom 681776 100 58. Rewa 25/6 Go 22/6 do 25/6 Go 22/6 do 25/6 Trieste, &c 18990	ss. Saratove	. 23/6	Odessa	_	_		_		_	_	1	_						ĺ	ewt.	ewt.		cwt.	cwt.	cwt.	cwt.	16.	wt. c	wt.
Ss. Bridan 25/6 Calcutta 25/6 Londom 681776 100 58. Rewa 25/6 G	ss. Uningwara ss. Wardha	23/6	Mauritius	_	1		Į.				1	_	_	-	_				_		1						_	
88. Pekin 25/6 do	ss. Eridan	25/6 25/6	China Calcutta	12		450			1		-	_		-	_	-	1		[]	ſ		1 1			1	- 1	_	<u>_</u> ;
SS. Vindobona 26/6 Trieste, &c 222 — 940169 SS. Vindobona 26/6 Trieste, &c 2 — 940169 SS. Vindobona 21/6 Trieste, &c.	ss. Rewa	25/6	40			681776	100		ا ـــ ا		-	_	_	_		1	i	ı	1 1	i	_		258]		1		
GALLE. Ss. Virawa 19/6 Bombay 26475 1080 134352 77 82 - 3257 - 103 - 17	88. Chancellor	26/6	do	222		940169			-	-	57362	_	6967	1		'	i					1 1				-	-	
SS. Virawa 19/6 Bombay — — 26475 — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —		1	,			10000	_		-		-,	_	4796	, —	15000	-		ľ	-		-	-	-	-		7	=	
GALLE. Ss. Virawa 19/6 Bombay — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —			•								•					ļ 									1			
SS. Virawa 19/6 Bombay	_					ļ									:													
SS. Virawa 19/6 Bombay 26475 1080 134352 77 108 - 17 - 17 17 17 - 17 17 17 17 - 17 - 17 - 17 - 17 -							j					Ì						•								•		
GALLE. 88. Virawa 19/6 Bombay 26475			•									i											1			1		
ss. Virawa 19/6 Bombay — — — 26475 — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —							. }	•				*	-15		•													•
1080 134352 82 - 3257 - 103 - 17	GALLE.		-				l	•					•									.						
1080 134352 82 - 3257 - 103 - 17 -	ss. Virawa	19/6	Bombay		_							ļ				٠,												
	ss. Ulysses	22/6	London		1 1		i			-		. 1			_		 134352		l [9957	-	-			_
							ĺ				, ,		•		ļ		a						0201	_	103	-	17	-
		1	1	<u> </u>		l	· _ !																			• •		

Importation of Rice from Indian Ports during the above periods.

TO COLOIBO:—

From Calcutta ... Bags \$6,799

Bombay ... , 525

Pooree ... , 600

Southern India ... , 54,637

GALLE:—
From Calcutta ... Bags 3,07
Southern India... , 13,40

Total ... Bags 16,478.

Customs, Colombo, June 28, 1894.

Acting Principal Collector.

LAND ACQUISITION NOTICES.

AVING been duly directed by the Governor, with the advice of the Executive Council, acting under the provisions of "The Land Acquisition Ordinance of 1876," section 6, to take order for the acquisition of the following lands, required for a public purpose, namely, for the railway extension to Kurunégala, to wit:—

		Prel	iminary plan 1,982. Village-1	Bandawa.			
		•	,		E	xt	ent.
Ι	ot.	Name of Land.	Description.	Name of Claimant.	A.	R	. Р.
\mathbf{s}	983	Migahamulawatta	Cocoanut garden	Andappapull y	0	0	7.25
		Prelim	inary plan 1,983. Village—Ko	handapola.			
\mathbf{T}	983	Paranawatta	Cocoanut garden	Mudiyanse and others	0	0	
\mathbf{U}	983	Galawatta	do •	Ranhami and others	0	0	3.75
		· Prel	liminary plan 1,984. Village—I	Naviliya			
V	983	Wedadeniyakumbnra	$\mathbf{P}\mathbf{addy}$	Mutuwa and others	0	0	
W		Wedadeniyahena	Chena	do.	0		34.75
\mathbf{X}	983	Do.	do.	Nindawatte Hitapu Dureya	0	1	29.75
		$\mathbf{\hat{P}_{re}}$	liminary plan 1,985. Village-	Talkota.			•
Y	983	Talkota	Öld paddy land	Muhalihami and others	0		12.50
\boldsymbol{z}	983	Do.	do.	do.	0	0	27.50
A	984	· Do.	Owita and chena	do.	0	0	37.75
\mathbf{B}	984	Galkumbura	Chena	W. Nayide	0	()	7
\mathbf{C}	984	Dangollehena	do.	Punchi Nayde and others	0	()	2 ·50
		Preli	minary plan 1,987. Village - P	otuhera.			
E	984	Bogahamulakadewatta	Cocoanut garden	E. M. Tampi	0	0	19
\mathbf{r}	984	Pitiyapillewa	Chena	Dingiriamma and Ukkurala	0	0	7.75
		- -	minary plan 1,988. Village - T	Talkota. •			
G	984	Kulakumbura	$\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{a}\mathbf{d}\mathbf{d}\mathbf{y}}$	Mudalihami, late Arachchi	0	0	4.20
\mathbf{H}	984	Do.	* do.	do.	0	0	3.25
I	984	Amu nakumbura	do.	* do.	0	0	4.75
J	984	Do.	do.	_	0	0	2.50
· K	984	Do.	do.		0	0	3
\mathbf{L}	984	Do.	do	do.	0	0	2.50
		Prelin	minary plan 1,989. Village—P	otuhera.			
M	984	Dehigahamulawatta	Cocoanut garden	Mudalihami Korala	0	0	6.75
·N	984	Dangahamulawatta	Chena		0	0	0.25
O	984	Wewagawawatta	Cocoanut garden	Kiri Bandirala and others	0	0	1

I hereby give public notice, as required by section 7, that the Government proposes to take possession of the lands.

All persons interested in the aforesaid lands are hereby required to appear personally or by agent before me at the Kurunégala Kachchéri on July 17, 1894, at 1 o'clock P.M., and to state the nature of their respective interests in the lands, and the amount and particulars of their claims to compensation for such interests.

Kurunégala Kachchéri, June 27, 1894. ÆLIAN A. KING, Acting Government Agent.

ම් 1876 ක්වූ අවුරුද්දේ නොම්මර 3ගේ ආශුපතුගේ හන්වෙනි වනන්තියේ පුකාරයට ආණ්ඩුවේ කටයුත්ත කට, ඒතම් :—කුරුණැගල දුම්රිය නොහොත් රේල්පාර දික්කිරීමපිණිස මෙහිපහත සඳහන්වෙත ඉඩම් ලබාගැණීමසඳහා කුියාකරණ පිණිස "වමී 1876යේ ඉඩම් ලබාගැණීමේ ආඥපතුයේ" හවෙනි කාණ්ඩයේ කර තිබෙන පංශාර්තුවල පුකාරයට කාරක මන්තුිසභාවේ මන්තුණිය ඇතුව උතුමානන්වහත්සේගෙන් නිසිආකෘර මට අණිලැබී තිබේ, ඒ ඉඩම් ගම් :—

	,	සිතියම $oldsymbol{1,982.}$ ගම $oldsymbol{}$ බාන්දුව.		_	
	-	* *		මහත.	
ඉතා.	ඉඩමේ නම.	අයිනි ක ම කිය න්නා.	අ න්ද ම.	අ. රු. ප.	
S 983	මීගහමුලවත්ත	අන්දප්පා <u></u> ුල්ලේ	පො ල්වත්ත	0 0 7.25	
T 983 U 983	පරණිවනත ගලව ත් ත	සිනියම 1,983. ගම—කො.ශ්දවොල. මුදියන්සේ සහ තවත් රන්හාමි සහ තවත්	එම එම	0 0 3 0 0 3.75	
V 983 W983 X 983	වැදදෙනියකුඹුර වැද ඉදනිය ඉහින එම	සිතියම 1,984. ගම—නයිලිය. මුත්තුවා සහ හවත් මුත්තුවා සහ තවත් හින්දේවත්තේ හිටපු දුරයා	කුඹුර හේන කුඹුර	0 0 2 0 0 34·75 0 1 29·75	
Y 983 Z 983 A 984 B 984 C 984	තල්කොට මුදලිහාම ද එම එම ගල්කුඹුර දෙන්ගොල්ලේෂෙන	සිනියම 1,985. තල්කොට. හො තවන් එම එම ඩබ්ලිව්. නයිදේ පුංචීනයිදේ සහ තවන්	පුරන්කුඹුර එම ඕවිට සහ හේන හේන එම	0 0 12·50 0 0 27·50 0 0 37·75 0 0 7 0 0 2·50	

නො.	ඉඩමේ නම.	•	අසිතිකම කියන්නා. සිතිකම 1,987. ගම—ලපාතුෂැර.	අන්දම.		ණත. රු. ප.
E 984 F 984	බෝග්ගමුල කැබේ පිටියේ පිල්ලෑව	වන්ත		පොල්වත්ත ගෝන		0 -1 9 0 7·75
			සිතීයම් 1,988. ගම—කල්කොට.			
G 984 H 984 I 984 J 984 K 984 L 984	කුලකු ඹුර එම අමුනකුඹුර එම එම එම	,	මුදලිහාම් හිටපු ආරච්චිල එම එම එම එම එම	කුඹුර එම එම • එම එම එම	0 (0 (0 (0 (0 (0 4·75 0 2·50 0 3
M984 N 984 O 984	දෙතිගහමුලවත්ත දත්ගහමුලවත්ත වැවගාවාවත්ත	.,	සිතියම 1,989. ගම—පොතුහැර. මුදලිභාම කෝරාල එම කිරිමන්ඩ්රාල සහ නවත්	පොල්වන් ත හේන පොල්වන්ත	0 0 0 0 0 0	0.25

එබැවින් ඉඩම් අසිතිකර ගැණීමව ආණ්ඩුවේ කල්පනාව නිබෙනබව පොදුජනයාට දුනගැන්ම සඳහා හත්වෙනි වගන්නියේ ඕනෑකර නිබෙන හැටියට මෙයින් දුනුම්දෙම්.

• ඉහතකි ඉඩම්වලට අයිතිවාසිකම් ඇත්තාවූ සෑමදෙනම තමුන්ම නොහොත් තමුන් වෙනුවට කියාකරණ අත වම් 1894 ක්වූ ජුලි මස 17 වෙනි දින එකේ කනිසමට කුරුනෑගල කච්චේරියේදී මා ඉදිරිපිටට පැමන ඒ කොයිඅන්දමේ අයිතිවාසිකම්ද කියා කියාසිට්න්ට ඕනෑවා සහ මෙම ඉඩම් වෙනුවට ඉල්ලාසිට්න මුදල් ගණනත් ඊට ඇත්තාවූ හමුන්ගේ අයිතිකමේ තොරතුරුන් කියාසිටින්ට ඕනෑබව මෙයින් දනගන යුතුයි.

වම් 1894 ක්වූ ජූනි මස 27 වෙනි දින කුරුනෑගල කව්වේරියේදිය.

එ ලියබු එ. කිඞ, වැඩබ**ල**න ආණ්ඩුවේ එජන්න චම්ශ.

1876 **ட ெஞு-த்து** 3 டு இலக்கச்சட்டத்தினு து 7 ட் பிரி வி**னு பி**ரகாரட பகிருங்கதேவைகளு வேணைடியதா **சு பினச**ைச்சொலை**ப்ப**டும் காணிக்கு, அஃதாவது :—

			<i>பிரசமபடத</i>	து இலக்கம 1,982.	
g) .	ோணி யின் த பெயா,	் விவரம.	⊕ இராமம்.	விசொலமை. உரிததாளி பெயர். <i>ஏ. நா</i> . செ.
S	983	பிகா ழுவவத்தை ● ்	'தெனை நதோ டடம்	பண்டாவ	அந்தப்பப்ளின் 0 0 7.25
	*		<i>பிரை</i> மெ ப டைத	து இலககடி 1,983.	
T	983	பறனவத்தை .	தெண்ணந்தோ ட்டம	் சொகண்டப்பொ ன ்	முதிற்்னைசுஷ் புறா பெரும் , 0 0 3
Ū	983 ·	ഭയലുട് തുട്	છ ્	60.0	றங்காமியு மறுபே கும்
		•	قربا اما د م ∡ا ل ا	து இலக்கம் 1,984.	•
V	983.	ெட <i>≢</i> னிய <i></i> ுமபுற	9 தலவயல	ட ாற்றார்.	முததுவாவு மறு பேருழ $0 0 \frac{2}{24.75}$
	98 3	வெட ் வி கேன	C #2001	POT	20 0 0 34 10
X	983	₹ 9 * ਹੈ	ூ ட்	29 - 0-	இந்தவத்தை கிளை ப்புதுரையா 0 1 29:75
		,	பிரத மை டத	து இலக்கம் 1,985.	• `
Y	983	தவ கொல்ல .	பளம ் தெல்வயல	, தல்கொள்ள	முதலிகாமிய மறு பேரும் 0 0 12:50
	983	earà .	·20-2	60hips	Юц. 0 0 27.75
	984	egit	G # EET	ख्य ने	3044
	984	உல் டு⊓்⊅	• 24° •	ஓ	
C	984	<i>த</i> ங்கலகேன	-δ .7	6 3.9	புஞ்சிந்யிதையும் இ பேரும் 0 0 2:50
		•	<i>பிரத</i> மப டத் .	து இலக்கம் 1,987.	
E	984	போகாமுவகடங்தத		•	9 511 51NS 0 0 19
F	984	பி p்නியப்லே 🕳	C+3ss	பொத் <i>து</i> கரை விடி	இ. எப. தடி! 0 0 10 டிவ்டிரி அடிமாவும் உதேறு இனையும் 0 0 7.75

			Brown	🤌 இலக்கும் 1,988.				
@	ຎ.	காணியின <i>து</i> பெபர்		தொடும்.	உருத்தாளியின் பெயர்			». Թ .
G	984	இ வடு மாட்ட	<i>நெ</i> லவயல	<i>த</i> வ <i>கொள்</i> ள	முகவிகாமி பின்		0	4.50
$\mathbf{H}_{\mathbf{I}}$	$\begin{array}{c} 984 \\ 984 \end{array}$	છ ા ⊅ •ેેેેે ડે	500	சூ	் ஆராச்சி டை	0	Õ	3.25
J	984	3 De	٠ <i>ڛۀ</i> ٣٠٥	ஓ . த	ይ ገታ ይገታ	0	0	4·75 2·50
$_{ m L}^{ m K}$	$\begin{array}{c} 994 \\ 984 \end{array}$	፦ ያና ፦ያ ና	≥gr 2 ÷gr2÷	. હેલાંડ્ર જાહ	30.7	0	0.0	3 2·50
	,			து இவக்கம் 1,989.	સ્ત્રાહ	U	. 0	200
M	984	௸௺௧௱௴ ௳௳௺௺	<i>தென்னந்தோ</i>	•				
			L_L0	பொத்தைகணை	முதேவிகாடி கோ மு ற ை	0	0	6.75
O.	$\begin{array}{c} 984 \\ 984 \end{array}$	தங்கோ புலவத்தை வீவகாவங்க்கை	சேண தெனைரந்தோ	egr ò	2 gre	0	0	0.25
Ť			<u>μων</u> μυσμι	· %	சிர் பண்டிருகு யு மாபோம	0	0	1

எய்த் துக்கொள்வதறகான எத்தணைஞ்செய்யும்படி 1876 ம் இடு:-த் தக் காணின**்த் துச்சொ**ள்வ**ைசப்பறறிய சட்** டத்தின் த 6 ம் பிரிலின் ஏற்பாடுகளின் பிடிகாரம் மந்திராலோ சணேச் சபையின் த ஆலோசண்டிடன் சேசாதி பதியவர்கள் என ்சூக் கீற்பிணு செய்திருப்பதனைல, அக்கோணியை ஆடசிஒப்புக்கொள்ள அரசாடசியார் எனு ணியிருக்கிறு என்பதை 7 ம பிரிவின்படி வேண்டிய பிரசாரம் நான் இதிணேக்கொ வூடு பிரச்சைமாய் **வினம்** பரஞ்செய்கிறேன.

பேற்கு ந்தத் காணிகளுத்கு உரித் நப்பேசு இண்ற சகலரும் **தாமாக அல்லத் அவரவருடைய உாரியகார**ர் மும்மாய் 1894 ம இரி ஆடிமாசம் 17 ந் தேதியிலன்று ஒரு மணிக்கு குறு நாகல் கச்சேர்யில் எனமுடையாக வெ ளிப்படடுத் தத்துடுக்கு அசகாணியிலுள்ள உடந்தைகளின் அதன்பையையும் அவ்வுடந்தை எதுக்கோய்த் தாம சாதிக்கும் உரித்துகளின் தொகையையும் விவரங்களேயும் சொலலும்படி இதனை அவர்களிடத்திற கேட்டு க்கொள்ளப்படுக்கொற்து.

குருநாகல கசசேரி, 1894 ம் ஹ் ஆனிமு 27 ந் டை.

ஏஇலியன் ஏ. கிற். அரசாட்தி ஏசணறின் வே‰யார்ப்பவர்.

NOTICES CALLING FOR TENDERS.

Colonial Secretary; and marked on the envelopes "Tender for the conveyance of Mails," will be received at the Colonial Secretary's Office up to 12 noon on Monday, July 9, 1894, for the under-mentioned service commencing from January 1, 1895, to December 31, 1898.

By coach drawn by double horse twice daily each way between Polgahawela and Kegalla, and by runners once daily each way between Kegalla and Aranaike and Kegalla and Polgahawela.

1. The tenders are to be made upon forms which will be supplied upon application to the Postmaster-General, and no tender will be considered unless it is furnished on the recognized form; any alterations in the tenders must bear the initials of the tenderers, otherwise they will be rejected.

2. Adeposit of Rs. 100 will be required before any form of tender is issued, and should any person decline to enter into the contract after he has tendered, or fail to furnish approved security, such deposit will be forfeited to the Crown. All other deposits will be returned upon signature of the contract.

3. Security to the amount of Rs. 1,000 will be required in cash. This amount of Rs. 1,000 will be available for the use of the Postmaster-General for the purpose of carrying on the service when he may deem it to be necessary to incur expenditure on account of the contractor's failure to comply with the conditions of the contract.

4. Security to be completed by December 15, 1894, by deposit of Rs. 1,000 in cash.

The person whose tender is accepted will be required to bear the expenses of having the security bond prepared for the due performance of his contract, which bond will be subject to the approval of the Attorney-General, but may be drawn by the tenderer's own lawyers.

6. The contractor will be fined Rs 20 a day for using or allowing to be used for the service of any coach run by him under this contract a horse or vehicle which has been condemned by the Postmaster-General, his Assistants, or

by an Inspector of Coaches.
7. All vehicles and horses intended for use in the coach service to be performed under this contract shall be submitted to the Postmaster General or his Assistants, and no horse under 14 hands shall be passed as fit for use in any coach to be run under this contract.

8. A penalty of Rs. 50 will be imposed by the Postmaster-General or his Assistants on the centractor for carrying in his coach more passengers than are allowed by the terms of the license.

9. Extra coaches must be supplied at all times when required without extra charges

Fines will be imposed by the Postmaster-General for all delays and irregularities

11. The Government reserves to itself the right, without question, of rejecting the lowest tender or any portion of a tender.

12. In case of gross delays, the Postmaster-General is authorized to cancel the contract.

13. That • the conditions of the contract will be

stricty enforced.

Further particulars can be obtained on application at the Postmaster-General's Office, Colombo.

> H. WHITE, for Colonial Secretary.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 22, 1894.

SALES OF UNSERVICEABLE ARTICLES.

OTICE is hereby given that the under-mentioned unserviceable articles belonging to the Public Works Department, Trincomalee, will be sold by public auction at the Public Works Department Office, Trincomalee, on Saturday, August 11, 1894, at 8 o'clock A.M.,

65 pieces piles 47 pieces beams 110 pieces planks

H. F. TOMALIN, for T. SMITH,

Acting Director of Public Works.

Public Works Department, Colombo, June 26, 1894.

OTICE is hereby given that the under-mentioned unserviceable articles will be sold by public auction at 3 p.m.. on Tuesday, July 3, 1894, at the Fiscal's Office, Colombo:-

1 caldron

2 cups, drinking, enamelled

4 lanterns, kerosine, wall

2 lamps, kerosine, wall 1 mamoty

28 plates, tin

35 pints, tin

1 stand, patent, wooden

1 spade

2 spoons, table, metal

1 tub, latrine, iron, galvanized

J. S. DRIEBER

Assistant Superintendent, Hulftsdorp Jail.

Colombo, June 25, 1894.

ROAD COMMITTEE NOTICES.

OTICE is hereby given that the Provincial Road Committee will on Thursday, July 19, 1894, at 2 o'clock P.M., at their office in Kandy, proceed, in accordance with the provisions of "The Branch Roads Ordinance, 1874," section 7, to alter and vary the limit of the district the estate in which is assessed for the maintenance of the following road, by excluding the under-mentioned estate, as follows :-

Maskeliya Road (between Norwood bridge and Cruden Gap).

To exclude from maintenance for 1894.

Proprietor or Agent.

J. Cantlay (F. P. Williams)

Estate.

Minna

Acreage.

268

Provincial Road Committee's Office, Kandy, June 16, 1894.

C. R. CUMBERLAND, for Chairman.

NOTICES IN TESTAMENTARY ACTIONS.

In the District Court of Jaffna.

Order Nisi.

Testamentary Jurisdiction. No. 609.

In the Matter of the Estate of the late Sinniah Mylvaganam, of Puttur South in Jaffna, late of Ramesuram in India, deceased.

Mylvaganam Kandiah, of Puttur South......Petitioner.

Kathirasipillai, widow of Mylvaganam, of

Puttur South Respondent.

VHIS matter of the petition of Mylvaganam Kandiah, I of Puttar South, praying for letters of administration for the estate of his late father Sinniah Mylvaganam, of Puttoor South in Jaffna, late of Ramesuram in India, deceased, coming on for disposal before F. J. de Livera, Esq., Acting District Judge of Jaffna, on the 13th day of June, 1894, in the presence of Mr. Tambiah S. Cooke, Proctor, on the part of the petitioner; and the evidence of the petitioner having been taken, and the order of the Hop, the Supreme Canter configurates order of the Hon. the Supreme Court, conferring sole testamentary jurisdiction to the court, dated 8th May, 1894, having been read: It is ordered that the petitioner be, and he is hereby declared entitled, as son of the said deceased intestate, to have letters of administration for the estate of the said deceased intestate issued to him, unless the respondent or any other person shall, on or before the 10th day of July, 1894, show sufficient cause to the satisfaction of this court to the contrary.

F. J. DE LIVERA. The 13th day of June, 1894. Acting District Judge. In the District Court of Kandy.

Order Nisi.

Testamentary) In the Matter of the Estate of Ganegedara Ranghami, late of Dimbula Udagama in Kotmale, deceased. Jurisdiction. No. 1,835.

Ganegedara Rammal Ettana, of Dimbula Udagama in Kotmale Petitioner.

And :

Ganegedara Punchirala; 2, Ganegedara

*Banda; and 3, Ganegedara Dingiri Banda, all of Dimbula Udagama aforesaidRespondents.

IHIS matter coming on for disposal before John Henricus de Saram, Esq., District Judge of Kandy, on the 18th day of June, 1894, in the presence of Mr. C. Jayatileke, Proctor, on the part of the petitioner Ganegedara Rammal Etana, and the affidavit of Rayanagoda Appuhami, dated the 15th day of June, 1894, having been read:

It is declared that the said Ganegedara Rammal Etana is the widow of Ganegedara Ranghami, deceased, and as such is entitled to have letters of administration to the estate of Ganegedara Ranghami, deceased, issued to her, unless the respondents above-named shall, on or before the 20th day of July, 1894, show sufficient cause to the satisfaction of this court to the contrary.

> J. H. DE SARAM, District Judge.

The 18th day of June, 1894.

MUNICIPAL COUNCIL NOTICES.

MUNICIPALITY OF COLOMBO.

Minutes of Proceedings of a General Meeting of the Municipal Council of Colombo held in the Town' Hall on Friday, May 25, 1894.

The Council met this day at 3 P.M., pursuant to notices dated May 12 and 17, 1894.

Present:—Mr. C. E. D. Pennycuick, Mayor and Chairman; Hon. J. J. Grinlinton; Hon. W. R. Kynsey, c.m.g.; Major L. F. Knollys, C.M.G; Captain F. Bayley; Mr. T. Smith; Hon A de A. Seneviratne; Mr. M. I. M. Haniffa; Mr. C. Perera; Hon. P. Coomaraswamy; Mr. C. P. Dias; Mr. Walter Pereira; Mr. C. M. Fernando; and Mr. A. Alvis.

The Minutes of April 13, 1894, having been printed and a copy sent to each Member of the Council, were taken as read.

Resolved,—That the Minutes of April 13, 1894, be confirmed.

A Supplemental Budget, approved by the Standing Committee on April 27, 1894, was laid before the Council.

The Chairman proposed the addition of the following items to the Supplemental Budget:

(1) For repair of Galle Face wall near police station, as per estimate furnished by the Superintendent of Works, in accordance with the resolution of the Standing Committee of April 27, 1894 630 (2) For refund of rent of vegetable market in St. John's road for May, 1894 ... 31

The Chairman explained that the rent has been recovered departmentally since May 1 with better results, the recoveries being at the rate of Rs. 47 a month.

> (3) For the substitution of "Mersey" lamps for the "Java" lamps put up in Dean's road market, the latter being found to give unsatisfactory light ...

Mr. C. Perera moved "that the Supplemental Budget be passed with the additions proposed by the Chairman." Hon. W. R. Kynsey seconded.—Carried.

2. A Statement of Receipts and Disbursements from January 1 to April 30, 1894, and a Progress Report of Work done during April, 1894, were laid on the table.

3. The Chairman's Administration Report for 1893 was laid before the Council.

Mr. C. Perera moved "that the report be referred to a Special Committee consisting of Hon. J. J. Grinlinton, Hon. W. B. Kynsey, Mr. C. Perera, Mr. C. P. Dias, Mr. C. M. Fernando, and Mr. A. Alvis-three members to form a quorum."

Hon. A. de A. Seneviratne seconded.—Carried.

4. A letter No. 37 of March 12, 1894, from the Hon. the Colonial Secretary, with reference to the question of tramways and the taking over of the trunk roads from Government, was laid before the Council, with connected

correspondence, having been previously circulated amongst members.

The Chairman moved "that the suggestion contained in the 5th paragraph of letter No. 37 be approved, viz., that all the four trunk roads be taken over by the Council simultaneously and in their present condition, the Government paying over to the Council annually a sum equal to the present cost of their upkeep, and that the Chairman be authorized to arrange with the Director of Public Works for a convenient date for taking over the roads."

Captain Bayley seconded. - Carried.

5. A letter No. 59 of April 18, 1894, from the Hon. the Colonial Secretary, was laid before the Council, inquiring if the Municipality has any objection to the diversion of traffic from the road which runs between Uplands and the sea to the road which runs round the back of Uplands, as shown in a tracing accompanying the lefter; and, if not, that the necessary application be made to the Governor in Executive Council under section 160 of Ordinance

A letter dated May 21, 1894, from Messrs. Stevenson & Sons was also laid before the Council, protesting against the diversion referred to.

The following resolution was carried, on the motion of Captain Bayley, seconded by Hon. A. de A. Senevi-

"That it does not appear to the Council that the proposed deviation will be of any advantage to the public; that on the contrary it will entail great inconvenience and considerable expense. That in the absence of any information as to the necessity for the proposed change the Council are not prepared to agree to it, although they will be willing to reconsidor the matter if adequate reasons for the proposal are assigned by Government."

Remarks of the Auditor-General on the accounts for December, 1893, and January, 1894, received with letters Nos. 41, 44, and 49 of April 10 and 20 and May 5, 1894, respectively, were laid on the table.

7. The Auditor-General's remarks relating to absent officers in 1893 were laid before the Council.

Resolved,—"That the seven days' leave granted by the Chairman to Mr. Inspector Daviot in excess of the thirty days he had previously taken, and also the leave on full pay for two months and thirteen days granted by the Standing Committee to Head Overseer W. M. M. Fernando, be confirmed.

- 8. The City Analyst's report dated April 18, 1894, on the town water for April, 1894, was laid on the table, having been previously printed and circulated
- 9. Reports of Inspectors on licensed carriages and kerosine, poison, and gunpowder shops for May, 1894, were laid on the table.

The following documents were laid on the table :-

Return of Committees of the Municipal Council.

Proceedings of Committees.

Diary of the Sanitary Officer.

Notice of dates of performance in public of the Volunteer Band during May, 1894.

Confirmed on June 8, 1894. C. E. D. PENNYCUICK, C. E. D. PENNYCUICK, Mayor and Chairman.

Statement of Receipts and Disbursements on account of the Municipal Fund from January 1 to May 31, 1894.

REVENUE.	Estima Rever for 1	iue 394.	to Ma	y 31 94.	, Expenditure.	Exp	timated enditure r 1894.		to May 1894	31,
	Rs.		Rs.	_	1		$\mathbf{Rs.}$	c.	${f Rs.}$	` c.
Commutation tax	55,000	0	53,446	6 0	Salaries, fixed		35,760	0	14,77	4 85
Tax on vehicles and animals (und					Salarice provisional	•••	7,829			
section 128 of Ord, 7 of 1887),	19,600	0	16,718		Office contingencies	•••	300			5 0
Do. costs			΄ ε	3 40	Allowances	•••	3,858			7 50
Dog tax •	2,400	0	2,042	2 22	Allowances, provisional		480			0 0
Do. costs •			C	7	Pension account	•••	3,433		1,430	_
7.	-				•C4-4:	•••	2,250		1,20	
Licenses.		_			P	•••	300			76
	8,250				Audit of accommts	•••				
	3,200	0	2,688	50		***	2,760	U	1,300	0
Cart, issued by Government Age	nt 5,700	0	5,484	. 0		-	0.00	^	000	
Boat, issued by Government Age	nt 90	0	65	55	allowance	•••	360	U	. 330	0
Boat, issued by Master Attendant.		0								
Gun, issued by Government Age	nt 110	0	60	56	Commutation Account.					
To sell intoxicating liquors, do.	13,000				Commission	•••	5,000	0	7	40
Butchers		Ö		0			100			80
Coal donôta tampanias Ba	470		480		.,	•••		·		••
To slaughter cattle, sheep, and pi		•	400	~	Tax on Vehicles and And	male				
(amonial)		0	1.5	25	Account.	muis				
To sall most (ansocial)	070					•				
To sell fish (do)	900		200		Commission	:	450	0		
To sell fish (do.).			26 5	U	Tin plates and painting	•••	220	0	122	54
Opium					Refunds	•••	50	0	2	50
Petroleum			53				•			-
Guides			144		Dog Tax Account.					`
Poisons	35	0	14	25			00			
Poisons, for 1893					Commission		90	U	 ,	
Auctioneers and brokers	. 2,060	0	1,920	0	For capture and destruction of o	logs	•	_		
Ludinial Pines					and for dog collars .	•••	* 80 0		318	42
Judicial Fines.	10 700		0 - 00	` .	Refunds	•••	20	0		
By Municipal Magistrate		0	6,060		Palanavin Campiana Ligan					
By Police Magistrate	. 400	0	344	0	Palanquin Carriage Licens	<i>• •</i>				
Tolls.					Account.					
Bridge-of-boats and canal, Grand	_				Tin plates and painting	•••	150	0	32	68
2000			07 300		Badges and fare tables	•••	500	0	32 2	0
	65,060	U :	27,108	38						
Amount payable by renter of toll,					Hackery License Account.				•	
Bridge-of-boats, through Govt.				_	Tin plates	•••	60	0	_	
Agent, for service of bridge			492 3		Badges and fare tables		400	0	214	50
	37,515				244800 4444 4440 44440	•	•••			
Mutwal ferry	1,635		545		Printing Account.	•				
Lock-gate	1,010	0	336 7	72	5		1.000	^	034 6	0.5
Stamp duty on advocates,' proctors,'	•				Salary of printers	•••	1,980		824 9	
and notaries' certificates and					Printing and advertisements	•••	900	0.	169 8	00
articles of clerkship	3 ,5 00	0	2,659	5	Manhat Agazumt					
Manlet	•		•		Market Account.	700	940	^	100	^
Markets.					Edinburgh market, coolies' was Do. 12 addition	ges nal	240	•	100	0
Edinburgh, Nos. 1 and 2, fruit and				j			7 417 4	n 4	1 901	,
vegetables	1,500		832 7		stalls *		1,417	•	1,321	1
Edinburgh, No. 3, meat	3,300	0	1,328 5	0	Do market-keepe		300 (n	105	Λ ·
Edinburgh, No. 3, meat, lighting	_					•••	:		125	
charges paid by stall-holders	500		198 6				1,810 (5592 2	U
St. John's fish mart	540	0	226 2	5	St. John's market, overseer's sala		180 0	_		^
Do. market, fruit and vege-					Do. coolies' wages		240 0		50	
tables	180	0	$139 \ 4$	0	Do. laying on gas.		974 0		974	
Do. boutiques	1,710	0	855	0		•••	950 0		321 9	
Do. fish market	1,800	0	1,000	0	Kollupitiya market, cooly's wages.	•••	120 0		50 (
Dean's road market			1,543 5			•••	12 0		2 43	
Grandpass market	-'		2,151 2		Dean's road market, coolies' wag		240 0		100	υ
Kollupitiya market)	178 (- 1	Do. market-keeper'	s ·	•			
Mohammedan meat market, Dhobies'			•	1.	salary .	•-	180 0	•	,75	D
pond	720)	300 () [Do. upkeep of filt	er	_			
Gintupitiya street market	2,000		560 C		bed in 1893.		25 0		17 98	
Gintupitiya street market, lighting	,	•			Do: lighting .	••	90 0		69 92	2
charges paid by stall-holders	200 ()	5 6 0		Dean's road market, improvem				•	•
Slave Island manhat	2,400 (800 0	1	ment of lighting, additional lamp		545 O		6	
	£, ±00 (,	500 U		Do. Mersey lamps.		320 0		7	
Slaughter Houses.				1	Do. cost of gas		700 0		8	
	11,500 0	4	,570 85	:	Do. fence		57 90		9	
	12,500 0		633 40		Fintupitiya street market, lighting	,	600 O		150 98	,
Do. sale of blood	150 0		75 0		Do. cooly's wages		120 0		48 0	
				·						

See Nos. 2 to 5, Supplemental Budget.
 See No. 8, do.
 See No. 11, do. See No. 6, Supplemental Budget.
See No. 9, do.
See No. 12, do.

See No. 7, Supplemental Budget.
See No. 10, do.
See No. 13, do.

REVENUE.	Estimated Revenue for 1894. Rs. c.		EXPENDITURE	Estimate Expendit for 189	ure	to M	sement lay 31, 894. Ks. c
Madampitiya, slaughtering fees	1,900 0		Slave Island market, cooly's	wares	120	0	48 38
Do. feeding fees	2,100 0	737 87					5195 C
Do. rent of trees and			Do. lightin	v	750		6117 84
grass Sale of manure, &c., Dematagoda	$240 0 \\ 14 44^{1}$	128 0 14 44	Cost of tools for markets	***	100	0	49 5
Do. Madampitiya	15 01		Slaughter House Accou				
Miscellaneous.	,		Dematagoda, salary of supe				
Rent of grass lands	1,800 0	1,066 11	dent Do: salary of clerk		720	0.	300 0
Do. lesse of New Floral	600 0	435 25	Do. coolies' wages		240 480		100 0 200 0
Hall	750 O	375 O	Do. feeding charge	s, grass •	,-		2,00
Galle Face, &c., grazing fees	500 0	83 68	and poonac	2,	000		503 87
Victoria Park, grazing fees	300 0	178 25	Do. feeding charges		360	0	150 o
Fees for testing and stamping weights and measures	· •	101.00	curred in 18		690	0:	648 0
Conservancy of private latrines	200 0 432 0	101 36 124 0	Do. oil, carbolic ac		177 6	-	749 39
Fees from tennis court, Victoria	-04	3,24	Do. conservancy of	latrine		0	15 0
Park	30 Q	37 0	Do. Leather hose Madampitiya, salary of keep		87 8		8
Campbell's Park, grazing fees	100 0	19 0			360 180	0	150 O 75 O
Miscellaneous	3,000 0	0 53 173 84	Do. cooly's wages		20	ŏ	50 O
Sale of stores	•	26 45	Do. oil and feeding of	charges 4	160	0	96 65
Mulct		129 50	Do. feeding charge	10	40	^	0= =0
Town Hall fees	1000		Cost of tools			0	35 72 13 91
Overplus at sales } Sale of tender & specification forms	1,000 0	23 3	Do. incurred in 1898				.16 87
Sale of scavenging rubbish		, —	Sunitanu Assaurt			•	
Deposits made by tenderers	j		Sanitary Account.				
Sale of timber	j,	4 0	Expenses of disinfection, &c. Cost of disinfectants	, ,			68 37
Refund of rent of dynamite maga- zine at Welikada paid to Govern-		•		8	00	0 -	-
ment by Messrs. W. H. Davies &.			Miscellaneous.	_			_
Co	5 00 0	² 500 0	Books of reference Expenses incurred by Govt.		00 -	•	11 55
Refund of half cost of footway, Bai-			on account of cart and boat li		50	0 -	-
lie street, opposite National Bank Doulton Pipes, refund by house-	120 0	³ 120 0	Contribution to Law Library			2	00 oʻ
4.5	6,000 0	41 87	Costs in legal proceedings	5			53 75
Sale of disinfectants	10 721	10 72	Rent of site of Grandpass late Guides' coats			0 ~ 0 ~	- .
Guides' badge account	1 50 ¹	1 50	Maintenance of level cre	ossing.	,0 (· ~	~
Refund by houseowners of cost of Doulton pipes	$2,242 5^1$	2.242 5	Dematagoda	28	50 (0 2	50 O
Advances of previous years recover-	$2,242 5^1$	2,242 5	Contribution on account of				
	1,133 951	1,133 95	teer band Refund of fines	3,50	00 (00 (75 0
		/	Refund of value of guides' b				1 50
		/ /	Expenses of bookbinding	20			38 89
		/	Subscription to newspapers		6 0		96 O
		/ /	Cost of making peons' belts Assistant clerk, vehicles		5 0) —	-
		/ /	animals tax department	(two			
		/ /	months)		0 0) 4	10 0
		/ 1	Refund of guides' license fees Refund of value of grazing to	iahata 1	2 0		•
		/ /	Supervision of guides		0 0		4 59
		/ 1	Conservancy of private latring		2 0		
		′	Gratuity to peon		0 0	15	0 0
	· /	}	Damage caused by burstin sewer near Messrs. Darley, E				•
	1	1	& Co.'s Offices, Fort		1 24	910	i 24
	/	1	Refund of security depesite			• •	
	/	1	reter of gasss land behind				٠.
	/		que, Maradana Refund of security deposite		4 0	· 915	4 0
	/ ,	• 1	Renter of grass land at Mo				•
		. 1	kanda		2 0	9	20.
	/	1	Refund of security and other		 -		
	/	1	posits, 1892 do		5 64		 3 66
	/		Do do. Refund of rent paid by lessee	1893 1,558 of St.	, 4,0	. ~?	, 00
	/	1	John's vegetable market		1 0		0
	/	. 1	Miscellaneous	600	0	308	96
/			•				
/	,	.	Public Works.		•		
/		1	Estimates.	<u>.</u> .			122
			General upkeep of roads	6,000) 0	2,596	10
Carried over 329,	516 26 17:		Lighting metal and gravel h	eaps 1,000	0	178	18
					-		<u>. </u>

Not in Budget.
 See No. 2, Supplemental Budget.
 See No. 3, do.

⁴ See No. 4, Suplemental Budget. ⁵ See No. 14, do. ⁶ See No. 15, do.

⁷ See No. 16, Supplemental Budget.
⁸ See No. 17, do.
⁹ See Nos. 18 to 23. do.

REVENUE.	Estimated Revenue for 1894.	Receipts to May 31, 1894.	EXPENDITURE. Exp	timated penditure or 1894		bursements May 31, 1894.
•	Rs. c.	Rs. e.		· Rs.	c.	Rs. c.
Brought forward	329,516 26	172,562 55	Amount reserved for road repairs			
e		4	upon sub-estimates	36,952	. 0	9,186 38
•		.]	Salaries of overseers	0.040	ŏ	1,602 54
•	•	-	Bridge-of-boats, upkeep	5,700	O	1,845 91
	•	!	Bridge-of-boats, amount payable		<i>6</i> 0	391 80
,			by toll-renter Victoria Park, upkeep	1,188 5, 0 00	0	1,794 58
• •		1	Racket court and jubilee fountain,		ŭ	2,102 00
		ļ	upkeep	1,200	0	215 49
		/	Gordon Gardens, upkeep	900	0	180 0
			Galle Face esplanade, upkeep Campbell's Park (Jail road), upkeep	$\begin{array}{c} 295 \\ 1,300 \end{array}$	0	49 91 389 25
		ĺ	Mutwal foreshore, upkeep	150	ō	6 0
		1	Carriage stands, upkeep	175	0	
			Filter bed, Dean's road market,	60	0	6 73
		1	upkeep Conservancy of lake	60 3,800	Ö	613 49
		- [Conservancy of sewers and drains	2,000	ŏ	300 34
		1	Watering streets	5,000		2,278 14
		1	Urgent repairs	2,500		1,230 55
		1	Tools, purchase of Tools, repair of	2,000 1,000	0.	383 20 404 91
		Į	Pay of watcher and coolies	395 8		142 14
		!	Salary of head overseer	1,368	7,5	566 25
	ŀ	1	Scavenging and conservancy of latrines		۸ ،	4,466 64
	į		Rent of night soil depôt		0	90 0
			Salary of overseer, night soil depôt Construction of 300 latrine buckets	360 3,000	0	15 0 0 739 8
	/		Upkeep and Repair of Public Buildings.	•		
	.,		Town Hall, conservancy	250	0	58 42
	; ;	.	Markets.			
	{		Dean's road, repairing and painting	300	0	
	/		Slave Island, do. do		ŏ	
	/		Grandpass, do. do	79	0	-
	1.		Kollupitiya, do. do		0	
			Gintupitiya, do. do Cramer's lane, do. do		0	
		. [•	•	•	
	/		Public Latrines.			
	•		Gasworks street, repairs	10	-	
		-	St. John's, do St. Thomas's, do		0 0	2 47
	1	1	Cramer's lane do		ŏ	4 11
	1	1	St. Sebastian, do		0	
	1		Hulftsdorp, do Beira. do		0. 0	
	1		Beira, do Bankshall, do		0	_
	/	•	Kew, do	·60 (0	-
	.		Glenie street, do	45 (-
	. .		Kollupitiya, do	20 C		
	1	.	Dean's road, do	10 0		
	}	ļ	Do. market, do	10 0)	
	1	i	Grandpass, do Lock-gate. do	0. 08 0. 91		
	.	1	Lock-gate, do. Landing jetty urinal, repairs	12 0 20 0		
			Superintendence and contingencies	73 0		-
	1.		Quarterly whitewashing and	eoo		170 6
	1		painting	620 0		170 0
	1		Slaughter Houses.			•
	1		Dematagoda, repairs	410 0		1 47
	1	1	Do. quarterly whitewashing	756 0		150 0
	1		Madampitiya, repairs Do. quarterly whitewashing	99 0 66 0		12 50
	1				-	. – v v
	^ / .	ļ	Toll Houses.			
			Bridge-of-boats, repairs	31 0		•
	<u>.</u>		Wellawatta, do Naranpitiya, do	53 0 13 0		_
Carried over	329,516 26 17:		Bambalapitiya, do	70 0		
	, = == =.	,	The state of the s		(5*)
,	•					

Returnor Returnor to May 51, Returnor		,			
Res. c. Res. c.	REVENUE	Estimated Receipts	EXPENDITURE		
Brought forward 329,516 26 172,562 55 Lock-pate, septis	130,47 321 0 22		. BALBADII UKB.		
Draw-bridge, do. 38 0		Rs. c. Rs. c.		Rs. c.	Rs. c.
Draw-bridge, do. 38 0	Brought forward	329,516 26 172,562 55	Lock-gete reneirs	10 0	
Dematagoda, do.	•••	• 1		20 0	
Wellikada		/•			
Ss. John's road boutiques, repairs 330 0 Gaides' shelter, repairs 33 0 0 Gaides' shelter, repairs 72 0 7 Printing office, 06 37 0 0 Municipal store, 06 37 0 0 Municipal store, 06 37 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		1		05 0	
Guides' shelter, repairs			St. John's road boutiques, repa	irs 130 0	
Printing office, do		1	Guides' shelter, repairs	89 A	
Municipal store, do. 100 0		.1			
Workshop, Ambulance cooly lines, repairs 37 0 — Ambulance cooly lines, repairs 37 0 — Do. cart shed, do. 28 0 — Municipal tables, do. 38 0 —		1	Municipal store, do.	100 0	
Do. cart shed, do.		. 1	Workshop, do.		
Municipal stables, do 38 0 — Old workshop, do 40 0 — Dog pound, do 20 0 — Fire engine stations, do 33 0 3 96		1		00 0	
Old workshop, do. 20 0		1			_
Fire engine stations, do 33 0 3 50 Do. Cooly fines, do 113 0 2 18 Pay of head carpenter in charge of public buildings at Ra. 2 a day 640 0 130 0 Dredging lake 6,600 0 2,426 27 Dredging St. Sebastian canal 4,500 0 1,188 5 Siave Island market (section 2), ten muttoo stalls 8,000 0 6,696 78 Construction of four sweeping machines 2,000 0 144 52 Footway, York street 522 0 430 77 Improvements to Demutagoda slaughter house 796 0 63 26 Bridge, Asiton place 796 0 63 26 Widening Parson's road and build widening Parson's road and build situates for Town Hall roofs 300 0 For eight water posts (interes for Town Hall roofs 300 0 Silversmith st. road, land acquisition 15,000 0 Silversmith st. road, land acquisition 15,000 0 — Silversmith st. road, land acquisition 15,000 0 — Silversmith st. road, land acquisition 15,000 0 — Widening Parson road and fixed for the street side drains 720 0 677 51 Shifting fron latrine in Reclamation road to Modara and land 1,150 0 — Mutwal drainage 170 0 — Mutwal drainage 170 0 — Mutwal drainage 170 0 — Wider supply do 700 0 — Two fire engine stations, St. Sebastian Hill and Kotabena 2,000 0 150 40 Painting walls, Gordon Gardens 2,000 0 150 40 Painting walls, Gordon G		1		40 0	
Do. cooly fines, do. 113 0 2 18 Pay of finesh and carpenter in charge of public buildings at Rs. 2 a day 640 0 130 0 Dredging lake Dredging St. Sebastian canal 4,500 0 1,188 5 Siave Island market (section 2), ten munton stalls 8,000 0 6,596 78 Construction of four sweeping machines 2,000 0 14 62 Footway, York street 522 0 430 77 Improvements to Dematagoda slaughter-house 796 0 63 26 Singther-house 796 0 63 26 Bridge, Alston place 1,000 0 1,278 3 Widening Huiftsdorp street 1,000 0 3,532 48 For eight water posts 300 0 Gutters for Tohn Hall roofs 320 0 319 82 Pump for well, Fort 400 0 Silversmith st. road, Innd acquisition 1,500 0 Silversmith st. road, Innd acquisition 1,500 0 Silving fron lattine in Reclamation road to ymoly allow of the street 1,000 0 Silving walls, Gordon Gardens 170 0 Mutwal drainage 40 0 Silversmith st. road, Ind acquisition 1,500 0 Water auply 40 700 0 Two fire ongine stations, St. 2,000 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 2,000 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 2,000 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 2,000 0 26 78 Levelling bill, Altumawata road 60 0 99 78 Levelling bill, Altumawata road 60 0 192 0		1	Elius angina stations de		~ 06
Pay of head carpenter in charge of public buildings at Re. 2 ad ap		1	Do. cooly fines, do.	113 0	
Dredging St. Sebastian canal			Pay of head carpenter in charge	of .	
Dredging St. Sebastian canal		.	Dundaina laka		
Slave Island market (section 2), ten mutton stalls Slave Island market (section 2), ten mutton stalls Construction of four sweeping machines 2,000 14 52		/	Dredging St. Sebastian canal	4,500 0	
Construction of four sweeping machines		/	Slave Island market (section 2), t	en	•
machines		/ /		5,000 0 ng	6,696 78
Footway, York street		/ /	machines	2,000 Oz	14 52
Sinughter-house		1.	Footway, York street	522 0	
Bridge, Alston place		1			63 26
Midening Hulftsdorp street		/ 1	Bridge, Alston place	1,500 0	
Widening Hulfsdorp street		/			
For eight water posts		/			8.532 48
Pump for well, Fort		1	For eight water posts .	1,936 0	
Silversmith st. road, land acquisition 15,000 0 Queen street and Church street side drains 720 0 677 51 Shifting iron latrine in Reclamation road to Modara and land 1,150 0 Mutwald drainage 10,000 0 Mutwald drainage 10,000 0 Mutwald drainage 10,000 0 700 0 Two fire engine stations, St. Sebastian Hill and Kotahena 2,000 0 150 40 Pay of firemen and fire engine coolies 2,000 0 191 83 Roof over east passage, Dean's road market 430 0 Road to Base line road from Maradana junction 10,000 0 10 10 10 10 10 10		1			319 82
Shifting iron latrine in Reclamation road to Modara and land 1,150 0		/	Silversmith st. road, land acquisition	on 15,000 O	
Shifting iron latrine in Reclamation 1,150 0		1			
road to Modiara and land 1,150 0 — Painting walls, Gordon Gardens 170 0 — Mutwal drainage 10,000 0 — Victoria park pond and fixing fountain 1,000 0 27 1 Water supply do 700 0 Two fire engine stations, St. Sebastian Hill and Kotabena 2,000 0 150 40 Pay of firemen and fire engine coolies 2,000 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 200 0 191 83 Roof over east passage, Dean's road market 430 0 — Road to Base line road from Maradan 10,000 0 — Union place drain 200 0 99 78 Levelling hill, Alutmawata road 600 0 5 10 Shed-for carriages 150 0 126 78 Laying on gas to Gintupitiya street market 78 0 78 0 St. Paul's Church boundary wall gate 52 0 25 51 Additional alterations to Municipal Council's Office 150 0 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Univert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170 0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1690 54					677 51
Mutwal drainage 10,000 0 — Victoria park pond and fixing fountain 1,000 0 27 1 Water supply do 700 0 — Two fire engine stations, St. Sebastian Hill and Kotabena 2,000 0 150 40 Pay of firemen and fire engine coolies 2,000 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 200 0 191 83 Roof over est passage, Dean's road market 430 0 — Road to Base line road from Maradana junction 10,000 0 — Union place drain 200 0 99 78 Levelling hill, Alutmawata road 600 0 5 10 Shed-for carriages 150 0 126 78 Laying on gas to Gintupitiya street market 78 0 78 0 St. Paul's Church boundary wall gate 52 0 25 51 Additional alterations to Municipal Council's Office 150 0 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23 0 21 40 For improvement of orner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of forin, Jampettah street 55 0 49 60 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Unioning Korteboam atreet 200 0 1770 .0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam atreet 12,884 0 1590 54		1	road to Modara and land	1,150 0	
Victoria park pond and fixing fountain 1,000 0 27 1 Water supply do 700 0 — Two fire engine stations, St. Sebastian Hill and Kotabena 2,000 0 150 40 Pay of firemen and fire engine coolies 2,000 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 200 0 191 83 Roof over east passage, Dean's road market 430 0 — Road to Base line road from Maradana junction 10,000 0 — Union place drain 200 0 99 78 Levelling hill, Alutmawata road 600 0 5 10 Shed-for carriages 150 0 126 78 Laying on gas to Gintupitiya street market 78 0 78 0 St. Paul's Church boundary wall gate Additional alterations to Municipal Council's Office 150 0 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23, 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainsge near Civil Hospital 55 0 149 60 Widening Korteboam street 200 0 1770, 0 D. No. 2 do. 330 0 1995 14 Widening Korteboam atreet 12,834 0 1590 64		/	Painting walls, Gordon Gardens		
fountain 1,000 0 27 1 Water supply do 700 0 — Two fire engine stations, St. Sebastian Hill and Kotahena 2,000 0 150 40 Pay of firemen and fire engine coolies 2,000 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 200 0 191 83 Roof over esst passage, Dean's road market 430 0 — Road to Base line road from Maradan junction 10,000 0 — Union place drain 200 0 99 78 Levelling hill, Alutmawata road 600 0 5 10 Shed-for carriages 150 0 126 78 Laying on gas to Gintupitiya street market 78 0 78 0 St. Paul's Church boundary wall gate Additional alterations to Municipal Council's Office 150 0 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainsge near Civil 1,000 0 1770 .0 Do. No. 2 do. 330 0 1925 14 Widening Korteboam atreet 200 0 1770 .0 Widening Korteboam atreet 230 0 1995 14		/			
Two fire engine stations, St. Sebastian Hill and Kotahena 2,000 · 0 150 40 Pay of firemen and fire engine coolies 2,000 · 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 200 · 0 191 83 Roof over east passage, Dean's road market 430 · 0 Road to Base line road from Maradana junction 10,000 · 0 Union place drain 200 · 0 99 78 Levelling hill, Alutmawata road 600 · 0 5 10 Shed-for carriages 150 · 0 126 78 Laying on gas to Gintupitiya street market 78 · 0 78 · 0 St. Paul's Church boundary wall gate 52 · 0 25 51 Additional alterations to Municipal Council's Office 150 · 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 · 0 192 · 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 · 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 · 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23, 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 · 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 · 0 49 60 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 · 0 49 60 Univert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 · 170 · 0 Do. No. 2 do 330 · 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 · 0 1590 54		/	fountain	. 1,000 0	27 1
Sebastian Hill and Kotahena 2,000 · 0 150 40 Pay of firemen and fire engine coolies 2,000 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 200 0 191 83 Roof over esst passage, Dean's road market 430 0		/	Water supply do Two fire engine stations S	700 0	-
Pay of firemen and fire engine coolies 2,000 0 281 27 Cleaning and tarring bridges 200 0 191 83 Roof over east passage, Dean's road market 430 0 Road to Base line road from Maradana junction 200 0 99 78 Levelling hill, Alutmawata road 600 0 5 10 Shed-for carriages 150 0 126 78 Laying on gas to Gintupitiya street market 78 0 78 0 St. Paul's Church boundary wall gate 52 0 25 51 Additional alterations to Municipal Council's Office 150 0 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 545 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1770 .0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam atreet 12,834 0 1590 54		1	Sebastian Hill and Kotabena	. 2,000 0	150 40
Cleaning and tarring bridges 200 0 191 83 Roof over east passage, Dean's road market 430 0 Road to Base line road from Maradana junction 10,000 0 Union place drain 200 0 99 78 Levelling hill, Alutmawata road 600 0 5 10 Shed-for carriages 150 0 126 78 Laying on gas to Gintupitiya street market 78 0 78 0 St. Paul's Church boundary wall gate 52 0 25 51 Additional alterations to Municipal Council's Office 150 0 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1770, 0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 64		. /	Pay of firemen and fire engin	e	
Roof over east passage, Dean's road market					
Road to Base line road from Maradana junction			Roof over east passage, Dean'	8	191 09
dana junction			road market	. 430 0	-
Union place drain 200 0 99 78 Levelling hill, Alutmawata road 600 0 5 10 Shed-for carriages 150 0 126 78 Laying on gas to Gintupitiya street market 78 0 78 0 St. Paul's Church boundary wall gate 52 0 25 51 Additional alterations to Municipal Council's Office 150 0 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170 .0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54		- .			
Shed-for carriages		1.	Union place drain	. 200 0	99 78
Laying on gas to Gintupitiya street market					
Market		1 1	Laying on gas to Gintupitiya stree	. ,100 0 t	120 /8
Additional alterations to Municipal Council's Office 150 0 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170 0 Do. No. 2 do. 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1690 54		1	market :	78 0	
Council's Office 150 0 149 84 Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23, 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170 0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54			St. Faucs Church boundary wall gat Additional alterations to Municips	:e 52 0 I	2 5 51
Extra cost of land for latrine, Korteboam street 192 0 192 0 Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 55 0 149 60 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1770 0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54		1	Council's Office	150 0	149 84
Repair of Ferguson's road 300 0 54 54 Side drain, Jail road 242 0 241 49 Drain, Mews Cross lane 23, 0 21 40 For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1770 0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54					
Side drain, Jail road		1	Danain of Fanancan's word	900 0	
For improvement of corner at junction of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170 0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54			Side drain, Jail road	0.40	
tion of Korteboam street and Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170 0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54					21 40
Skinner's road north 1,000 0 454 50 Improvement of drain, Jampettah street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170 0 Do. No. 2 do. 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam atreet 12,834 0 1590 54	•	1			•
Total 329,516 26 172,562 55 Street 55 0 149 60 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170 .0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54	•	· / .	Skinner's road north	1,000 0	454 50
Total 329,516 26 172,562 55 Improvement of drainage near Civil Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170 .0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54					149 60
Total 329,516 26 172,562 55 Hospital 800 0 1479 12 Culvert No. 1, Vauxhall street 200 0 1170, .0 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54					30 UU .
Total 329,516 26 172,562 55 Do. No. 2 do 330 0 1295 14 Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54			Hospital	800 0	
Widening Korteboam street 12,834 0 1590 54	Total	329,516 26 172.562 55			
				12,834 0	
	•				

¹ See Nos. 24 to 47, Supplemental Budget.

Revenue.	Estimated Expenditure for 1894. Rs. c.	Disbursements to May 31, 1894. Rs. c.	EXPENDITURE. E	Estimated xpenditure for 1894.	to May	
Brought forward	329,516 2		Construction of road to Capta	Rs.	e. Rs	. (
, -		: 1	Garden	1.800	0 - 1-	٠.
		1	Drain near Fort railway station Sewer near Police Headquarte	75	0 · I-	-
		1.	Maradana	1,000	0 1-	- .
		1	Side drain, Forbes road	70	0 1-	-
		1	Side drain and bridge, road fr Kew road to Kew latrine		0 1	4
		.	Drain, Lascoreen street	1,570	0 i_	
		1	Paving backery stand oppos			
		- 1	Supplementary vote for new con	977 ort	0 3	•
		1.	and assessment offices (moiety)	175	0 1-	
		1		208	0 1	•
		1	Police station	630	0 1-	
		'	Supplementary vote for whi			
		1	washing and painting public I rines (Est. No. 131)	at 60	0 1	*
		· 1	Cost of land acquired for impro-	ve.		
		1 .	ment of corner at junction Korteboam street and Skinne		•	
		,	road	150	0 1150	0 (
		- 1	Construction of new latrine,			
		1.	John's road (Supplementary) Construction of drains, Inghe	150	.0 1—	
			street and Soysa street	4,000	0 , 1-	
		· /	Construction of culvert, Union pla	ce 300	0 '	
		1.	· Footway in Baillie street, opposi National Bank	240	0 I	•
		[[Improvement of trunk roads (Fo	ort		,
		/	to Wellawntta) Plates for notifying scavenging tin	3,485	0 . 1	
		-	and watering time	100	0 1	
	•	1	Doulton pipes—to be advanced f		A 10.044	
		1 1	pipes and constructing drains.	6,000	0 12,944	. 71
			Est. Re-votes.	•	٠	
		}	51 of 1893—Sewer, Queen street, 53 of 1893—St. John's new latring			·
		1	54 of 1893-Kochikade latrine .	4,137	0 2748	_
	. /		63 of 1893—St. John's fish marke		6 2422	67
	1		70 of 1893—Improvement, Cramer	. 80 1	1 *36	76
	1	1	72 of 1893-New Market at Slav	e ·		•
			Island 73 of 1893—Cart for conveyand	. 130 1	2 3	
	1		of meat	. 222	2 2	
	ľ		170 of 1893—Building concret drain, Kollupitiya		G 2	
		}	172 of 1893—Improvement	1143 of	0	
	1 :	.	drain near mango tree, Unio	n		
	1		place 178 of 1893—Alterations to Muni	. 100	U 3	
	• 1		cipal Office (moiety)	. 45 74		
	<i>[.</i>		179 of 1893 - Special tolls 181 of 1893 - Ladders for fire engine		•	87
	1		182 of 1898-Hand cart for fire	9		. '
	/		engine, hose, &c		3 2	
	. ∤		188 of 1893—Water supply to markets	196 0	2196	0
	1		191 of 1893-Widening Norris road	1,695		
	1		207 of 1893—Metalling Alexandra	1 . 187 40	2121	44
	1		- F			
	/		Balance	373,45 0 '64	108,784 63,778	
			varance ,		·	
Total	. 329,516 26	172,562 55		373,450 64	172,562	55
				•	. ————	_
	``	ADVANCE A	LCCOUNT.			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Receipts to	Rypaulianna		sbursemer to May 31	
REVENUE.	, L	May 31, 1894. Rs. c.	EXPENDITURE.		1894.	*
e account ·	• .	26,800 30		٠	Rs.	4
ice		120 0	· ·			
406 444			•		2 6,92 0 :	

²See Nos. 48 to 63, Supplemental Budget.

935 78·

DEPOSIT ACCOUNT.

· , I	Revenue.		Rs.	c.
Security deposits	••• (•••	1,430	39
Deposit by owners of	f quarries	•••	100	0
Deposit on account of		•••	15	19
Do.	Irazing tickets	•••	3	50
Do.	Police Reward Fund	•••	104	25
•				- 1
	•		1.653	33

EXPENDITURE-Nil.

ASSESSMENT ACCOUNT.

Revenue.	Estima Rever for 1	nue 894.	189	31, 4.	EXPENDITURE.	Expendit for 18	ure 94.	1894.	31,
		С.	ns.	c.			s. c.		c.
Consolidated rate under section 1			•		Annuity for Waterworks	130,0			_
of Ordinance 7 of 1886, arrear		_		_	Maintenance of police	60,0		15,000	
of 1888 •		. 0		0	Lighting public streets	74,6		222,896	
⁸ Do. do. do. 1891			715		Salaries, fixed	14,8		-,	
Do. do. do. 1892			4,641		Do. Provisional		58 50		
	40,000		25,135		Allowances		80 O		_
Do. do. current, 1894			70,599		Stationery		00 0		
	. 10,000	0	4,419	89	Furniture		50 0		15
Military contribution for lighting		_			Printing and advertisements		00 0	-	45
Fort			850		Commission to collectors	8,0		-,	
Sale of water			25,264	57	Do. do. 1893	1,5			
Interest		0	_		House numbers and street boa		50 o 0		27
Costs on recovery of dues for sale					Refund of consolidated rate		50 O		45
of water		681		68	Do. do. 1893		00 0		
Miscellaneous		46¹	65	46	Lighting Fort latrine		10 0	-	86
Advances of previous years recover					Laying on gas to St. John's latr		5 65		
ed or adjusted	195	991	• 195	99	Lighting do.		0 0	463	86
					Supplemental vote for new co				
					and Assessment Office (moiety)		75 O	• ⁵ —	
· •					Posts for street boards		0 0	6	
•					Refund of water-rate		50 O		
					Do. do. 1893		0 0		44
					Costs in legal proceedings	50			
						46		⁷ 241	
				• [For extensions of gas and water	5,27	1 7	81,818	45
					Revote.				

... 357,665 13 131,976 56 Total

372,465 97 83,969 39 . 48,007 17 Balance Total ...372,465 97 131,976 56

... 70,000 0

45 75

Est. No. 178 of 1893-New Court and Assessment office (moiety)...

Balance reserved for contingencies in original and Supplemental

Budget

BALANCES ON MAY 31, 1894.

		•	,	Rs.	c.	Rs.	c.
Credit balance, General Account	nt		•••			63,778	11
Do. Deposit Accoun	nt	•	•••			1,653	33
		•				65,431	44
Less debit, Advance Account			•••			120	0
Credit balance, General Accour	nt					65,311	44
Credit balance, Assessment Acc	count		***			48,007	17
	•	-		٠	•	113,318	61
Balance on December 31, Rs. 30,000 in fixed deposit	1893,	inch	iding 	مجنيه		62,560	44
	Total	balan	ce			175,879	5

The Municipal Office, Colombo, June 6, 1894.

C. E. D. PENNYCUICK, Mayor and Chairman.

Not in Budget. ² See No. 2, Supplemental Budget. ³ See No. 3, do.

⁴ See No. 4, Supplemental Budget.

⁵ See No. 6, ⁶ See No. 7, do.

⁷ See No. 8, Supplemental Budget. s'See Nos. 5 and 9, do.

⁹ See No. 10, do.

ROADS.

Expenditure on Estimate No. 82 (Rs. 36,952).—Amount reserved for Road Repairs upon Sub-Estimates.

	•	Watimant	` .J 1	n:"h	*****	mta		•	Esti	mated	Disì	oursements
	EXPENDITURE.	Estimat Expendit for 189	ıre		urseme May 31 1894.			Expenditure.	Exper	diture 1894.		May 31, 1894.
\mathbf{E}_{i}	st.	Rs.	o. '		Rs. c		Est.		$\mathbf{R}_{\mathbf{s}}$	в. с.		Rs. c.
	Metal Roads.	•					228	Akbar's lane, St				
10	34 Seabeach road, St. John's	roed					999	street to Martie Marties' lane, St		16	26	
1.	to Kochikade]	,174	36	1,053	44	425	Hill to Dhobies'		23	19	
19	5 Panchikawatta road, Skii		,		,		230	Mohandiram'a lan				
	road South to Maradan		,503	60	1,224	35	l	place to Marties		16	26	
19	6 Union place road, Rifle	•	,978	Λ	r ,902	37	231	Mitcho's lane, Fro		u.c	,	
19	• to Turret road 7 Baillie street	•••	427		381		232	Cafferman's lane,		26	1	
	8 Commissariat street, Cl					,		lane to Norris r		33	60	
	street to Custom's gate	***	631	15			233	Roads round To	vn Hall and			
18	9 Flagstaff street, Prince		944	70			004	market	***		48	71 14
20	to Commissariat street O Chatham street exter	asion.	344	10	_			Kachcheri roads Maliban street,	4th Cross	66	1	52 _, 37
	Norris road to York s		459	70 .				street to 2nd Cr		45	36	
20	l Bankshall street, St. J						236	Maliban street,				
വ	road to Front street	~	,137	20	933	63	007	street to Front		158	53	~
21	2 Keyzer street, Fourth (street to Front street	Cross	891	10	816	15	231	Hunupitiya road, to Alston place	Turret road	46	58	35 <i>5</i> 3
20	3 First Cross street, Reclam						238	Dhobies' lane, Kol	lupitiya road	•••	•	00 00
	road to Norris road	•••	942	5	-		1	to Polwatta road	d	• 132	52	_
20	4 Dam street, New Moor s		ene e	oΛ	971	6.5	239	New Chetty str		വർ	^	-
20	to St. Sebastian street 5 St. Sebastian hill, Cra	mer's	896	20	271	20	240	van Rooyan stree		216 136		_
_	lane to Hulftsdorp street		,118	90				Pickering's road,		•	•	
20	6 Prince street, Fourth							street to Kotahe	na street	238	17	-
90	street to Front street		,270	57			242	Gintupitiya str		101	01	
20	7 Third Cross street, Main s to Prince street	···	444	40			943	street to Hill st Brassfounder stree		121	91	
20	8 Green street, Jampettah s		•••				-10	street to Gintup		82	17	
	to Barber street	1	,123 3	37	·		244	Daniel's road, Alui	mawata road			•
20	9 Galpotta street, Green s		0.59	19			045	to Madampitiya		172	80	
21	to Skinner's road North O Cheku street, Gintupitiyas		253 4	40			245	ferguson's road, to Vuystwyk roa		172	10	
	to Wolfendahl street		,098	0			246	Totawatta road, F.		•••	••	
21	1 St. Lucia's street, Gal	potta					-	the river	•	200	61 .	-
91	street to Wall street		509 2	22			247	Rockhouse lane, l	ishers Hill	81	Δ	
21	2 St. James's street, Mutwal to Blomendahl street	t pau	426 8	30			248	to cross drain Old Urugodawati	a road. St.		U	
21	3 Madampitiya road, Drawb	ridge		•		•		Joseph street to				•
۵.	to Daniel's road		747 5	55				godawatta road	•••	157	18	
21	4 Alutmawata road, Cathe to Korteboam street	edral	243 7	79	,		249	Lock-gate lane, or Skinner's road S		64	99	
21	5 St. Mary's road, Mattak	uliva	~40 1	-			250	Piachaud's lane,		0.2		
	Vuystwyk road to Ch	urch	•	•				road to Skinner's		138	21	
ดา	road		389 4	2	_		251	Mill street, Belmon	•	. 14	71	
21	6 Barber street, Kuruwe st to Armour street		887 7	0	_		252	Ferry street North and South	Base line	44	11	
21	7 Ferry street, Hulftsdorp st		•••••	•		1		road, railway	crossing to			
	to canal		792 9	0	~			Jail road	***	. 596 .	16	506 56
20	3 Metalling approach road Fort Railway Station		37 6	K		1	253	Temple road, Man		451	ο.	
269	Metalling approach road	to	0, 0		_	1	254	to Dematagoda r Hedges' court, De		20.4	Ŭ	
	Maradana Terminus	***	29 2 3	5	_	`		Norris road cana		45	36	
274	1 York street, Norris road		000 0	^	3.00#		255	Captain's Garden r		70	9 E	
	Prince street	1,	926 6	U	1,098	12	256	road to Justice l Church street, Rifl		79	39	
	•					- 1	,200	Steuart street	•••	102	56	·
	Gravel Roads.					- 1	257	Steuart street, Ch				
919	Canal now York atmost	+0				- 1	೧೯೦	to Wekanda road		55	34	
210	Ganal row, York street Hospital road		62 10	o ·		- 1	208	Glenie street, Mal the end	ay street to	109 4	13	
219	Chatham street, side roads	:	14 2			- {	259	Flower road, Tur	ret road to			
220	Hospital lane, Queen stree	t to	00.10			- {		Cambridge place	~,***	388 8	9	
1221	Hospital street Galle Face, seaside road	16	33 12 80 84		600	94	260	Guildford crescent,		171 7	'ß	_
	Prince street, footpath	••••	15 18		602	44	261	place to Torringt Maitland crescent,		***	•	-
228	Queen street, footpath	•••	12 42					place to Horton		144 6	4	
224	Church street, York street		# > ^ -	_			262	Sambridge place, F	lower road	'dos o	9	**
22/	' Queen street Dam street, Hulftsdorp str		51 80	U			969 1	to Albert crescen Regent street, Ma		205 8	J	*
	to Peer Saibo's lane	1	62 60	0		1	,	junction of Union	place	394 5	9	
226	Peer Saibo's lane, Dam st	reet				}	264 J	Brownrigg street,	Alexandra			110.00
	to Old Moor street	*** '	79 18	3				place to Robinson	street	156	5	116 96
~21	Old Moor street, Dam street	reet 1	51 76	3.	120 4	10	209 1	Robinson street, Y to Cemetery stree		174 4	7	
•	,	•		,	:	-			. ••••			
	the state of the s											

Est.	Expenditure. Éxpe	timated lenditure or 1894.	Disbursements to May 31, 1894. Rs. c.	Expenditure.	Estimated Expenditure for 1894. Rs. c.	Disbursements to May 31, 1894. Rs. c.
266	Borella Cross road, MaCarth place to North and Sout Base line road	h .	56	272 Gravelling approach the Kollupitiya stat 273 Gravelling approach	ion 165	20 —
267	Norris Canal road, Regen street to Maradana road	t		the Bambalapitiya s	station 226	0 -
	Gravelling approach road to Maradana junction	o . 129 6	60 —	•		<u> </u>
271	Gravelling approach road to the Slave Island station	o . 26 8	15 —		31,797	29 9,186 38

MUNICIPALITY. OF GALLE.

Minutes of Proceedings of a Meeting of the Municipal Council of Galle held at the Municipal Office on April 21, 1894, at 3 p.m.

Present:—The Chairman; A. Murray, Esq.; Hon. Dr. Anthonisz; R. L. Symes, Esq.; Wm. Abeysundera, Esq.; C. P. Hayley, Esq.; D. G. Gunewardene, Esq.; N. Dias Abeysinhe, Esq.; and C. L. M. Abdul Carim, Esq.

- 1. Read and confirmed Minutes of last Meeting.
- Read letter No. 149 of March 25, 1894, from the Hon. the Colonial Secretary to the Government Agent, Southern Province, and forwarded by him for the information of the Council, intimating that Government did not contemplate charging the cost of any part of the work of the Moragoda flood-outlet to local funds.
- 3. Read a letter from Mr. C. P. Hayley, dated February 24, 1894, suggesting the improvement of Middle street,

Fort, by acquiring certain portions of private premises and widening the street.

Resolved,—That the Council is of opinion that the widening of Middle street is very desirable, and that Government be asked to direct the Government Agent to acquire the land necessary for widening the street, viz., portions marked, A, B, D, E, and F in plan.

4. Submitted a memorial from Mr. D. A. de Silva Abeyewardena praying that the Council will be pleased to recommend him to the Government Agent for the honorary rank of Mudaliyar of the Galle District.

Resolved,-That the Council unanimously agree to recommend him strongly to the Government Agent for the rank solicited.

- · 5. Submitted the following recommendations from the Standing Committee:-
- "Recommended that Rs. 1,000 be transferred from vote for 'new roads' to 'public ceremony' (Ordinance No. 26 of 1890, section 5). That the balance of Rs. 1,000 for 'new roads' be used for the improvement of existing That Rs. 240 be transferred from 'minor works' to 'fire brigade.'"
 - Resolved,—That the above recommendations be approved.
 - 6. Submitted copy of Auditor's report to Government on accounts for the year 7893.
- 7. The subject of the formation of a fire brigade being brought up for consideration, it was-Resolved,—That a body of 18 volunteers be selected by Major Murray for the work, and that they be paid Rs. 30 a month.
- 8. The Sanitary Officer's report of second quarter, 1893, with connected papers, which had been referred to the Fort Member and the Provincial Engineer, was brought up by the former with the recommendation that the side drains of Parawa, Chando, and Leyn Baan streets be altered in the manner shown in the plan.
- 9. The following papers were laid on the table :- Sanitary Officer's report for fourth quarter, 1893; accounts for March, 1894.

Confirmed:

R. W. IEVERS. Chairman.

Statement of Receipts and Disbursements on account of the Municipal Fund from January 1 to April 30, 1894. •

No. 1.—GENERAL ACCOUNT.

RECEIPTS.	Estima Amou Rs.	nt.	Receipts. Rs. c.	DISBURSEMENTS.	Estimat Amou Rs.	nt.	Disbu men Rs.	ts.
Balance on December 31, 1893 Taxes Tolls Stamp duties and fees Market licenses Slaughter-house licenses Miscellaneous licenses Judicial fines Rents Miscellaneous	 10,000 14,385 17,244 15,235 4,868 1,126 404 1,440 3,320 688	0 85 0 0 0 0 0 0	11,752 28 11,064 12 6,588 38 298 50 1,670 64 339 76 218 50 446 75 842 6 791 93	Salaries and pension Office expenses Revenue services Lighting Sanitary charges Market charges Slaughter-house charges Miscellaneous Public works Balance	 10,292 810 1,495 3,617 6,386 690 531 14,195 29,874	0 60 0 0 0	3,430 230 142 1,280 1,408 227 142 5,319 6,526 18,709 15,303 34,012	17 47 79 98 86 3 74 93

RECEIPTS.	No. 2.—Assessi Estimated Amount. Rs. c. Rs. c.		pts.	DISBURSEMENTS.	Estimated Amount. Rs. c.		Disburse- ments. Rs. c.			
Balance on December 31, 1893 Assessment tax, arrears of 1892 and 1893 Do. for 1894	546	82	947 1,141 2,154	65 85	Salaries of constable arachchies Stationery and printing Commission to collectors Assessment clerk House numbers	•••	960 120 680 540 50	0 0 0	240 60 156 180 6	7
		,	4,243	80	Balance	•••			$\frac{642}{3,601}$ $\frac{4,243}{}$	58

No. 3.—WATERWORKS ACCOUNT.

REVENUE.	Amount. Rs. c.	Total. Rs. c.	Expenditure.	Amount. Rs. c.	Total. Rs. c.
Loan from Government Contribution from General Fund Interest, rebate, sale of materials, rent, mulct	70,000 0 6,300 0 1,389 51	77,689 51	Cost of erecting reservoir Cost of piping and laying them Land for reservoir Catch-drains to reservoir Reports Sundries Upkeep of Waterworks Interest on Waterworks Clearing bed of reservoir Building a wall at Bikke Clearing catchment area of jungle at Bikke Paving the Bikke channel Balance	40,278 23 27,836 87 4,857 27 443 89 987 80 498 45 733 34 134 24 532 64 375 0	77,387 73 301 78
	-	77,689 61		_	77,689 51

J. E. Anthonisz, Secretary.

Progress Report of Work done brought up to April 30, 1894.

9 1					. wh ee retree	٠٠,	1001.				
Description of Work.		Amount o	of Vo	te.	Expenditure in April.	*	Expendit April 3			Balan	.ce.
		$\mathbf{R}\mathbf{s}$.	c.		Rs. c.		Rs.	c.		Rs.	c.
Permanent repair of roads	•••	8,000	0	***	652 - 50		2,970	0a	•••	5.030	0
General upkeep of roads	•••	3,000	0	•••	166 - 55		881	4b		2.118	96
General upkeep of bridges	•••	1,500	0	•••	61 15		1.037	13c		462	87
Carts, building new	•••	335	0				300	0d		35	0
Carts, repair of old	•••	400	0	•••			126	0e		274	Ó
Repair of Municipal buildings	•••	500	0				195	78 <i>f</i>	•••	304	22
Improving drainage, Fort	•••	4,000	0		64 - 45	•••	796	95g		3,203	5
Whitewashing markets	•••	150	0		7 0		46	50°		103	50
Watering streets	•••	120	0	•••		•••	50	0	•••	70	Ŏ
Clearing canals and reclaiming swamps		2,000	0	•••	132 45	•••	710	39h	•••	1,289	61
Minor works	•••	2,760	0		9 0		229	Qj	•••	2,531	0
Clearing rampart wall	•••	250	0		9 0		69	ŏ	•••	181	Õ
Victoria park and planting trees in town	ı	814	0		126 - 62	•••	323	69	•••	490	31
Wind mill		150	0	•••	9 0	•••	66	0	•••	84	Õ
Improving markets	•••	800	0			•••	42	5k	•••	757	95
Improving Municipal Office		30 0	0	•••			161	971	•••	138	3
Improving sea bathing-place	•••	300	0	•••	_	•••	144	90m	•••	155	10

(a) Metalled 114 lines and gravelled 120 lines of road.
(b) Repaired superficially 592 squares of road, trimmed sides 142 lines, and cleared side drains 209 lines.
(c) Purchased timber for supporting the Bope iron bridge, purchased 100 planks for bridges, and repaired Miliduwa bridge, Attoya bridge, Bope bridge, Hirimbure cross second bridge, Hume road bridge, and Kepu-ela footbridge. bridge.

(d) Built two scavenging carts and a smallpox cart.

(e) Repaired two scavenging carts, 5 water carts, 2 iron hand carts.

(f) Repaired slaughter-hous, sea bathing-place, Talbot town wells, and cattle-pound shed.

(g) Building a sewer in Pedlar street, clearing side drains.

(h) Embanking Parana-ela and making a road over the reclaimed ground, used 1,500 cocoanut stakes, cleared Kepu-ela.

(j) Built a cart shed at Cotton Garden.
(k) Fort market repaired and improved.
(l) Supplied iron grating to arches over doors and windows, bolts to doors, a screen across the room.
(m) Repaired sea bathing-place near Eolus Bastion.

Sanitary Officer's Report for Quarter ended December 31, 1893.

The General Health during the quarter, compared with last year, has been very good. We have been free from epidemics of smallpox, chickenpox, measles, &c., which were prevailing to some extent during the last quarter of 1892

In November there were two deaths from tapioca poisoning in Ward No. 4.

At the beginning of December large quantities of fish called "lagas" were sold at the Municipal market at the very cheap rate of a cent per hundred, and poor people indulged freely in this fish, resulting in some cases of acute diarrhœa in the different Wards.

It is hardly necessary for me to recapitulate the sanitary defects mentioned under each Ward in the previous reports, as the same remarks still hold good. The side drains in the Fort (those covered by stone slabs) are filled with sand, and require cleansing very badly. In Parawa, Chando, and other narrow streets the drains seem to be quite full of sand, and seriously interfere with drainage. Any slope waters discharged into these drains will be absorbed by the earth, which, becoming saturated with decomposing animal and vegetable organic matter, constantly give off foul and noxious gases. This renders the houses damp and unhealthy. These narrow streets, which are about the most unhealthy parts of the Fort, require more attention.

The dangers from foul cesspits are on the increase. Until the dry-earth system is adopted in the Fort the dangers from this source will continue to be on the increase each year with the constant accumulation of filth in

the soil.

The condition of the Pettigala-ela is as bad as ever. The water charged with human excrement stagnates The condition of the Pettigala-ela is as bad as ever. The water charged with human excrement stagnates throughout the year, except after a heavy shower. During the period of stagnation the greater part of the water is lost by evaporation and percolation into the soil. Anybody going past the commencement of the ela where the drains meet will see the water saturated with human excreta reduced to a sympy consistence teeming with maggots and exhaling a very foul and oppressive odour. The sides of the drains will be seen studded with fœcal matter in different stages of decomposition, which ultimately dries up, and being wafted about in the air produce mischief at a distance even. A few months ago a drain few yards in length was built at the commencement of the ela with the object of establishing a flow of the stagnant water. Unfortunately this 'drain, which is on a higher level than the junction of the feeding drains, has made matters worse. At this ispot there is one Municipal latrine use by females, and it is evident that the males must be using the drain as a latrine. evident that the males must be using the drain as a latrine.

To mitigate this statement I would suggest—

(1) To build a latrine for the use of males.
(2) To serve notices on the owners of houses along the drains to provide cemented cesspits.
(3) To employ a constable to detect and prosecute the offenders.

To consult an able engineer and find out the best means of draining this ela.

To build a cemented cesspool and pump the contents into the sea if there is no possibility of draining directly into the sea.

I earnestly hope, in the interest of the public health, that the Chairman and Councillors will seriously consider this matter and carry out the above suggestions to mitigate this most serious nuisance, the baneful effects of which are felt all along the canal, polluting the atmosphere, the soil, and the wells along its course, endangering the health of the inhabitants and passers by, and affording the best medium for the growth and development of the germs of communicable diseases. Should, for instance, cholera germs be introduced to the ela, it would end in incalculable mischief.

Street sweeping was satisfactory.
Scavenging.—The bulls for the carts used to be sent rather late.

Slaughtering of Cattle.—The quality of the cattle was good. No pigs were submitted to me for examination. Latrine accommodation is insufficient, and consequently people use the seabeach, waste lands, &c., as latrines. There should be separate latrines for males and females at each spot.

> CHARLES DE SILVA, M.B., M.R.C.S., &c. Sanitary Officer.

NOTICES OF INSOLVENCY.

In the District Court of Colombo.

No. 1,794. In the matter of the insolvency of William Morton Smith as individual and as partner in the firm of W. M. Smith & Co.

OTICE is hereby given that a meeting of the creditors of the above-named insolvent will take place at the sitting of this court on July 26, 1894, to prove

By order of court,

Colombo, June 27, 1894.

J. B. Misso, Secretary.

No. 1,808.

No. 1,809.

In the matter of the insolvency of Benjamin Peter de Silva, of Colombo.

OTICE is hereby given that the second public sitting in the above matter will be held on July 19, 1894.

By order of court,

Colombo, June 22, 1894.

J. B. Misso, Secretary.

In the matter of the insolvency of Oona Ismail Lebbe Maricar, of No. 82, Bankshall street, Colombo.

OTICE is hereby given that a meeting of the creditors of the above-named insolvent will take place at the sitting of this court on July 26, 1894, to consider the application of the assignee to sell by public auction the movables belonging to the insolvent and lying in boutique No. 82, Bankshall street, Colombo.

By order of court,

Colombo, June 26, 1894.

J. B. Misso, Secretary.

No. 1,809. In the matter of the insolvency of Oona Ismail Lebbe Maricar, of No. 82, Bankshall street, Colombo.

TOTICE is hereby given that the second public sitting of the court for the insolvent to surrender and conform, which was fixed for the 14th instant, has been refixed for July 26, 1894.

By order of court,

Colombo, June 26, 1894.

J. B. Misso, Secretary.

No. 1,810.

In the matter of the insolvency of Soona Rawana Mana Arumugan Pulle, of Fourth Cross street, Pettah, Colombo.

WHEREAS the above-named Soona Rawana Mana Arumugan Pulle was on June 21, 1894, adjudged insolvent by the District Court of Colombo, and an order has been made by the said court placing the estate of the said insolvent under sequestration in the hands of the Fiscal: Notice thereof is hereby given to all concerned; and notice is also hereby given that the said court has appointed that two public sittings of the court will be held, to wit, on July 26 and August 16, 1894, for the said insolvent to surrender and conform, and for such other proceedings in the said matter as may then be competent under the Ordinance No. 7 of 1853, intituled "An Ordinance for the due collection, administration, and distribution of Insolvent Estates."

By order of court,

Colombo, June 22, 1894.

J. B. Misso, Secretary.

In the District Court of Kandy.

No. 1,343.

In the matter of the insolvency of H. Johannes Soyza alias D. J. Gomes,

OTICE is hereby given that a meeting of the creditors of the above-named insolvent will take place at the sitting of this court on July 27, 1894, to consider the granting of a certificate of conformity to the above-named insolvent.

By order of court,

Kandy, June 23, 1894.

A. SANTIAGO. Secretary.

NOTICES OF FISCALS' SALES.

Western Province.

In the District Court of Colombo.

Nanayakkarayage Don Pawlus de Silvs Appuhami.....Plaintiff.

No. C/2,836. 1, Hitanadure Maria de Silva, widow of Welisarage Thomis Fernando, deceased;
2, Attanayaka Hendrick Percra and 3, Welisarage Balacia Fernand, husband and wife, all of Mahabage in the Ragam patti

of the Alutkuru korsle......Defendants.

NOTICE is hereby given that on July 23, 1894, commencing at 12 o'clock noon, will be sold by public auction at the respective premises the following

properties. viz.:—
(1) All those portions of Delgahawatta, all that portion Dambugahawatta, and all those portions of Dawatagahawatta, adjoining each other and now forming one property,

with all the tiled houses and other buildings and plantations and trees thereon, situated at Mahabage in the Ragam pattu of Alutkuru korale, in the District of Colombo, Western Province; and bounded on the north by the property of Mawatage Simplino Fernando, on the east by the high road, on the south by the limit of the allot-ment of land belonging to Santiago Silva and the limit of the garden of Alagiadure Martino Fernando and others, and on the west by the property of Nissange Marselis Mendis and the garden of Etige Tiadoris Silva, Welisarage Thomis Fernando, and others; containing in extent 4 acres more or less.

(2) All that land called and known as Telambugaha-watta, with all the buildings, plantations, and trees thereon, situated at Mattumagala in the Ragam pattu of the Alut-kuru korale aforesaid; and bounded on the north by the garden called Munamalgahawatta which belonged to Don Saradiel, late Police Vidane, and now belonging to others, on the east by the high road, on the south by the garden which belonged to Babasinno Kandappa and now belong-

(60)

ing to others and by the limit of another land, and on the west by the garden of Lokubalasuriage Don Harmanis alias Mudalihami Appuhami; containing in extent 2

acres and 2.81 square perches.
(3) All that land called and known as Peragahawatta alias Ketakelagahawatta, all that portion of Kahatagahawatta alias Maragahawatta, and all those portions of Kahatagahawatta adjoining each other and now forming one property, with all the buildings, plantations, and trees thereon, but six cocoanut trees belonging to others, also situated at Mahabage aforesaid; bounded on the north by the field of Etige Hendrick Silva and the land belonging to the estate of late Welisarage Tepanis Fernando and the lands belonging to Etige Hendrick Silva, Konganige Jacob Anthony, and Welisarage Thomis Fernando, on the east by the land belonging to Don Warlis Karunaratne, Peace Officer, Dhammakirti Julian Perera, and Endahandi Franciscu Fernando, on the south by the lands belonging to Welisarage Abilino Fernando and the land belonging to the estate of late Lukas Perera Vedarala, and on the west by the limit of an allotment of land belonging to Endahandi Tiadoris Fernando, the properties of Konganige Ablino Fernando and Attanayaka Andrick Perera; containing in extent 3 acres and 2 roods.

(4) All that portion of land called and known as Kongahawatta alias Paranawatta, with all the buildings, plantations, and trees thereon, also situated at Mahabage aforesaid; bounded on the north by the land belonging to Jacob Anthony and now of Konganige Abilino Fernando, on the east by a portion of the land belonging to Clementi Fernando and now of Attanayaka Andrick Perera, and a limit of another land, on the south also by a portion of the land belonged to Clementi Fernando and now of Andrick Perera, and on the west by a portion of this land now belonging to Selestina Alwis and others and the garden of Konganige Abilino Fernando; containing in

extent 3 square roods more or less.

(5) All that land called and known as Deniyakumbura alias Midellagahakumbura and now known as Deneiya Midellagahaovita, with the plantations and trees thereon, situated at Mahabage aforesaid; bounded on the north by Depa-ela, on the east by the limit of the field of Hendrick Fernando Karunanayaka, Peace Officer, on the south by the limit of the garden of Tepanis Fernando, and on the west by a portion of the same field belonging to Hitanadure Selestian Silva; containing in extent three bushels of paddy sowing more or less.

(6) All those two portions of the field called and known as Midellagahakumbura, adjoining each other and now forming one property, situated at Muturajawela (on the other side of the Welisara canal) in the Ragam pattu of the Alutkuru korale aforesaid; bounded on the north by a portion of this field belonged to Marselis Piento, Registrar, and now belonging to others, on the east by the Negombo canal, on the south by a portion of the same field belonging to Mallikage Abilino Alwis and others, and on the west by the limitary dam which separates the vila; containing in extent twenty parahs of paddy sowing more or less, together with all and similar the appurtenances, rights, and easements whatsoever thereunto respectively belonging, or in any wise appertaining, or usually held or occupied, used, or enjoyed therewith, or reputed or known as part or parcel thereof; and all the estate, right, title, and interest, claim, and demand whatsoever of the defendants in, to, upon, or out of the said lands and premises, are declared bound and executable under the judgment entered in the above-styled case No. C/2,836.

HENRY A. PERERA, Deputy Fiscal's Office, Deputy Fiscal. Welisara, June 27, 1894.

In the District Court of Kalutara.

Hendrick Perera Wijesooria, of Desastera

No. 1,017.

Yohannes de Fonseka Samarasekera Appuhami, of Desastera Kalutara Defendant.

OTICE is hereby given that on Thursday, July 12, 1894, at 2 o'clock in the afternoon, will be sold by public auction at the Deputy Fiscal's Office, Kalutara, the following property, for the recovery of Rs. 602 56,

with interest on Rs. 325 at 18 per cent. per annum from February 22, 1894, viz.:-

The mortgage bond No. 2,180, dated April 11, 1888, executed in favour of defendant before Gabriel Perera, Notary Public, and the defendant's right, title, interest, claim, and demand in and to the same, mortgaged with plaintiff by bond No. 729, dated March 17, 1890, and filed with the plaint, be and the same is hereby declared bound and executable for the decree in the above case.

Deputy Fiscal's Office, Kalutara, June 26, 1894.

H. W. BRODHURST, Deputy Fiscal.

Central Province.

In the District Court of Kandy.

N. K. P. V. Valliappa Chetty, of Kandy.......Plaintiff. Vs. No 7,862.

Packeer Tamby Lebbe Mohamadu Tamby Arachchi, of Matale......Defendant.

NOTICE is hereby given that on July 24, 1894, commencing at 12 o'clock noon, will be sold by public auction at the premises the following property of the defendant :-

1. Alandugahamullawatta, situate in King street in the town of Matale, with the plantations and buildings thereon; bounded on the north by the land belonging to the Roman Catholic church and Sinne Lebbe Sesma Lebbe, east by King street, south by property belonging to Mr. Robb and to Wappoo Kandu Kunchi Kandu, and on the west by the paddy field belonging to Akunelikumbra Kira and Meewattakumbura Kira, containing in extent 1 acreland 7 perches, excepting therefrom a portion to the south 30 ft. in breadth and 140 ft. in length, with the plantations thereon.

An allotment of land of about 140 ft. in length and 30 ft in breadth, with the plantations standing thereon; bounded on the north by the limit of the remaining portion of this land belonging to Neina Marik-ker, on the east by King street, south by the land belong-ing to Mr. Robb and Wappoo Kandu Kunchi Kandu, and on the west by the garden belonging to Meewattakumbura

Kira, sitnate at Matale aforesaid. Amount of writ Rs. 679.50

Fiscal's Office. Kandy, June 25, 1894. C. R. CUMBERLAND, Fiscal.

Southern Province.

In the District Court of Galle.

Nanayakkarage Don Paulis Silva, of Colombo ... Plaintiff. Semage Thepanis of Galle, now in Col-

omboSubstituted Plaintiff.

No. 1,658. ∇s .

Dewunuge Henry Pedris, of Dangedara...... Defendant.

OTICE is hereby given that on Thursday, July 19, 1894, at 12 o'clock noon, will be sold by public auction at the residing house of defendant at Dangedara the right, title, and interest of the said defendant in the following property, viz. :-

Three almirahs, 2 family beds, 1 couch, and other movables seized.

On Friday, July 20, 1894, commencing at 4 o'clock in the afternoon, at the spot.

1. Undivided half part of Dowewatta, exclusive of the planter's share of the extent of about 4 acres, situate at Dangedara.

2. An undivided parts of the land called Delgahawatta alias Upasakawatta, of the extent of about 2 acres,

situate at Dangedara.

3. All the plantation and soil of Amukanattewattaaddaraowita, of the extent of about 1 acre, situate at Dangedara.

4. Lot marked letter D of Amukanatteaddara, of the extent of about 2 kurunies, together with 18 cubits tiled house standing thereon, situate at Dangedara. This writ is issued to levy a sum of Rs. 1,003.871

Fiscal's Office Galle, June 19, 1894. H. J. WOUTERSZ, Deputy Fiscal.

In the District Court of Galle.

1, Don Charles Philip Weerakon; 2, Carolis Dias Seneviratna, Notary; 3, Devondera Frederick de Silva, all of Galle; 4, Don Elias Amarasiri Jayasingha, Mudaliyar of Nagoda, trustees of the Sinhalese National Buddhistic Fund, Galle Plaintiffs. No. 2,675. $\mathbf{v}_{\mathbf{s}}$.

Dewunuge Henry Pedris, of Dangedara......Defendant. TOTICE is hereby given that on Monday, July 23, 1894, commencing at 3 o'clock in the afternoon,

will be sold by public auction at the spot the following property, viz. :-

1. The undivided ²/₃ parts of all the soil and trees, exclusive of the planter's share of the garden called Mahaduwewatta situate at Dangedara.

2. The one amunam of paddy sowing extent of Ela-addaradangahaliyadda or owita, situate at Dangedara.
3. The undivided 3 parts of the defined half lot bearing letter B of the land called Kanuwalakumbura or wita 3 pales' extent delication. owita, 3 pelas' extent of paddy, situate at Seddegeduwaaddara at Dangedara.

4. The undivided 3 parts of one amunam of paddy sowing extent of the field Dombagahaliyaddaowita, situate at Dandgedara; property mortgaged by the writing obligatory dated July 1, 1893, and declared executable under the judgment entered in the above case.

This writ is issued to levy a sum of Rs. 1,182, with interest on Rs. 1,000 at 12 per cent. per annum from September 1, 1893.

Fiscal's Office, Galle, June 22, 1894. H. J. WOUTERSZ, Deputy Fiscal.

NOTICES TO MARINERS.

IS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR has been pleased to direct that the following Notices to Mariners be published for general information.

By His Excellency's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

Colonial Secretary's Office. Colombo, June 28, 1894.

BATAVIA.—No. 15.

E. I. Archipelago—Sumatra, West Coast—Breakers between the Islands Kersik and Kalang Kalang.

The Commander of H. N. M. Sumatra reports to have seen breakers between the islands Kersik and Kalang Kalang, in approx. lat. 1° 49′ S., long. 100° 36′ E.

This notice affects the charts:—
No. 31. Westkust Sumatra. Padang tot Vlakkehoek, 1887.

No. 32. Westkušt Sumatra. Periaman tot Indrapoera, 1878.

ROELL, Vice-Admiral, Commanding the Naval Forces in Neth.-India. Batavia, May 31, 1894.

Bengal.—No. 106.

China Sea—Malacca Strait—Penang Harbour—Alteration in Entrance to South Channel.

The British Admiralty has given notice (No. 221 of 1894) that considerable alteration has taken place in the entrance to South Channel, Penang harbour. The bank on the east side is extending into the channel, and on the west side washing away outside Rimau island.

Caution is therefore necessary in using this channel until the soundings recently obtained by Commander A. M. Field, H.M. surveying vessel Egeria, are shown on the chart.

> B. P. CREAGH, Comdr., R.I.M., Port Officer of Calcutta.

Calcutta, June 4, 1894.

BENGAL.-No. 107.

Australia, South Coast—Cape Nelson, Cape Schanck, and Gabo Island—Intended Exhibition of Auxiliary "Red" Lights.

The British Admiralty has given notice (No. 223 of 1894) that an auxiliary red light, visible seaward over an arc of 180°, will be exhibited from each of the undermentioned lighthouses on the dates given.

These lights will be invisible to an observer whose eye is 14 ft. above the level of the sea, until at a distance of

3 miles or less from the light.

They are intended to warn mariners of their near approach to the shore, and when seen course should be altered to seaward until beyond the range of the red

light.

In hazy or misty weather mariners should not rely on

sighting these red lights, but should keep a good offing.

1. Cape Nelson—the light will be exhibited June
12, 1894. Approximate position: lat. 38° 25′ 45″ S., long.
141° 33′ 0″ E.

2. Cape Schanck—the light will be exhibited June 26, 1894. Approximate position; lat. 38° 29′ 45″ S., long. 144° 53′ 10″ E.

3. Gabo island—the light will be exhibited July 10, 1894. Approximate position; lat. 37° 34′ 20″ S., long. 149° 55′ 45″ E.

B. P. CREAGH, Comdr., R.I.M., Port Officer of Calcutta.

Calcutta, June 4, 1894.

Bengal.-No. 108.

Eastern Archipelago—Java, North Coast—A Conical Buoy moored marking Sunken Wreck in Pekalongan Road.

The British Admiralty has given notice (No. 229 of 1894) that a conical buoy, painted red, with a white horizontal stripe and the word "Wreck" in black letters on it, has been moored on the northern side of the sunken wreck of the burnt vessel Ben Macdhui, in a position with Pekalongan harbour light bearing S. by E. (S. 11° E.), distant about one mile.

Approximate position; lat. 6° 50½ S., long. 109° 41' E.

Variation, 2° easterly in 1894.

B. P. CREAGH, Comdr., R.I.M., Port Officer of Calcutta.

Calcutta, June 4, 1894.

Bengal.-No. 109.

Australia-Dungeness, Cairns Harbour, Barron River, Mulgrave River, and Lark Pass.—Buoys and Beacons.

The Portmaster, Brisbane, has given notice (No. 9 of 1894) that the two outer black buoys and all the beacons at Dungeness, Port Hinchinbrook, are out of position.

That the heads of the beacons marking the cutting across the Cairns bar are down.

That the beacons on the bars of the Barron and Mul-

grave rivers are down.

That the outer beacon marking the Lark Pass, Barrier reef, is down, and that the sandbank which formerly marked the reef has disappeared.

The above-named buoys and beacons will be restored

as soon as practicable.

B. P. CREAGH, Comdr., R.I.M., Port Officer of Calcutta.

Calcutta, June 4, 1894.

BENGAL.—No. 110.

Australia-Great Sandy Strait-Alteration in Channel near Stewart Island.

The Portmaster, Brisbane, has given notice (No. 10 of 1894) that owing to recent small changes in the channel near Stewart island the following directions must be observed, vis. :-

Vessels from the southward after passing the white triangular leading marks on Stewart island are to bring them in line astern, and keep them so until near to a white beacon on Stewart island, then haul to the eastward, opening the leading marks mentioned about three times their own width, and proceed with them in that position until past the red beacon, when proceed as usual.

A black beacon has been placed on the end of the spit, off the south end of Stewart island, previously marked

by a black buoy.

B. P. CREAGH, Comdr., R.I.M., Port Officer of Calcutta.

Calcutta, June 4, 1894.

UNOFFICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE HAPUGAHALANDE TEA COMPANY, LIMITED.

- 1. The name of the Company is "The Hapugahalande Tea Company, Limited."
- 2. The registered office of the Company is to be established in Ceylon.
- 3. The objects for which the Company is established are-
- (a) To purchase all that estate called Hapugahalande, situated in the District of Mátalé, in the Central Province of Ceylon, from the proprietors, William Taylor, of Dikoya, Ceylon, and William Milne, of Mátalé, Ceylon,
- (b) To purchase, or lease, or otherwise acquire any other estate or estates, land or lands, machinery, implements, tools, live and dead stock, stores, effects, and other property, real or personal, movable or immovable, of any kind.
- (c) To improve, plant, clear, cultivate, and develop the said Hapugahalande estate or any other estates or lands that may be purchased, leased, or otherwise acquired, as tea estates or with any other products or in any other ways, and to let, lease, and exchange or mortgage the same or any part thereof, whether in consideration of money or securities for money, or shares, debentures, or securities in any other Company, or for any other consideration, or otherwise to trade in, dispose of, or deal with the same or any part thereof.
 - (d) To purchase tea leaf and (or) other raw products for manufacture, manipulation, or sale.
 - (e) To manufacture tea leaf and (or) other raw products.
- (f) To carry on the business of manufacturers, growers, planters, and exporters of tea and other products in all their branches on behalf of the Company, or as agents for others, and on commission or otherwise.
- (g) To plant, grow, and produce, buy, sell, trade, and deal in tea, coffee, cinchona, cacao, cardamoms, and other plants, trees, and natural products of any kind or any of them.
- (h) To borrow or receive on loan money for the above purposes or any of them, and for repayment of all or any of the money so borrowed, and the security thereof upon mortgage, debenture bonds, bills, bonds for cash credit, interest warrants, letters of credit, trust deds or other deeds of security, promissory notes, bills of lading, or other negotiable instruments over all or any of the Company's property or assets, movable or immovable, real or personal, or on security of the subscribed capital of the Company, called or not called, or otherwise.
- (i) To establish in any part or parts of the world agencies for carrying on or developing the business of the Company or any part thereof.
- (j) To acquire by purchase in money, or in shares, or bonds, or otherwise, and undertake all or any part of the business, property, assets and liabilities of any person or Company carrying on any business in Ceylon or elsewhere, which this Company is authorized to carry on, or possessed of property suitable for the purposes of this Company.
- (k) To unite, co-operate, amalgamate, or enter into partnership or any arrangements for sharing profits, or union of interests, or any other arrangement with any person or Company already engaged in or hereafter to be established for the purpose of carrying on any business having objects wholly or in part similar or analogous or subsidiary to those of the Company or any of them, and to subscribe for or otherwise acquire for the benefit and in the name of the Company or otherwise, and pay for in any manner that may be agreed upon, either in money, or in shares, or bonds, or otherwise, and to hold any shares, stock, or other interest in any such Company, and to promote the formation of any such Company.
- (1) To do all such other acts or things as are incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above objects or any of them.
 - 4. The liability of the Shareholders is limited.
- 5. The nominal capital of the Company is rupees one hundred and seventy thousand (Rs. 170,000), divided into

eight hundred and fifty shares of rupees two hundred (Rs. 200) each, with power to increase or decrease the capital.

In case the Company shall increase its capital by the issue of new shares, such shares may be issued upon the terms specified in the Articles of Association for the time being of the Company.

We, the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of being formed into a Company in accordance with this Memorandum of Association, and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in the capital of the Company set opposite our respective names :-

Names and Addresses of	by each Subscriber.			
R. LEWIS M. BROWN, Colombo	•••	***	•••	One
Joseph C. Dunbar, Talawakele	***	1 ***	• • •	One
ROBERT DAVIDSON, Colombo		•••	***	One
J. Buchan, Colombo	***	***	***	One
T. J. ANDERSON, Colombo WALTER SEALE, Colombo	•••	•••	***	One
G. W. CARLYON, Colombo	•••	***	***	One One
C. W. CARLION, COLOMBO	•••	***	•••	· · · · One

Witness to the above signatures:

F. J. DE SARAM, Proctor, Supreme Court, Colombo.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE HAPUGAHALANDE TEA COMPANY, LIMITED.

- 1. The regulations contained in Table C in the Schedule annexed to "The Joint Stock Companies' Ordinance, 1861," shall not apply to this Company, which shall be governed by the regulations contained in these Articles, but subject to repeal, addition, or alteration by special resolutions. The Company may, by special resolution, alter or make provisions instead of, or in addition to, any of the regulations of the Company whether contained or comprised in these Articles or not.
- 2. The Company shall forthwith, after its incorporation, purchase all that estate called and known as Hapugahalande, situated in the District of Mátalé, in the Island of Ceylon, for the sum of Rs. 170,000, upon such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon between the Company and the proprietors of the said estate.

SHARES.

- 3. Every person taking any share in the Company shall testify his acceptance thereof by writing under his hand in such form as the Company from time to time-directs.
- 4. The Directors may from time to time make such calls upon the Shareholders in respect of all moneys unpaid on their shares as the Directors may think fit, and each Shareholder shall be liable to pay the amount of calls so made to the persons and at the time and place appointed by the Directors. A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Directors authorizing such call was passed.
- 5. If before or on the day appointed for payment any Shareholder does not pay the amount of any call for which he is liable, then such Shareholder shall be liable to pay interest for the same at the rate of nine per cent. per annum from the day appointed for the payment thereof to the time of the actual payment.
- 6. The Directors may, if they think fit, receive from any of the Shareholders willing to advance the same all or any part of the moneys due upon their respective shares beyond the sums actually called up, and upon the moneys so paid in advance or so much thereof as from time to time exceeds the amount of the calls then made upon the shares in respect of which such advance has been made, the Company shall pay interest at such rate as the Shareholders paying such sum in advance and the Directors agree upon. The shares, except when otherwise provided, shall be allotted at the discretion of and by the Directors, who may from time to time issue any unissued shares, and may add to such shares such an amount of premium as they may consider proper. Provided that such unissued shares shall first be offered by the Directors to the registered Shareholders for the time being of the Company as nearly as possible in proportion to the shares already held by them, and such shares as shall not be accepted by the Shareholder or Shareholders to whom the share shall have been offered within the time specified in that behalf by the Directors may be disposed of by the Directors in such manner as they think most beneficial to the Company.
- 7. If several persons are joint-holders of any share, any one of such persons may give effectual receipt for the dividend payable in respect of such share.
- 8. Every Shareholder shall be entitled to a certificate under the common seal of the Company specifying the share or shares held by him and the amount paid thereon.
 - 9. If such certificate is used up, worn out, or lost, it may be renewed on payment of fifty cents.

TRANSFER OF SHARES.

- 10. The Company may decline to register any transfer of shares made by a Shareholder who is indebted to them.
 - 11. The fee payable to the Company for the registration of a transfer shall be rupees two.
- 12. The register of transfers shall be closed during the fourteen days immediately preceding every Ordinary General Meeting of the Company, and at such other times (if any) and for such period as the Directors may from time to time determine, provided always that it shall not be closed for more than thirty days in any year.
- 13. Subject to the restriction of these Articles any Shareholder may transfer all or any of his shares by instrument in writing. The Directors may decline to register any transfer whatever, and shall not be required to assign any reason for so declining. In the event of the Directors declining to register a transfer, the Shareholder desirous of executing the same or the Directors may convene an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company to resolve whether the said transfer shall be registered or not, and the resolution of such Extraordinary General Meeting shall be absolute.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES.

- 14. The executors or administrators or heirs of a deceased Shareholder shall be the only persons recognized by the Company as having any title to his share.
- 15. Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy, or insolvency of any Shareholder, or in consequence of the marriage of any female Shareholder, or in any way other than by transfer, may be registered as a Shareholder upon such evidence being produced as may from time to time be required by the Directors.
- 16. Any person who has become entitled to a share in any way other than by transfer may, instead of being registered himself, elect to have some person to be named by him registered as a holder of such share.
- 17. The person so becoming entitled shall testify such election by executing to his nominee a transfer of such share.
- 18. The instrument of transfer shall be presented to the Company accompanied with such evidence as the Directors may require to prove the title of the transferor, and thereupon the Company shall register the transferee as a Shareholder. Provided always that the Directors shall have the right at all times to decline to register such person as aforesaid, and shall not be required to assign any reason for so declining. In the event of the Directors declining to register such person as a holder of such share, they shall, upon the request of such person, convene an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company to resolve whether such transfer shall be registered or not, and the resolution of such meeting shall be absolute.

FORFEITURE OF SHARES.

19. If any Shareholder fails to pay any call on the appointed day, the Company may at any time thereafter, during such time as the call remains unpaid, serve a notice on him requiring him to pay such call, together with any interest that may have accrued by reason of such non-payment.

- 20. The notice shall name a further day and a place or places, being a place or places at which calls of the Company are usually made payable, on and at which such call is to be paid. It shall also state that in the event of non-payment at the time and place appointed the shares in respect of which such call was made will be liable to be forfeited.
- 21. If the requisitions of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any share in respect of which such notice has been given may be forfeited by a resolution of the Directors to that effect.
- 22. Any share so forfeited shall be deemed to be the property of the Company, and may be disposed of in such manner as the Directors think fit.
- 23. Any Shareholder whose shares have been forfeited shall, notwithstanding, be liable to pay to the Company all calls owing upon such shares at the time of the forfeiture.

INCREASE OF CAPITAL.

- 24. The Directors may, with the sanction of a special resolution of the Company in General Meeting, increase its capital by the creation of new shares, of such amounts per share, and in the aggregate as such resolution shall direct. All new shares shall be offered by the Directors to the registered Shareholders for the time being of the Company as nearly as possible in proportion to the existing shares held by them, and such shares as shall not be accepted by the Shareholder or Shareholders to whom the same shall have been offered within the time specified in that behalf by the Directors may be disposed of by the Directors in such manner as they think most beneficial to the Company. The Directors shall have power to add to such new shares such an amount of premium as they may consider expedient.
- 25. Any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall be considered as part of the original capital, and shall be subject to the same provisions in all respects, whether with reference to the payment of calls or the forfeiture of shares on non-payment of calls or otherwise, as if it had been part of the original capital.

Borrowing.

26. The Directors shall have power from time to time, at their discretion, to borrow money for the purposes of the Company to such extent, in such manner, and upon such terms and conditions as they may think fit, and for such purpose to grant bonds, promissory notes, bills, debentures, interest warrants, bonds for cash credit, trust deeds, or other documents, to issue letters of credit, and to grant mortgages or other deeds or instruments of security over all or any of the Company's lands, property, estates, and assets, but so that the sum so to be borrowed shall not at any one time exceed the sum of Rs. 30,000. Provided that nothing herein contained shall be held to prevent the Directors procuring from time to time in the usual course of business such temporary advances on the produce of the estates as they may find it to be necessary or expedient for the purpose of defraying the expenses of working the said estate. Provided also that before the Directors execute any mortgage or issue any debentures in excess of the said sum of Rs. 30,000 they shall obtain the sanction of the Company in General Meeting, whether Ordinary or Extraordinary. A declaration under the Company's seal contained in or endorsed upon any ofthe documents mentioned in this Article and subscribed by two or more of the Directors or by one Director and the Secretary or Secretaries, to the effect that the Directors have power to borrow the amount which such document may represent, shall be conclusive evidence thereof in all questions between the Company and its creditors; and no such document containing such declaration shall, as regards the creditor, be void on the ground of its being granted in excess of the aforesaid borrowing power, unless it be proved that such creditor was aware that it was so granted.

GENERAL MEETING.

- 27. The first General Meeting shall be held at such time not being more than twelve months after the incorporation of the Company and at such place as the Directors may determine.
- 28. Subsequent General Meetings may be held at such time and place as may be prescribed by the Company in General Meeting, and if not so prescribed, then at such place and at such time as soon after the First day of January in each year as the Directors shall determine.
- 29. The above-named General Meetings shall be called Ordinary Meetings; all other General Meetings shall be called Extraordinary.
- 30. The Directors may, whenever they think fit—and they shall, upon a requisition made in writing by not less than one-fifth in number of the Shareholders of the Company for the time being, or by any Shareholder or Shareholders holding not less than one-fifth part of the shares of the Company for the time being subscribed for—convene an Extraordinary General Meeting.
- 31. Any requisition so made by the Shareholder or Shareholders shall express the object of the meeting proposed to be called, and shall be left at the registered office of the Company.
- 32. Upon the receipt of such requisition, the Directors shall forthwith proceed to convene an Extraordinary General Meeting, to be held at such time and place as they shall think fit, not being more than twenty-one days after the leaving of the requisition; and if they do not proceed to convene the said meeting within twenty-one days after the leaving of the requisition, the requisitionist or requisitionists or any other Shareholder amounting to the required number may himself or themselves convene an Extraordinary General Meeting, to be held at such time or place as he or they shall think fit.
- 33. Fourteen days' notice at least, specifying the place and the hour of meeting, and the purpose for which any meeting is to be held, shall be given by advertisement in the Ceylon Government Gazette, or in such other manner (if any) as may be prescribed by the Company.
- 34. Any Shareholder may, on giving not less than ten days' previous notice of any resolution, submit the same to a meeting.
 - 35. Such notice shall be given by leaving a copy of the resolution at the registered office of the Company.
- 36. In order to constitute a meeting, whether Ordinary or Extraordinary, there shall be present, either personally or by proxy, three or more Shareholders holding in the aggregate not less than one-tenth of the capital for the time being subscribed for, and no business shall be transacted at any Meeting unless the requisite quorum be present at the commencement of the business.
- 37. If within one hour from the time appointed for the meeting the required number of Shareholders is not present, the meeting, if convened upon the requisition of a Shareholder or Shareholders, shall be dissolved. In any other case it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and place; and if at such adjourned meeting the required number of Shareholders is not present, those members who are present shall be a quorum, and may transact the business for which the meeting was called.

- 38. The Chairman (if any) of the Board of Directors shall preside as Chairman at every meeting of the Company.
- 39. If there be no such Chairman, or if at any meeting he is not present at the time of holding the same, the Shareholders present shall choose one of their number to be Chairman of such meeting.
- 40. The Chairman may, with the consent of the meeting, adjourn any meeting from time to time and from place to place; but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place.
- 41. At any General Meeting, unless a poll is demanded by at least two Shareholders, a declaration by the Chairman that a resolution has been carried, and an entry to that effect in the book of proceedings of the Company, shall be sufficient evidence of the fact, without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against such resolution.
- 42. If a poll is demanded in manner aforesaid, the same shall be taken in such manner as the Chairman directs, and the result of such poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the Company in General Meeting.
- 43. In the event of a resolution being brought before a General Meeting involving the sale of the Company's estates or any portion thereof, or the winding up of the Company, a majority of three-fourths of the Shareholders present and (or) represented by proxy shall be necessary to carry such resolution.
 - 44. Every Shareholder shall have one vote for every share held by him.
- 45. If any Shareholder is a lunatic, or idiot, or prodigal, he may vote by his curator; and if any Shareholder is a minor, he may vote by his guardian or any of his guardians if more than one.
- 46. If one or more persons are jointly entitled to a share or shares, the person whose name stands first in the register of Shareholders as one of the holders of such share or shares, and no other, shall be entitled to vote in respect of the same.
- 47. No Shareholder shall be entitled to vote at any meeting unless all calls due from him have been paid, and no Shareholder other than the trustee or assignee of a bankrupt or representative of a deceased Shareholder, or person acquiring by marriage, shall be entitled to vote at any meeting held after the expiration of three months from the registration of the Company in respect of any share which he has acquired by transfer, unless he has been possessed of the share in respect of which he claims to vote at least three months previously to the time of holding the meeting at which he proposes to vote.
- 48. Votes may be given either personally or by proxies. A proxy shall be appointed in writing under the hand of the appointor, or, if such appointor is a corporation, under their common seal.
- 49. No person shall be appointed a proxy who is not a Shareholder, and the instrument or mandate appointing him shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the time of holding the meeting at which he proposes to vote, but no instrument or mandate appointing a proxy, other than a power of attorney, shall be valid after the expiration of three months from the date of its execution.

DIRECTORS.

- 50. The qualification of a Director shall be holding not less than ten shares of the Company upon which all calls for the time being shall have been paid.
- 51. The number of Directors shall not be less than three or more than five; but this clause shall be construed as being directory only, and the continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any number of vacancies.
- 52. The first Directors shall be Thomas Mackie, Joseph Charles Dunbar, and John Aymer, and they shall hold office, except in the event of their becoming respectively disqualified, until the first Ordinary General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 1895.
- 53. As a remuneration for their services, the Directors shall be entitled to appropriate out of the funds of the Company a sum not exceeding Rs. 900 annually to be divided between them in such manner as they may determine; but the Company in General Meeting may at any time alter the amount of such remuneration for the future.
- 54. One of the Directors may be appointed by the Board to act as Managing Director and (or) Visiting Agent of the Company, for such time and on such terms as the Board may determine or fix by agreement with the person appointed to the office.

Powers of Directors.

- 55. The Directors shall have power to carry into effect the purchase of the said Hapugahalande estate, and the lease and (or) purchase of any other estates or lands upon such terms and conditions as they may think fit in the interests of the Company.
- 56. The business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors either by themselves or with the assistance of a secretary or secretaries, agent or agents, to be appointed by them for such period and on such terms as the Directors shall think fit; and the Directors shall pay out of the funds of the Company all costs and expenses, as well preliminary as otherwise, paid or incurred in and about the formation and registration of the Company, the purchase of the said estates and lands and the cultivation thereof, and otherwise in or about the working and business of the Company; and the Directors may proceed to carry on the business of the Company and to employ and apply its capital as soon after the registration of the Company as they in their discretion shall think fit, and notwithstanding that the whole of the shares shall not have been subscribed or applied for or allotted, and they shall do so as soon as, in the judgment of the Directors at the time, a sufficient number of shares have been subscribed to render it desirable for them to do so.
- 57. The Directors shall have power to make, and may make rules or regulations for the management of the property of the Company, and for that purpose may appoint managers, agents, superintendents, officers, clerks, and servants, with such remuneration and at such salaries as they may consider advisable, and may pay the expenses occasioned thereby out of the funds of the Company, and may from time to time remove or suspend all or any of the managers, agents, superintendents, officers, clerks, or servants for such reasons as they may think proper and advisable, and without assigning any cause.
- 58. The Directors shall also have power to open from time to time, on behalf of the Company, any account or accounts with such bank or banks as they may select or appoint; and also, by such signatures as they shall appoint, to draw, accept, make, endorse, sign, and enter into cheques, bills of exchange, promissory notes, bonds, mortgages, proxies to any proctor or proctors, contracts or agreements on behalf and for the purposes of the Company.

- 59. The seal of the Company shall not be affixed to any instrument except in the presence of two or more of the Directors, or of one Director and the Secretary or Secretaries thereof, who shall attest the sealing thereof.

 60. The Directors shall exercise in the name and on behalf of the Company all such powers of the Company
- as are not expressly required to be exercised by the Company in General Meeting.
- 61. In furtherance, and not in limitation of, and without prejudice to the general powers conferred or implied in the last preceding clause, and of the other powers conferred by these presents, it is hereby expressly declared that the Directors shall have the powers following (that is to say):—
- (a) To institute, conduct, defend, compromise, settle, or abandon any legal proceedings on behalf of the Company,. and also to compound and allow time for payment or satisfaction of any debts due to or from the Company, and any claims or demands by or against the Company.
- (b) To refer any claims or demands by or against the Company to arbitration, and observe and perform the awards.
- (c) To make and give receipts, releases, and other discharges for money payable to the Company, and for claims and demands by the Company.
- (d) To act on behalf of the Company in all matters relating to bankrupts and insolvents, with power to accept the office of trustee, assignee, liquidator, or inspector, or any similar office.
- (e) To invest any of the moneys of the Company which the Directors may consider not to be immediately required for the purposes thereof, upon such securities and in such manner as they may think fit, and so that they shall not be restricted to such securities as are permissible to trustees without special powers, and from time to time to vary or release such investments.
- (f) To delegate to any one or more of the Directors of the Company for the time being, or any other person or Company for the time being, residing or carrying on business in Ceylon or elsewhere, all or any of the powers or functions given to or exercisable by the Directors; and to confer such powers for such time and to be exercised for such objects and purposes, and upon such terms and conditions, and with such restrictions as the Directors may think expedient; and to confer such powers either collaterally with or to the exclusion of, and in substitution for all or any of the powers of the Directors in that behalf, and from time to time to revoke, withdraw, alter, or vary all or any of such powers. The Directors may allow to any person or Company to whom any powers may be so delegated such remuneration as they in their absolute discretion shall think fit.
- 62. A resolution in writing signed by all the Directors shall be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Directors duly called and constituted.

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS.

63. The office of Director shall be vacated—

(1) If he ceases to hold the due qualification in shares.

- (2) If he becomes of unsound mind or bankrupt, or take proceedings under the Bankruptcy Law for liquidation of his affairs by arrangement of, or composition with, his creditors.
- 64. No contract, arrangement, or transaction entered into by or on behalf of the Company with any Director, or with any Company or co-partnership of which a Director is a partner, or of which he is a Director, Managing Director, or Manager, shall be void or voidable; nor shall such Director be liable to account to the Company for any profit realized by such contract, arrangement, or transaction, by reason only of such Director holding that office or of the fiduciary relations thereby established, provided that the fact of his interest or connection therewith be fully disclosed to the Company or its Directors; but no Director shall vote in respect of any contract, arrangement, or transaction in which he is directly or indirectly interested.

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS.

- 65. At the first Ordinary Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 1895 all the Directors shall retire, and at the first Ordinary Meeting in every subsequent year one-third of the Directors for the time being, or the number next below one-third, shall retire from office.
- 66. The Directors to retire in any year shall always be those who have been longest in office, and in case of Directors equal in length of office shall, unless such Directors agree among themselves, be determined by ballot.
- 67. A retiring Director, if qualified, shall be re-eligible. The Company at the Ordinary General Meeting shall fill up the offices vacated by the retiring Directors by electing a like number of persons.
- 68. If at any meeting at which an election of Directors ought to take place no such election is made, the meeting shall stand adjourned till the next day at the same time and place; and if at such adjourned meeting no election takes place, the former Directors shall continue to act until new Directors are appointed at the first Ordinary Meeting of the following year.
- 69. The Company may from time to time, by special resolution in General Meeting increase or reduce the number of Directors, and may also determine in what rotation they are to go out of office.
- 70. Any casual vacancy in the Board of Directors may be filled up by the Directors, but any person so chosen shall retain his office so long only as the vacating Director would have retained the same if no vacancy had occurred.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS.

- 71. The Directors may meet together for the despatch of business, adjourn, and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit, and determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of business. Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes. In case of an equality of votes, the Chairman, in addition to his original vote, shall have a casting vote. A Director may at any time summon a meeting of the Directors.
- 72. The Directors may elect a Chairman of their meetings, and determine the period for which he is to hold office; but if no such Chairman is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairman is not present at the time appointed for holding the same, the Directors present shall choose some one of their number to be Chairman of such meeting.
- 73. All acts done by any meeting of the Directors, or by any person acting as a Director, shall, notwithstanding that it be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of any such Director or person acting as aforesaid on that day, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such person had been appointed and are smalled to be a Director. duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director.

- 74. The Directors shall cause minutes to be made in a book or books provided for and used solely for that purpose :-
 - (1) Of all appointments of officers made by the Directors;
 - (2) Of the names of Directors present at each meeting of Directors;
 (3) Of all orders made by the Directors; and

- (4) Of all resolutions and proceedings of meetings of the Company and of the Directors.
- 75. And any such minute as aforesaid, if signed by any person purporting to be the Chairman of any meeting of Directors, shall be receivable in evidence without any further proof.
- 76. The Company in General Meeting may, by a special resolution, remove any Director before the expiration of his period of office, and appoint another qualified person in his stead. The person so appointed shall hold office during such time only as the Director in whose place he is appointed would have held the same if he had not been

DIVIDENDS.

- 77. The Directors may, with the sanction of the Company in General Meeting, declare a yearly dividend to be paid to the Shareholders in proportion to their shares, and the amounts paid up thereon; and they may at their discretion, and without such sanction from time to time, pay to the Members on account of the next forthcoming dividend such interim dividend as in their judgment the position of the Company justifies.
- 78. No dividends shall be payable except out of the profits arising from the business of the Company and with the sanction of the Directors.
- 79. The Directors may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the Company such sum as they think proper as a reserve fund to meet contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for repairing, improving, or maintaining any of the property of the Company or any part thereof, or for such other purposes as the Directors shall, in their absolute discretion, think conducive to the interests of the Company; and the Directors may invest the sum or sums so set apart upon such securities or investments as they think fit.
- 80. When any Shareholder is indebted to the Company for calls, or otherwise, all dividends payable to him, or a sufficient part thereof, may be applied by the Board in or towards satisfaction of the debt.
- 81. Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to each Shareholder, or sent by post or otherwise to his registered place of abode; and all dividends unclaimed for three years after having been declared may be forfeited by the Directors for the credit of the Company's profit and loss account, but the Board may remit the forfeiture whenever they may think proper.
 - 82. No dividend shall bear interest as against the Company.

- 83. Once at the least in every year the Directors shall lay before the Company in General Meeting a statement of the income and expenditure of the last year made up to a date not more than three months before such
- The statement so made shall show, arranged under the most convenient heads, the amount of gross income, distinguishing the several sources from which it has been derived, and the amount of gross expenditure, distinguishing the expense of the establishment, salaries, and other like matters. Every item of expenditure fairly chargeable against the year's income shall be brought into account, so that a just balance of profit and loss may be laid before the meeting; and in cases where any item of expenditure which may in fairness be distributed over several years has been incurred in any one year, the whole amount of such item shall be stated, with the addition of the reasons why only a portion of such expenditure is charged against the income of the year.
- 85. A balance sheet shall be made out in every year and laid before the General Meeting of the Company, and such balance sheet shall contain a summary of the property and liabilities of the Company, arranged under the heads appearing in the form annexed to the table referred to in Schedule C to "The Joint Stock Companies' Osdinance, 1861," or as near thereto as circumstances admit.
- A written or printed copy of such balance sheet shall, seven days previously to such meeting, be delivered at or sent by post to the registered address of every Shareholder.

AUDIT.

- 87. The first auditor or auditors of the Company shall be appointed by the Directors, and shall hold office until the second General Meeting, and afterwards the auditor or auditors shall be from time to time appointed by the Company in General Meeting.
- 88. The accounts of the Company for each year shall be examined, and the correctness of the balance sheet and profit and loss account ascertained by one or more auditors to be elected by the Company in General Meeting.
- 89. If not more than one auditor is appointed, all the provisions herein contained relating to auditors shall apply to him.
- 90. The auditors need not, but may be Shareholders in the Company. No person is eligible as an auditor who is interested otherwise than as a Shareholder in any transaction of the Company, and no Director or other officer of the Company is eligible during his continuance in office.
- 91. The remuneration of the auditor or auditors shall be fixed by the Company at the time of their election, save that in case of the first auditor or auditors it shall be fixed by the Directors.
 - 92. Any auditor shall be re-eligible for election on his quitting office.
- 93. If any casual vacancy occurs in the office of auditor, the Directors may appoint another auditor, who shall hold office until the next Ordinary General Meeting.
- 94. If no election of auditor is made in manner aforesaid, the Directors may appoint an auditor or auditors for the year then current, and fix the remuneration to be paid to him or them by the Company for his or their services.
- 95. Every auditor shall have access to all books of accounts kept by the Company, and shall be supplied with a copy of the balance sheet, and it shall be his duty to examine the same with the accounts and vouchers relating thereto.
- 96. The auditors may make a report to the Shareholders upon the balance sheet and accounts, and in every such report they shall state whether in their opinion the balance sheet is a full and fair balance sheet, containing the particulars required by these regulations, and properly drawn up, so as to exhibit a true and correct view of the state of the Company's affairs; and such report shall be read, together with a report of the Directors, at the Ordinary Meeting.

NOTICES.

- 97. Notices by the Company may be authenticated by the signature (printed or written) of the Secretary or other person appointed by the Directors to do so.
- 98. Every Shareholder shall give an address in Ceylon which shall be deemed to be his place of abode, and shall be registered as such in the books of the Company.
- 99. Notices requiring to be served by the Company upon the Shareholders may be served either personally, or by leaving the same or sending them through the post in a letter addressed to the Shareholders at their registered places of abode, and any notices so served shall be deemed to be well served for all purposes, notwithstanding that the Shareholder to whom such notice is addressed may be dead, unless and until his executors or administrators shall have given notice to the Managing Director or Secretary of the Company of some address in Ceylon.
- 100. All notices directed to be given to the Shareholders shall, with respect to any share to which persons are jointly entitled, be given to whichever of the said persons is named first in the register of Shareholders, and notice so given shall be sufficient notice to all the holders of such share.
 - 101. All notices required to be given by advertisement shall be published in the Ceylon Government Gazette.
- 102. Every Shareholder residing out of Ceylon shall name an address in Ceylon at which all notices shall be served upon him; and all notices served at such address shall be deemed to be well served. If he shall have not named such an address he shall be not entitled to any notices. such an address he shall be not entitled to any notices.

Dated this 11th day of June, One thousand Eight hundred and Ninety-four.

R. Lewis M. Brown, Colombo. JOSEPH C. DUNBAR, Talawakele. ROBERT DAVIDSON, Colombo. J. Buchan, Colombo. T. J. Anderson, Colombo. Walter Seale, Colombo. G. W. Carlyon, Colombo.

Witness to the above signatures:

F. J. DE SARAM, Proctor, Supreme Court, Colombo.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE EQUITABLE LOAN COMPANY OF CEYLON, LIMITED.

- 1. THE name of the Company is "The Equitable Loan Company of Ceylon, Limited."
- 2. The registered office of the Company will be situate in Colombo, or in such parts of Ceylon or other British possession as may hereafter be determined.
 - 3. The objects for which the Company is established are the following, or any one or more of the following:-
 - (a) To establish a central office in Colombo with branches in other parts of Ceylon, to lend money on such terms, in such manner, and on such security as may seem expedient to the Company.
 - To discount and deal in premissory notes, bills of exchange, drafts, and negotiable instruments.
 - To receive moneys on deposit with or without any condition as to payment of interest.
 - (d) To carry on the business of pawnbrokers, bill-discounters, commission agents, advertising agents, financiers, printers, publishers, booksellers, and any other business, trade, or undertaking which may seem directly or indirectly to benefit the Company.
 (e) To acquire, print, and publish one or more newspapers in Ceylon.
 (f) To establish one or more Friend-in-Need or Provident Societies.
 (a) To horrow and raise money for the purposes of the Company, and in particular by the issue of debendance.

 - (g) To borrow and raise money for the purposes of the Company, and in particular by the issue of debentures or debenture stock, perpetual or otherwise, charged upon all or any of the Company's property, including its uncalled capital.
 - (h) To make, accept, indorse, execute, and issue promissory notes, bills of exchange, debentures, and other negotiable or transferable instruments.
 - (e) To establish in any part of the world agencies for carrying on or developing the business of the
 - Company or any part thereof.

 (j) To purchase, take on lease, hire, or otherwise acquire any lands and premises in Ceylon, and any buildings, works, machinery, stock, plant, and real or personal property of any kind whatsoever necessary for the purposes of the Company.
 - (k) To sell, let, lease, exchange, transfer, deliver, charge, mortgage, or otherwise dispose of or deal with all the property and assets of any kind for the time being belonging to the Company or any part
 - (1) To construct, improve, maintain, and control any buildings, roads, tramways, railways, wharves, manufactories, warehouses, shops, stores, ships, steamboats, and other works and conveniences which may seem calculated directly or indirectly to advance the Company's interests.
 - (m) To sell the undertaking of the Company or any part thereof for such consideration as the Company may think fit, and in particular for shares, debentures, or securities of any other Company, having
 - objects altogether or in part similar to those of the Company.

 (n) To promote any other Company for the purpose of acquiring all or any of the property and liabilities of the Company, or for any other purpose which may seem directly or indirectly calculated
 - to benefit the Company.

 (o) To co-operate, amalgamate, or enter into partnership or other arrangements for sharing of profits or union of interests, or for any other purpose with any Company, trader merchant, or other person.

 (p) To remunerate any person or Company for services rendered in placing or assisting to place or
 - guaranteeing of any of the shares in the Company's capital or any debentures or other securities of the Company, or in or about the promotion of the Company or the conduct of its business.

(q) To contract with, secure, and retain permanently or otherwise in any capacity, function, work, or office of the Company any person or persons whose continued connection with and services for the Company may seem necessary or expedient to ensure its stability and advance its interests.

(r) To delegate any of the powers of the Company.

- (s) To do all such other things as are incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above objects.
 (t) If necessary to apply to the Secretary of State for the Colonies or any other lawful authority for incorporating the Company under a new name, for any of the objects specified in this Memorandum, or for effecting any other modification in the Company's constitution.
- 4. The liability of the Members is limited.

5. The capital of the Company is one million rupees, divided into four hundred preference shares of two hundred and fifty rupees each, eight hundred intermediate shares of one hundred and twenty-five rupees each, and eighty thousand ordinary shares of ten rupees each, with power to add to the capital, to divide the shares in the capital for the time being into several classes, and to attach thereto respectively any preferential, qualified, special, or defined rights, privileges, and conditions.

We, the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of being formed into a Company in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association annexed hereto, and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in the capital of the Company set opposite our respective names:—

Names ar	nd Addresses of Subs	scribers.				of Rs. 250 each h Subscriber.
P. M. MUTTUKUM. J. W. P. SENATHI			•••			One One
	above two signatu Batuwantudawa.	res:				
	PULLE, Proctor, No. 2 above signature:	. 2, Hill street,	Colombo	•••	•••	One
PHILIP BRITO, M.F.	s., M.R.C.S., London	, &c.	•••	•••		Ten
	me this 22nd day o'A. ABEYESINHE,		Colombo:			
W. SANGARAPULLY	, Broker, Messrs.	Volkart Bros.	•••	•••		One
	above signature: W. SENATHI RAJ	A.	•		·	
T. B. PANABOKKE,	M.L.C.	•••	•••	•••	•••	One
	above signature: W. SENATHI RAJ.	Δ.				
FREDERICK DORNE	IORST	•••	•••			Опе
	me this 22nd day of A. Abeyesinhe, N		Colombo:			
E. S. W. SENATHI	Raja	•••	•••	•••		Ton
S. MORIES	•••	***	***	•••		Four
V. G. PERERA	··· ·	***	• 4,•	•••		One
	e persons signed be A. ABEYSINHE, No.		2nd day of May,	1894, at Co	lombo: •	

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE EQUITABLE LOAN COMPANY OF CEYLON, LIMITED.

1. The regulations contained in the table C in the schedule annexed to "The Joint Stock Companies' Ordinance, 1861," shall not apply to this Company, which shall be governed by the rules contained in the Memorandum of Association and these Articles of Association.

INTERPRETATION.

2. In the interpretation of these presents the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings, unless such meanings be inconsistent with, or repugnant to, the context or subject?—

The Company.—The words "The Company" mean "The Equitable Loan Company of Ceylon, Limited," incorporated or established by or under the Memorandum of Association to which these Articles are attached.

The Ordinance.—"The Ordinance" means and includes "The Joint Stock Companies Ordinance, 1861," and

The Ordinance.—"The Ordinance" means and includes "The Joint Stock Companies Ordinance, 1861," and every other Ordinance from time to time in force concerning Joint Stock Companies which may apply to the Company.

These Presents.—"These presents" means and includes the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the Company from time to time in force.

Capital.—" Capital" means the capital for the time being raised or authorized to be raised for the purposes of the Company.

Shares.—"Shares" means the shares from time to time into which the capital of the Company may be divided.

Shareholder or Member.—"Shareholder" or "Member" means a Shareholder of the Company.

Presence or Present.—"Presence" or "present" at a meeting means presence or present personally or by proxy.

Directors.—"Directors" means the Directors for the time being of the Company or (as the case may be) the

Directors assembled at a Boayd.

Board.—"Board" means a meeting of the Directors or (as the context may require) the Directors assembled at a Board meeting, acting through at least a quorum of their body in the exercise of authority duly given to them.

""Persons" means partnerships, associations, corporations, companies, unincorporated or incorporated

by Ordinance and registration, as well as individuals.

Office.—"Office" means the registered office for the time being of the Company.

Seal.—"Seal" means the common seal for the time being of the Company.

Seal.—"Seal means the common seal for the time being of the company.

Month.—"Month" means a calendar month.

Writing.—"Writing" means printed matter as well as writing.

Singular and Plural Number.—Words importing only the singular number include the plural, and vice versâ.

Masculine and Feminine Gender.—Words importing only the masculine gender include the feminine, and

3. Commencement of Business.—The business of the Company may be commenced as soon after the incorporation of the Company as the Directors shall think fit, and notwithstanding that part only of the shares may have been allotted.

SHARES.

- 4. The shares shall be under the control of the Directors, who may allot or otherwise dispose of the same to such persons, on such terms and conditions, and at such times as the Directors think fit.
- 5. The Directors may make arrangements on the issue of shares for a difference between the holders of such shares in the amount of calls to be paid, and the time of payment of such calls. Shares may be issued subject to different conditions as to calls.
- 6. If by the conditions of allotment of any share the whole or part of the amount thereof shall be payable by instalments, every such instalment when due shall be paid to the Company by the holder of the share.
- The joint-holders of a share shall be severally as well as jointly liable for the payment of all instalments and calls due in respect of such share.

CERTIFICATES.

- 8. The certificates of title to shares shall be issued under the seal of the Company and signed by one of the Managing Directors and countersigned by the Secretary.
- 9. Every member shall be entitled to one certificate for the shares registered in his name or to several certificates, each for a part of such shares. Every certificate of shares shall specify the number of the shares in respect of which it is issued and the amount paid up thereon.
- 10. If any certificate be worn out or defaced, then, upon production thereof to the Directors, they may order the same to be cancelled, or may issue a new certificate in lieu thereof; and if any certificate be lost or destroyed, then upon proof thereof to the satisfaction of the Directors, and on such indemnity as the Directors deem adequate being given, a new certificate in lieu thereof shall be given to the person entitled to such lost or destroyed certificate.
- 11. Every member shall be entitled to one certificate gratis, but for every subsequent certificate issued to him the sum of one rupee or such smaller sum as the Directors may determine shall be paid to the Company.
- 12. The certificates of shares registered in the names of two or more persons shall be delivered to the person first named on the register.

CALLS.

- 13. The Directors may from time to time make such calls as they think fit upon the members in respect of all moneys unpaid on the shares held by them respectively, which by the conditions of allotment thereof are not made payable at fixed times, and each member shall pay the amount of every call so made on him to the persons and at the times and places appointed by the Directors. A call may be made payable by instalments.
- 14. A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Directors authorizing such call was passed.
- 15. Unless the Company in General Meeting shall otherwise determine, no call in respect of any perference shares in the original capital shall exceed one-fifth of the amount of a share, or be made payable within two months after the last preceding call was payable.
- 16. Fourteen days' notice of any call, except in regard to ordinary shares, the amounts due on which are payable on application and allotment, shall be given specifying the time and place of payment, and to whom such call
- 17. If the sum payable in respect of any call or instalment be not paid on or before the day appointed for payment thereof, the holder for the time being of the share in respect of which the call shall have been made or the instalment shall be due shall pay legal interest for the same from the day appointed for such payment to the time of actual payment, unless the Directors shall otherwise determine for any special reasons.
- 18. The Directors may, if they think fit, receive from any member willing to advance the same, all or any part of the money due upon the shares held by him beyond the sums actually called for, and upon the moneys so paid in advance or so much thereof as from time to time exceeds the amount of the calls then made upon the shares in respect of which such advance has been made, the Company may pay interest at ruch rate as the member paying such sum in advance and the Directors agree upon.

FORFEITURE AND LIEN.

- If any member fail to pay any call or instalment on or before the day appointed for the payment of the same, the Directors may, at any time thereafter, during such time as the call or instalment remains unpaid, serve a notice on such member requiring him to pay the same, together with any interest that may have accrued, and all expenses that may have been incurred by the Company by reason of such non-payment.
- 20. The notice shall name a day (not being less than fourteen days from the date of the notice) and a place or places on and at which such call or instalment and such interest and expenses as aforesaid are to be paid. The notice shall also state that in the event of non-payment at or before the time and at the place appointed the shares in respect of which the call was made or instalment is payable will be liable to be forfeited.
- 21. If the requisitions of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any shares in respect of which such notice has been given may, at any time thereafter, before payment of all calls or instalments, interest, and expenses due in respect thereof, be forfeited by a resolution of the Directors to that effect. Such forfeiture shall include all dividends declared in respect of the forfeited shares, and not actually paid before the forfeiture.

- 22. When any share shall have been so forfeited notice of the resolution shall be given to the member in whose name it stood prior to the forfeiture, and an entry of the forfeiture with the date thereof shall forthwith be made in the register.
- 23. Any share so forfeited shall be deemed to be the property of the Company, and the Directors may sell and re-allot, and otherwise dispose of the same in such manner as they think fit.
- 24. The Directors may at any time before any share so forfeited shall have been sold, re-allotted, or otherwise disposed of, annul the forfeiture thereof upon such conditions as they think fit.
- 25. Any member whose shares have been forfeited shall, notwithstanding, be liable to pay, and shall forthwith pay to the Company all calls, instalment, interest, and expenses owing upon or in respect of such shares at the time of the forfeiture, together with legal interest thereon from the time of forfeiture until payment, and the Directors may enforce the payment thereof if they think fit.
- 26. The Company shall have a first and paramount lien upon all the shares registered in the name of each member (whether solely or jointly with others) for his debts, liabilities, and engagements, solely or jointly with any other person to or with the Company, whether the period for the payment, fulfilment, or discharge thereof shall have actually arrived or not. And such lien shall extend to all dividends from time to time declared in respect of such shares. Unless otherwise agreed, the registration of a transfer of shares shall operate as a waiver of the Company's lien on such shares.
- . 27. For the purpose of enforcing such lien, the Directors may sell the shares subject thereto, in such manner as they think fit, but no sale shall be made until such period as aforesaid shall have arrived, and until notice in writing of the intention to sell shall have been served on such member, his executors, or administrators, and default shall have been made by him or them in the payment, fulfilment, or discharge of debts, liabilities, or engagements for seven days after such notice.
- 28. The net proceeds of any such sale shall be applied in or towards satisfaction of the debts, liabilities, or engagements, and the residue, if any, paid to such member, his executors, administrators, or assigns.
- 29. Upon any sale after forfeiture or for enforcing a lien in purported exercise of the powers hereinbefore given, the Directors may cause the purchaser's name to be entered in the register in respect of the shares or stock sold, and the purchaser shall not be bound to see to the regularity of the proceedings, or to the application of the purchase money, and after his name has been entered in the register the validity of the sale shall not be impeached by any person, and the remedy of any person aggrieved by the sale shall be in damages only and against the Company exclusively.

TRANSFER OF SHARES.

- 30. The instrument of transfer of any share shall be signed both by the transferor and transferee, and the transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of such share until the flame of the transferee is entered in the register.
- 31. The instrument of transfer of any share shall be in writing, in the following form or as near thereto as circumstances will admit:—
 - I, A. B., of _____, in consideration of the sum of Rs. _____ paid to me by C. D., of ______ (hereinafter called the said transferee), do hereby transfer to the said transferee _____ share (or shares) in the undertaking called "The _____ Company, Limited," to hold unto the said transferee, his executors, administrators, and assigns, subject to the several conditions on which I held the same immediately before the execution thereof; and I, the said transferee, do hereby agree to take the said share (or shares) subject to the conditions aforesaid. As witness our hands the _____ day of _____.
- 32. No preference Shareholder or holder of intermediate shares shall transfer all or any of his shares to any person except with the written consent of the Directors. The Directors may decline to register any transfer of shares or stock upon which the Company has a lien, or of shares not fully paid up, or where any share had been transferred to a transferre of whom they do not approve.
- 33. Every instrument of transfer shall be left at the office for registration, accompanied by the certificate of shares to be transferred, and such other evidence as the Company may require to prove the title of the transferor or his right to transfer the shares.
- 34. All instruments of transfer which shall be registered shall be retained by the Company, but any instrument of transfer which the Directors may decline to register shall be returned to the person depositing the same.
- 35. A fee not exceeding one rupee may be charged for each transfer, and shall, if required by the Directors, be paid before the registration thereof.
- 36. The transser books may be closed during such time as the Directors think fit, not exceeding in the whole thirty days in each year.
- 37. The executors or administrators of a deceased member (not being one of several joint-holders) shall be the only persons recognized by the Company as having any title to the shares registered in the name of such member, and in the case of the death of any one or more of the joint-holders of any registered shares, the survivors shall be the only persons recognized by the Company as having any title to or interest in such shares. When a member dies intestate leaving an estate under one thousand rupees, the Company will recognize only such heirs of the deceased, for the above purpose, as produce satisfactory evidence of their rights as such heirs.
- 38. Any guardian of an infant member and any Committee of a lunatic member, and any person becoming entitled to shares in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of any member, upon producing such evidence that he sustains the character in respect of which he proposes to act under this clause, or of this title, as the Directors think sufficient, may, subject to the regulations as to transfers hereinbefore contained, transfer such shares to himself or any other person.

SHARE WARRANTS.

39. The Company, with respect to fully paid-up shares or stock, may issue warrants (hereinafter called share warrants), stating that the bearer is entitled to the shares or stock therein specified and may provide by coupons or otherwise for the payment of future dividends on the shares or stock included in such warrants.

INCREASE AND REDUCTION OF CAPITAL.

40. The Company may from time to time increase the capital by the creation of new shares of such amount as may be deemed expedient.

- 41. The new shares shall be issued upon such terms and conditions, and with such rights and privileges annexed thereto, as the Directors shall determine; and in particular such shares may be issued with a preferential or qualified right to dividends and in the distribution of the assets of the Company, and with a special or without any right of voting.
- 42. The Company may, before the issue of any new shares, determine that the same or any of them shall be offered in the first instance to all the then members in proportion to the amount of the capital held by them, or make any other provisions as to the issue and allotments of the new shares; but in default of any such determination, or so far as the same shall not extend, the new shares may be dealt with as if they formed part of the shares in the original capital.
- 43. Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by these presents, any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall be considered part of the original capital, and shall be subject to the provisions herein contained with reference to the payment of calls and instalments, transfer, forfeiture, lien, surrender, or otherwise.
- 44. The Company may from time to time, by special resolution, reduce its capital by paying off capital or cancelling capital which has been lost or is unrepresented by available assets, or reducing the liability on the shares or otherwise, as may seem expedient, and capital may be paid off upon the footing that it may be called up again or otherwise. And the Company may also subdivide or consolidate its shares or any of them.

Borrowing Powers.

- 45. The Directors may from time to time, at their discretion, raise or borrow any sum or sums of money for the purposes of the Company.
- 46. The Directors may raise or secure the repayment of such moneys in such manner and upon such terms and conditions in all respects as they think fit, and in particular by the issue of debentures or debenture stock of the Company, charged upon all or any part of the property of the Company, including its uncalled capital for the time being.
- 47. If any uncalled capital of the Company is included in or charged by any mortgage or other security, the Directors may, by instrument under the Company's seal, authorize the person in whose favour such mortgage or security is executed, or any other person in trust for him, to make call on the members in respect of such uncalled capital, and the provisions hereinbefore contained in regard to calls shall, mutatis mutandis, apply to calls made under such authority, and such authority may be made exercisable either conditionally or unconditionally, and either presently or contingently, and either to the exclusion of the Directors' power or otherwise, and shall be assignable if expressed so to be.

GENERAL MEETING.

- 48. The first General Meeting shall be held at such time (not being more than four months after the registration of the Memorandum of Association of the Company) and at such place the Directors may determine.
- 49. Subsequent General Meetings shall be held once in the year, and in every subsequent year at such time and place as may be prescribed by the Company in General Meeting, and if no other time or place is prescribed, in the month of April in every such year at such time and place as may be determined by the Directors.
- 50. The above-mentioned General Meetings shall be called the Ordinary General Meetings; all other meetings of the Company shall be called Extraordinary General Meetings.
- 51. The Directors may, whenever they think fit, and they shall upon requisition made in writing by members holding in the aggregate one-fourth of the issued capital, convene an Extraordinary General Meeting.
- 52. Any such requisition shall specify the object of the meeting required, and shall be signed by the members making the same, and shall be deposited at the office. The Meeting must be convened for the purposes specified in the requisition, and if convened otherwise than by the Directors, for those purposes only.
- 53. In case the Directors for fourteen days after such deposit fail to convene an Extaordinary General Meeting to be held within twenty-one days after such deposit, the requisitionists may themselves convene to be held within six weeks after such deposit.
- 54. Seven clear days' notice at the least, specifying the place, day, and hour of meeting, and in case of special business, the general nature of such business, shall be given.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETING.

- 55. The business of an Ordinary Meeting shall be to receive and consider the profit and loss account and the balance sheet, the reports of the Directors and of the Auditors, to elect Directors and other officers in the place of those retiring by rotation, to declare dividends, and to transact any other business which, under these presents, ought to be transacted at an Ordinary Meeting, and any business which is brought under consideration by the report of the Directors issued with the notice convening such meeting. All other business transacted at an Ordinary Meeting, and all business transacted at an Extraordinary Meeting, shall be deemed special.
- 56. Twenty Shareholders present shall be a quorum for a General Meeting. No business shall be transacted at any General Meeting unless the quorum requisite be present at the commencement of the business.
- 57. One of the Managing Directors shall be entitled to take the chair at every General Meeting, and if at any time he shall not be present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding such meeting, the members present shall choose another Director as Chairman, and if no Director be present, or if all the Directors present decline to take the chair, then the members present shall choose one of their number to be Chairman.
- 58. If within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting, if convened upon such requisition as aforesaid, shall be dissolved; but in any other case it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and place, and if at such adjourned meeting a quorum is not present, those Shareholders who are present shall be a quorum, and may transact the business for which the meeting was called.
- 59. Every question submitted to a meeting shall be decided in the first instance by a show of hands, and in the case of an equality of votes the Chairman shall, both on show of hands and at the poll, have a casting vote in addition to the vote or votes to which he may be entitled as a member.
- 60. At any General Meeting, unless a poll is demanded by at least five Shareholders present, a declaration by the Chairman that a resolution has been carried or lost, and an entry to that effect in the book of the proceedings of the Company, shall be conclusive evidence of the fact.

VOTES OF MEMBERS.

- 61. Every Shareholder having preference share or shares shall have one vote for every preference share held by him, and every holder of intermediate shares shall have one vote for every six shares held by him.
- 62. Every hundred ordinary shares, whether held by a firm or single shareholder, shall entitle the holder thereof to one vote at all public meetings of the Company; any number below one hundred of ordinary shares shall not entitle the holder to a vote. No ordinary shares exceeding one thousand shall entitle the holder thereof to any vote in respect of such shares beyond the first one thousand. Votes may be given either personally or by proxy.
- 63. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor, or if such appointor is a corporation under its common seal. No person shall be appointed a proxy who is not a member of the Company and qualified to vote.
- The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the time for holding the meeting at which the person named in such instrument proposes to vote, but no instrument appointing a proxy shall be valid after the expiration of twelve months from the date of its execution. And no proxy shall be used at an adjourned meeting which could not have been used at an original meeting.
- 65. Holders of share warrants shall not be entitled to vote by proxy in respect of the shares or stock included in such warrants.
- 66. No member shall be entitled to be present or to vote on any question either personally or by proxy for another member at any General Meeting, or upon a poll, or be reckoned in a quorum, whilst any call or other sum shall be due and payable to the Company in respect of any of the shares of such member.
- 67. Any resolution passed by the Directors, notice whereof shall be given to the Shareholders in the manner in which notices are hereinafter directed to be given, and which shall within two months after it shall have been so passed be ratified and confirmed in writing by members entitled at a poll to three-fifths of the votes, shall be as valid and effectual as a resolution of a General Meeting; but this clause shall not apply to a resolution for winding up the Company or to a resolution passed in respect of any matter which by law or these presents ought to be dealt with by special or extraordinary resolution.

DIRECTORS.

- 68. There shall not be more than fifteen or less than five Directors, three of whom may form a quorum.
- 69. The qualification of every Director shall be the holding in his own right at least eight preference shares in the Company, except the provisional Directors, each of whom may hold not less than four of the preference shares. A Director may act as such for three months before acquiring his qualification.
- 70. A Director may retire from his office upon giving one month's notice in writing to the Company of his intention so to do, and such resignation shall take effect upon the expiration of such notice or its earlier acceptance
- 71. The remuneration of the Directors shall, for the present, be not less than the sum of Rs. 10.50 apiece for each attendance at a meeting of the Directors.
 - 72. The office of a Director shall be vacated—
 - (a) If he accepts or holds any other office under the Company, except that of Managing Director.

(b) If he becomes bankrupt.

- (c) If he be found lunatic or becomes of unsound mind.
- (d) If he cease to hold the required amount of shares or stock to qualify him for office, or do not acquire the same within three months after election or appointment.

 (e) If he absent himself from the meetings of the Directors during a period of three months without
- special leave of Directors.
- 73. No Director shall be disqualified by his office from contracting with the Company either as vendor, purchaser, or otherwise, nor shall any such contract or arrangement, or any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Company with any Company or partnership of or in which any Director shall be a member or otherwise interested, be avoided, nor shall any Director in contracting, or being such member, or so interested, be liable to account to the Company for any profit realized by any such contract or arrangement by reason only of such Director holding that office or of the fiduciary relations thereby established, but the nature of his interest must be disclosed by him at the meeting of the Directors at which the contract or arrangement is determined on, if his interest then exists, or in any other case at the first meeting of the Directors after the acquisition of his interest. Provided, nevertheless that no Director shall vote in respect of any contract in which he is so interested, and if he do vote his vote shall not
- 74. A Director of the Company may be or become a Director of any Company promoted by this Company or in which it may be interested as a vendor, shareholder, or otherwise, and no such Director shall be accountable for any benefits received as Director or member of such Company.
- There shall be one or more Managing Directors of the Company, who, except in the case of the two Managing Directors named in article 138 of these presents, shall be chosen, nominated, and appointed by the Directors from among themselves either for a fixed term or without any limitation as to the period for which they are to hold office.
- The remuneration of the Managing Directors shall from time to time be fixed by the Directors or by the Company in General Meeting, and may be by way of salary or commission or participation in profits or by any or all of those modes, due regard being had to the remuneration paid by other Joint Stock Companies now in existence in Ceylon with a similar nominal capital. Till such arrangements, however, are made, the Managing Directors shall be paid like the other Directors for every attendance at meetings of Directors or at the office or elsewhere for the purpose of transacting business of the Company.

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS.

- 77. At the Ordinary General Meeting to be held in the year 1895, and at every succeeding Ordinary General Meeting, one-third of the Directors or the number nearest it, but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office.
- 78. The one-third to retire at the Ordinary Meeting to be held in the year 1895 shall, unless the Directors agree among themselves, be determined by lot. In every subsequent year the one-third or other nearest number who have been longest in office shall retire. As between two or more who have been in office an equal length of time the Directors to retire shall, in default of agreement between them, be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

- 79. The Managing Directors hereinafter named in article 438 shall not, unless they choose to do, be subject to retirement by rotation, and they shall not be taken into account in determining the rotation of retirement of Directors.
- The Company at any General Meeting at which any Directors retire in manner aforesaid shall fill up the vacated offices by electing a like number of persons to be Directors.
- 81. If at any General Meeting at which an election of Directors ought to take place the places of the retiring Directors are not filled up, the retiring Directors, or such of them as have not had their places filled up, shall continue in office until the Ordinary Meeting in the next year, and so on from year to year until their places are filled up, unless it shall be determined at such meeting to reduce the number of Directors.
- The Company in General Meeting may from time to time increase or reduce the number of Directors, and may alter their qualification, and may also determine in what rotation such increased or reduced number is to go out of office.
- 83. Any casual vacancy occurring among the Directors may be filled up by the Directors, but any person so chosen shall retain his office so long only as the vacating Director would have retained the same if no vacancy had
- 84. No person, not being a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any General Meeting, unless he or some other member intending to propose him has, at least seven clear days before the meeting, left at the office of the Company a notice in writing duly signed, signifying his candidature for the office or the intention of such member to propose him.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS.

- 85. The Directors may meet together for the despatch of business, adjourn, and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit, and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of business. Until otherwise determined three Directors shall form a quorum.
- 86. A Director may at any time, and the Secretary upon the request of a Director shall, convene a meeting of the Directors. Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes, and in case of an equality of votes the Chairman shall have a second or casting vote.
- 87. At every meeting of the Directors, one of the Managing Directors, if present, shall preside, but if one of the Managing Directors should not be present at the time appointed for holding the same, the Directors present shall choose some one of their number to preside at such meeting
- A meeting of the Directors for the time being at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers, and discretions by or under regulations of the Company for the time being vested in or exercisable by the Directors generally.
- 89. The Directors may delegate any of their powers to a Committee consisting of such member or members of their body as they think fit. Any Committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations that may from time to time be imposed on it by the Directors.
- 90. All acts done at any meeting of the Directors, or of a Committee of Directors, or by any person acting as a Director, shall, notwithstanding that it shall afterwards be discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of such Directors or persons acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as every such person had been duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director.
- 91. A resolution in writing, signed by all the Directors, shall be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Directors duly called and constituted.
- · 92. If any of the Directors shall be called upon to perform extra services, or to make any special exertions, or to go on a special mission, or reside abroad for any of the purposes of the Company, the Company shall remunerate the Director or Directors so doing, either by a fixed sum or by a percentage of profits, or otherwise as may be determined, and such remuneration may be either in addition to or in substitution for his or their share in the remuneration above provided.

MINUTES.

- The Directors shall cause Minutes to be duly entered in books provided for the purpose—
 - (a) Of all appointments of officers.
 - (b) Of the names of the Directors present at each meeting of the Directors and at any Committee of Directors.

 - (c) Of all orders made by Directors and Committee of Directors.
 (d) Of all resolutions and proceedings of General Meetings and of the meetings of the Directors and
- 94. And any such Minutes of any meetings of the Directors or of any Committee or of the Company, if purporting to be signed by the Chairman of such meeting or by the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting, shall be receivable as primâ facie evidence of the matters stated in such Minutes.

Powers of Directors.

- 95. The management of the business of the Company shall be vested in the Directors, who, in addition to the powers and authorities by these presents expressly conferred upon them, may exercise all such powers and do all such acts and things as may be exercised or done by the Company, and are not hereby or by law expressly directed or required to be exercised or done by the Company in General Meeting or by the Managing Directors only, but subject, nevertheless, to the provisions of the Joint Stock Companies' Ordinance of 1861 and of these presents.
- 96. Without prejudice to the general powers conferred by the last preceding clause, and the other powers conferred by these presents, it is hereby expressly declared that the Directors shall have the following powers, save and except those which are hereby conferred on the Managing Directors:—
 - (1) To pay the costs, charges, and expenses, preliminary and incidental to the formation, establishment, and registration of the Company, which shall be a first charge on the capital of the Company.
 (2) To invest and deal with any of the moneys of the Company not immediately required for the purposes
 - thereof, upon such securities and in such manner as they may think fit, and from time to time vary or realize such investments.

(3) To purchase or otherwise acquire for the Company any property, rights, or privileges which the Company is authorized to acquire, at such price and generally on such terms and conditions as

they think fit.

(4) At their discretion to pay for any rights acquired by or services rendered to this Company either wholly or partially in cash or in shares, bonds, debentures, or other securities of the Company, and any such shares may be issued as fully paid up or with such amount credited as paid up thereon as may be agreed upon, and any such bonds, debentures, or other securities may be either specifically charged upon all or any part of the property of the Company and its uncalled capital or not so

(5) To secure the fulfilment of any contracts or engagements entered into by the Company, by mortgage or charge of all or any of the property of the Company and its unpaid capital for the time being,

or in such other manner as they may think fit.

(6) To accept from any member on such terms and conditions as shall be agreed a surrender of his shares

or stock or any part thereof.

(8) To institute, conduct, defend, compound, or abandon any legal proceedings by and against the Company or its officers, or otherwise concerning the affairs of the Company, and also to compound and allow time for payment or satisfaction of any debts due, and of any claims or demands by or against the Company.

(9) To refer any claims or demands by or against the Company to arbitration, and observe and perform

the awards.

(10) To act on behalf of the Company in all matters relating to bankrupts and insolvents.

(11) To give to any person employed by the Company on special business or otherwise a commission or share in the profits of the Company, and such commission or share of profits shall be treated as

part of the working expenses of the Company.

(12) Before recommending any dividend to set aside out of the profits of the Company such sum as they think proper as a reserve fund to meet contingencies or for equalizing dividends, or for repairing, improving, and maintaining any of the property of the Company, and for such other purposes as the Directors shall in their absolute discretion think conducive to the interests of the Company; and to invest the several sums so set aside upon such investments as they may think fit, and from time to time to deal with and vary such investments and dispose of all or any part thereof for the benefit of the Company, and to divide the reserve funds into such special funds as they think fit.

(13) From time to time to make, vary, and repeal by-laws for the regulation of the business of the Company, its officers and servants, or the members of the Company or any section thereof.

- 97. The Directors may from time to time entrust to and confer upon the Managing Directors for the time being such of the powers exercisable under these presents by the Directors.
- 98. The Managing Directors, alone or in consultation with their colleagues, shall jointly appoint, and at their discretion remove or suspend, such managers, secretaries, officers, clerks, agents, and servants for permanent, temporary, or special services, as they may from time to time think fit, and shall determine their duties and fix their salaries or emoluments, and they may require security in such instances and to such amount as they think fit.
- 99. The Managing Directors jointly, or a majority of them, shall have power to make and give receipts, releases, and other discharges for money payable to the Company and for the claims and demands of the Company.
- 100. All deeds executed on behalf of the Company shall jointly be signed by the Managing Directors and countersigned by the Secretary or such other officer acting for him.
- 101. All bills of exchange, promissory notes, or other negotiable instruments shall be accepted, made, drawn, or endorsed for and on behalf of the Company by the Managing Directors and countersigned by the Secretary or such other officer as aforesaid.
- 102. Cheques or other negotiable instruments sent in for collection and requiring the endorsement of the Company may be endorsed on its behalf by one of the Managing Directors.
- 103. All receipts for money paid to the Company shall be signed by one of the Managing Directors and Secretary, and such receipt shall be an effectual discharge for the money thereon stated to be received.
- 104. The common seal of the Company shall be deposited at the office of the Company, and shall never be affixed to any document except in the presence and with the sanction of a Managing Director.
- 105. Deeds, bonds, and other contracts under seal made on behalf of the Company and signed by the Managing Directors and countersigned by the Secretary or the person acting as Secretary shall be deemed to be duly executed.

THE SEAL.

106. The Directors shall provide for the safe custody of the seal, and the seal shall never be used except by the authority of the Directors previously given and in the presence of the Managing Directors, who shall sign every instrument to which the seal is affixed, and every such instrument shall be countersigned by the Secretary or some other person acting for him.

DIVIDENDS.

- 107. The holders of the preference shares shall be entitled to receive out of the profits of the Company as a first charge cumulative preferential dividend at the rate of five per cent. per annum over and above the ordinary dividend on the amount for the time being paid up on the preference shares held by them respectively, and the holders of intermediate shares shall be entitled to receive preferential dividend at the rate of two per cent. per annum over and above the ordinary dividend.
- 108. The balance of profits shall be applicable to the payment of dividend to the members in proportion to the nominal amount of the capital held by them respectively.
- 109. The Company in General Meeting may declare a dividend to be paid to the members according to their rights and interests in the profits.
- 110. No larger dividend shall be declared than is recommended by the Directors, but the Company in General Meeting may declare a smaller dividend.
- 111. No dividend shall be payable except out of the profits of the Company, and no dividend shall carry
- 112. The Directors may from time to time pay to the members such interim dividends as in their judgment the position of the Company justifies.

- 113. The Directors may retain any divends on which the Company has a lien, and may apply the same in or towards satisfaction of the debts, liabilities, or engagements in respect of which the lien exists.
- 114. In case several persons are registered as the joint-holders of any share or stock, any one of such persons may give effectual receipts for all dividends and payments on account of dividends in respect of such share or stock.
- 115. All dividends unclaimed for one year after having been declared may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed, and all dividends unclaimed for five years after having been declared may be forfeited by the Directors for the benefit of the Company.

ACCOUNTS.

- 116. The Directors shall cause true accounts to be kept of the sums of money received and expended by the Company, and the matters in respect of which such receipt and expenditure takes place, and of the assets, credits, and liabilities of the Company.
- 117. The books of account shall be kept at the registered office of the Company or at such other place or places as the Directors think fit.
- 118. The Directors shall from time to time determine whether, and to what extent and at what times and places, and under what conditions or regulations, the accounts and books of the Company or any of them shall be open to the inspection of the members; and no member shall have any right of inspecting any account, or book, or document of the Company except as conferred by law or authorized by the Directors.
- 119. At the Ordinary Meeting in every year the Directors shall lay before the Company a profit and loss account and a balance-sheet containing a summary of the property and liabilities of the Company made up to a date not more than four months before the meeting from the time when the last preceding account and balance-sheet were made, or in the case of the first account and balance-sheet, from the incorporation of the Company.
- 120. Every such balance-sheet, shall be accompanied by a report of the Directors as to the state and condition of the Company, and as to the amount which they recommend to be paid out of the proceeds by way of dividend or bonus to the members, and the amount if any which they propose to carry to the reserve fund, according to the provisions in that behalf hereinbefore contained; and the account, report, and balance-sheet shall be signed by the Directors and countersigned by the Secretary.
- 121. A printed copy of such balance-sheet and report shall, seven days previously to the meeting, be served on the registered holders of shares in the manner in which notices are hereinafter directed to be served.

AUDIT.

- 122. Once at least in every year the accounts of the Company shall be examined and the correctness of the statement and balance-sheet ascertained by one or more auditor or auditors.
- 123. The first auditor or auditors shall be appointed by the Directors; subsequent auditor or auditors shall be appointed by the Company at the Ordinary Meeting in each year. The remuneration of the auditors shall be fixed by the Company in General Meeting. Any auditor quitting office shall be eligible for re-election.
- 124 The auditors may be Shareholders of the Company, but no person shall be eligible as an auditor who is interested orderwise than as a Shareholder of the Company in any transaction thereof, and no Director or other officer shall be eligible during his continuance in office.
 - 125. If any casual vacancy occurs in the office of auditor, the Directors shall forthwith fill up the same.
- 126. The auditors shall be supplied with copies of the statement of accounts and balance-sheet intended to be laid before the Company in General Meeting seven days at least before the meeting to which the same are to be submitted, and it shall be their duty to examine the same with the accounts and vouchers relating thereto and to report to the Company in General meeting thereon.
- 127. Every account of the Directors when audited and approved by a General Meeting shall be conclusive except as regards any error discovered therein within three months next after the approval thereof. Whenever any such error is discovered within that period, the accounts shall forthwith, be corrected and thenceforth shall be conclusive.

Notices.

- 128. A notice may be served by the Company upon any member either personally or by sending it through the post in a prepaid letter addressed to such member at his registered place of address.
- 129. The holder of a share warrant shall not, unless otherwise expressed therein, be entitled in respect thereof to notice of any General Meeting of the Company.
- 130. Any notice required to be given by the Company to the members or any of them, and not expressly provided for by these presents, shall be sufficiently given if given by one advertisement in a daily newspaper published in Colombo.

ARBITRATION.

131. Whenever any difference arises between the Company on the one hand and any of the members, their executors, administrators, or assigns on the other hand, or between the Company on the one hand and any other person not being a member, touching any of the affairs of the Company, every such difference may be referred to the decision of an arbitrator or arbitrators, on such terms as the Directors think fit.

WINDING UP.

- 132. The surplus assets of the Company upon the winding up thereof shall be applied—first, in repaying to the holders of the preference and intermediate shares the amount paid up therein; then, in repaying to the holders of the ordinal shares the amount paid up on such shares; and the residue, if any, shall be divided among members in proportion to the nominal amount of the shares held by them respectively.
- 133. If the Company shall be wound up the liquidators may, with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution divide among the contributories in specie any part of the assets of the Company, and may, with the like sanction, vest any part of the assets of the Company in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the contributories as the liquidators, with the like sanction, shall think fit.

INDEMNITY.

- 134. Every Director, Manager, Secretary, and other officer or servant of the Company shall be indemnified by the Company against, and it shall be the duty of the Directors out of the funds of the Company to pay, all costs, losses, and expenses which any such officer or servant, may incur or become liable to by reason of any contract entered into or act or thing done by him as such officer or servant or in any way in the discharge of his duties, including travelling expenses; and the amount for which such indemnity is provided shall immediately attach as a lien on the property of the Company, and have priority as between the members over all other claims.
- 135. Brokers, commission agents, financiers, promoters, or other persons who place the shares of the Company or otherwise help it shall be entitled to a commission not exceeding five per cent. on the shares of the Company.
- No Director or other officer of the Company shall be liable for the acts, receipts, neglects, or defaults of any other Director or officer, or for joining in any receipt or other act for conformity, or for any loss or expense happening to the Company through the insufficiency or deficiency of any security in or upon which any of the moneys of the Company shall be invested, or for any loss or damage arising from the bankruptcy, insolvency, or tortious act of any person with whom any moneys, securities, or effects shall be deposited, or for any other loss, damage, or misfortune whatever which shall happen in the execution of his duties of his respective office or in relation thereto, unless the same happen through his own wilful act or default.
- 137. The following Shareholders shall be the provisional Directors of the Company till the General Meeting of 1895:—Messrs. (1) J. M. Chitty, (2) Edward Batuwantudave, (3) P. S. Brito, (4) E. S. W. Senathi Raja, (5) N. Swaminaden, (6) William Abeyesundera, (7) Simon Mories, (8) A. R. Babapillai, (9) G. S. Johnpulle, (10) G. W. Dodanwella, and (11) Benjamin de Silva.

 The under-mentioned Shareholders shall be the Managing Directors of the Company:—(1) P. S. Brito, (2) E. S. W. Senathi Raja, and (3) Edward Batuwantudave.

- 138. In consideration of the great labour, expense, and risk which Dr. P. S. Brito and Mr. E. S. W. Senathi Raja, two of the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association and these Articles of Association, who are also the promoters and founders of the Company, have undergone in promoting, forming, and founding this Company and in registering these presents; and in view of the fact that some purely local Joint Stock Companies have hitherto proved unsuccessful from the circumstance that those who were chiefly interested in their success were obliged to sever connection with them in the ordinary course of rotation of Directors; and as it seems expedient and desirable in the interest of the Company that the promoters and founders should be intimately associated with the Company in order to watch its progress and foster its growth, it is agreed that Dr. P. S. Brito and Mr. E. S. W. Sanathi Raja shall remain Managing Directors of the Company permanently, and shall not be liable to go out of office unless one or the other or both choose to retire, or unless two-thirds of the Shareholders, by a written requisition signed by all of them, should request them to retire. One of the above two Managing Directors may, if he choose, appoint a substitute, or may delegate permanently or for any fixed period his powers, duties, rights, and privileges of Managing Director to the other Managing Director or to one of the other Directors or to any Shareholder whom he may consider fit.
- 139. Every Director, Manager, Auditor, Trustee, Member of a Committee, Officer, Servant, Agent, Accountant, or other person employed in the business of the Company shall, before entering upon his duties, sign a declaration pledging himself to observe a strict secrecy respecting all transactions of the Company with the customers and state of accounts with individuals and in matters relating thereto, and shall by such declaration pledge himself not to reveal any of the matters which may come to his knowledge in the discharge of his duties, except when required so to do by the Directors or by a court of law or by the person to whom such matters relate, and except so far as may be necessary in order to comply with any of the provisions in these presents contained.

P. M. MUTTUKUMARU. J. W. P. SENATHI RAJA. Witness to the above two signatures: ED. BATUWANTUDAVE.

GABRIEL S. JOHNPULLE.

Witness to the above signature: P. LANDSBERGER.

PHILIP BRITO. E. S. W. Senathi Raja. S. Mories. V. G. PERERA.

Witness to the above four signatures: N. D'A. ABEYESINGHE, Notary Public.

PROCLAMATIONS BY THE GOVERNOR.

Continued from page 1438.

In the Name of Her Majesty VICTORIA, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland Queen, Defender of the Faith.

PROCLAMATION.

By His Excellency SIR ARTHUR ELIBANK HAVELOCK, Knight Commander of the Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael and Saint George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief in and over the Island of Ceylon, with the Dependencies thereof.

A. E. HAVELOCK.

WHEREAS by section 6 of "The Courts Ordinance, 1889," it is enacted that the limits of each district and division of the respective Circuits into which the Island has, for the purposes of the administration of justice, been by the said Ordinance divided, shall be as the same are respectively set out and defined in the second schedule thereto annexed: Provided that it shall be lawful for the Governor, with the concurrence of the Judges of the Supereme Court or a major part of them, by Proclamation from time to time to revoke, alter, or amend the divisions of any Circuit into districts and divisions, and to alter the limits of any such district or division:

And whereas by a Proclamation dated the 6th day of May, 1892, the District of Batticaloa, in the Northern Circuit, was, for the purposes aforesaid, divided into two divisions called the division of Batticaloa and the division of Kalmunai, and the limits of the said division of Batticaloa as defined in the second schedule aforesaid to the said Ordinance, altered, and the limits of the division of Batticaloa and the division of Kalmunai created by the said Proclamation were declared to be those respectively set forth and defined in schedules A and B to the said Proclamation annexed:

And whereas it is expedient to revoke the said division:

Now know ye that We, the said Governor, with the concurrence of the Judges of the Supreme Court, and with the advice of the Executive Council, do hereby revoke the division of the District of Batticaloa into the divisions of Batticaloa and Kalmunai created by the said Proclamation of the 6th day of May, 1892, aforesaid, and declare that the said divisions of Batticaloa and Kalmunai shall, as from and after the First day of July, 1894, form one division, and be called the division of Batticaloa, and that the limits of such division shall be as the same are set out and defined in the second schedule aforesaid to the said Ordinance annexed.

Given at Kandy, in the said Island of Ceylon, this Ninth day of June, in the year of our Lord One thousand Eight hundred and Ninety-four.

By His Excellency's command,

E. NOEL WALKER,

Colonial Secretary.

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN!

In the Name of Her Majesty VICTORIA, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland Queen, Defender of the Faith.

PROCLAMATION.

By His Excellency Sir Arthur Elibank Havelock, Knight Commander of the Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael and Saint George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief in and over the Island of Ceylon, with the Dependencies thereof.

A. E. HAVELOCK.

WHEREAS by section 55 of "The Courts Ordinance, 1889," it is enacted that it shall be lawful for the Governor, by any Proclamation to be by him for that purpose issued, to establish within each and every division into which the respective circuits into which the Island has, for the purposes of the administration of justice, been under the said Ordinance divided, one Court to be called the Court of Requests and another Court to be called the Police Court, and that each Court of Requests and Police Court shall be holden by and before one person to be called the Commissioner of Requests and Police Magistrate respectively of such Court, and at such convenient place or places within such division as the Governor shall from time to time appoint:

And whereas by a Proclamation dated the 6th day of May, 1892, the District of Batticaloa in the Northern Circuit was, for the purposes aforesaid, divided into two divisions called the division of Batticaloa and the division of Kalmunai, and the limits of each such division were defined and set forth in the schedules A and D to the said Proclamation annexed:

And whereas by a Proclamation dated the 12th day of May, 1892, a Court of Requests and a Police Court were established within each of such divisions within the limits so defined:

And whereas by a Proclamation bearing even date herewith, the division of the said District of Battica oa into the divisions of Batticaloa and Kalmunai, created by the said Proclamation of the

6th day of May, 1892, aforesaid, was revoked, and the divisions of Batticaloa and Kalmunai were declared as from and after the date specified therein to form one division, and be called the division of Batticaloa, and the limits of such division were defined to be as the same are set out in the second schedule to the said Ordinance annexed:

And whereas it is expedient to establish a Court of Requests and a Police Court within the said division, and to appoint convenient places within such division at which such Court of Requests and such Police Court shall be holden:

Now therefore know Ye that We, the said Governor, do hereby establish a Court of Requests and a Police Court within the division of Batticaloa aforesaid, and appoint that the said Court of Requests and the said Police Court for the said division shall be holden at Batticaloa and at Kalmunai respectively within the said division as from and after the 1st day of July, 1894.

Given at Kandy, in the said Island of Ceylon, this Ninth day of June, in the year of our Lord One thousand Eight hundred and Ninety-four.

By His Excellency's command,

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN!

In the Name of Her Majesty VICTORIA, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland Queen, Defender of the Faith. PROCLAMATION.

By His Excellency Sir Arthur Elibank Havelock, Knight Commander of the Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael and Saint George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief in and over the Island of Ceylon, with the Dependencies thereof.

A. E. HAVELOCK.

THEREAS by section 22 of "The Butchers' Ordinance, 1893," it is enacted that whenever a building shall have been erected for the purposes of a public slaughter-house, and such building shall have been certified to the Governor by the proper authority as sufficient for the purposes of a public slaughter-house, the Governor may, with the advice and consent of the Executive Council. declare and proclaim such building to be a public slaughter-house:

And whereas it has been certified by the Chairman of the Local Board of Kurunégala that the buildings erected at Wilgoda, within the limits of the town of Kurunégala, and proclaimed in the Government Gazette of 8th June, 1883, are sufficient for the purposes of a public slaughter-house:

Now know Ye that We, the said Governor, with the advice and consent of the Executive Council, declare and proclaim that the buildings erected by the Local Board of Kurunégala at Wilgoda, within the limits of the town, shall be a public slaughter-house from the date hereof.

Given at Kandy, in the said Island of Ceylon, this Fourteenth day of June, in the year of our Lord One thousand Eight hundred and Ninety-four.

By His Excellency's command,

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN!

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

RULES under Section 23 of Ordinance No. 9 of 1893 for the management of the Public Slaughter-house established at Wilgoda, Kurunégala.

- 1. No cattle shall be slaughtered at the slaughter-house unless the same shall have been previously exposed to public view at the Local Board pound erected in the Rajapihilla road for a period of 24 hours immediately preceding the time of slaughter.
- 2. No animal shall be slaughtered at the slaughter-house except between the hours of 3 P.M. and 5 P.M. 3. Before 5.30 P.M. on each day the persons the latest and the slaughter-house except between the hours of 3 P.M. and 5 P.M.

2. No animal shall be slaughtered at the slaughter-house except between the hours of 3 P.M. and 5 P.M.

3. Before 5.30 P.M. on each day the persons who have used the slaughter-house on that day shall thoroughly cleanse the slaughter-house and premises, and shall bury all blood, refuse, and offal. These duties shall be performed according to the directions of the Inspector of the Local Board on duty.

4. A pit or pits shall from time to time be dug for the reception of all refuse and offal.

5. The work specified in the 3rd and 4th rules shall be executed by the licensed butchers jointly, in such manner and at such times as shall be ordered by the Inspector of the Local Board on duty, and if any such butcher shall neglect or fail to execute, or cause to be executed, any portion of such works as may be allotted to him, it shall be performed at the expense of such butchers by the Inspector on duty, and such expense, if unpaid by the defaulting butcher, may be recovered by the Board under the provisions of section 74 of the Ordinance No. 7 of 1876.

6. Any diseased animal brought to the slaughter-house may be detained by the Inspector on duty and destroyed

6. Any diseased animal brought to the slaughter-house may be detained by the Inspector on duty and destroyed by him: provided that in the case of diseased cattle the special authority for such destruction shall be obtained of the Chairman of the Local Board, or, in his absence, of two members of the Board.

7. The schedule of fees recoverable for the use of the public slaughter-house at Kurunggala shall be as follows:

follows :--

For a permit to slaughter cattle, each animal ... For a permit to slaughter sheep or goats, each animal For a permit to slaughter pigs, each animal ...

GOVERNMENT NOTIFICATIONS.

Continued from page 1440.

THE following notification regarding the enforcement of quarantine rules at Aden, Perim, and the Somáli Coast against arrivals from Hongkong, received from the Government of Bombay, is published for general information.

By His Excellency the Governor's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 27, 1894. E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

GENERAL DEPARTMENT.—Bombay Castle, June 20, 1894.

No. 2,317.—In exercise of the power confirmed by Act I. of 1870, the following rules for quarantine against Plague have been made by the Government of Bombay, with the previous sanction of the Governor-General in Council: they have effect from the 15th instant in the Ports of Aden, Perim, and the Somali Coast as a temporary measure :-

> I .- The Commander of every vessel, including buggalows or other native craft, arriving from Hongkong shall, before entering the harbour, indicate by signal the port from which such vessel has come.

> II.—Such Commander shall not, except as hereinafter provided, allow any communication, either with the pilot boat, except orally, or with the shore, or with any other vessel

or boat in the harbour.

III.—Immediately on any such arrival being signalled, the Health Officer of the Port shall go alongside the vessel and ascertain by inquiry from the Commander whether any person on board is suffering, or has during the voyage suffered from plague, and if the Health Officer is satisfied by such inquiry that no person on board is suffering, or during the voyage has suffered from plague, he shall direct the Commander to take the vessel to the quarantine anchorage duly appointed and notified in that behalf by the Resident, there to remain for a period of seven days from the date of arrival in the harbour. The Health Officer shall also direct the Commander to prohibit, during the period for which the vessel remains at the quarantine anchorage as aforesaid, all communication, except such as is hereinafter provided for between such vessel and the shore, or other vessels and boats in the harbour.

IV .- If the Health Officer shall have reason to believe at the time when the vessel arrives in the harbour that any person on board is suffering, or during the voyage has suffered from plague, he shall direct the Commander to take the vessel to the quarantine anchorage as aforesaid, and there to remain for a period of fifteen days from the day of arrival in the harbour; and shall further direct that during such fifteen days intercourse between the said vessel and the shore or other vessels and boats in the harbour shall be prohibited as provided in rule III.

V.—If during the period a vessel is at the quarantine anchorage aforesaid any case or cases of plague should occur on board, the said vessel shall remain in quarantine for a period of fifteen days from the date of the last case occurring, and be subject to all

the prohibitions provided for in rules III. and IV.

VI.—When any vessel has been placed in quarantine as aforesaid, the Health Officer may direct the removal of so many of the passengers and crew as may not be suffering from illness, and whose services may not be required on board the vessel, to such particular spots as may from time to time be selected by the Resident as places of quarantine, there to remain for a period of seven days, or if the vessel has been placed in quarantine for fifteen days, for a period of fifteen days. If a case of plague occurs among such passengers and crew during any such period, they shall remain in a place of quarantine for a period of fifteen days from the date of the occurrence of the last case of such illness.

VII .-- Any mails or cargo which may be brought by any vessel so arriving shall be landed under such precautions as the Health Officer may deem necessary to prevent the

spread of the disease.
VIII.—It will be the duty of the Port Officer to facilitate the conveyance to all vessels in quarantine of such supplies of provisions, stores, and other articles as may be required by those on board. Such supplies will be placed on the boats of the vessels in quarantine to be subsequently removed by members of their crews.

IX.-All vessels arriving at Aden, Perim, and the Somali Coast, which may have communicated with vessels coming from Hongkong, shall be subjected to the same quarantine as vessels arriving at Aden, Perim, and the Somali Coast from

By order of His Excellency the Right Hon. the Governor in Council, •

In compliance with the provisions of "The Trade Marks Ordinances, 1888 and 1890," and the regulations made on March 28, 1889, notice is hereby given that Mr. T. B. Brown has applied for the registration of the following Trade Mark in the name of Mr. Arthur Clarke, trading as A. G. Wilson & Co., 2, Gresham Buildings, London, E.C., and 93, Holm street, Glasgow, for Whisky, in Class 43 in the Classification of Goods in the above-mentioned regulations.



Note.—The essential particulars of the Trade Mark are the words "Old Chum" and the facsimile signature of the applicant's trading style, and the applicant disclaims any right to the exclusive use of the added matter.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, June 15, 1894. E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.

Return of Cooly Immigrants at the Ports of Colombo and Manuar during the under-mentioned Periods.

Colombo.	[Week ended June 27]		Arrivals.		Departures
\mathbf{Men}			622	• • •	573
Women		•••	150		336
Childre	n	•••	118	•••	98
Infants	•••	•••	52	•••	24
Mannár	[Return not received]	•••	988	•••	403
	•		1,934		1,434

E. NOEL WALKER, Colonial Secretary.